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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plcis to maximise shareholders' total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property reiated businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the Company’) was
forred in 1905 ard has been: a dedicated property
irvestor sirce 1982 The Company 1S an Irvestment
Trustard its shares are piemiuim | sted on the Landon
Stock Exchange

Benchmark

The berchmark s the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Deve oped
Eurcpe Capped Net Total Return index e sterling

Investment policy

The Company seeks 1o achieve its objective by
nvesting in shares and securities of property
companies and property related busiresses onan
Inter~atioral basis, although, with a pan-European
benchrrark, the major ty of the investments will be
located i tnat geograpnical area The Company also
Mvests in investment property located N the UK on y

Further detads of the Investment Policies, the Asset
Allocaton Guideiines and polcies regard ng the use of
gearirg are set out i the Strateqic Report on page 34
and the entre portfalia 1s showr on page 27

Investment manager

Columbia Threadneedle Investmrent Business L mited
acts as tne Company's alternative nvestment

fund manager {AIFM') with portfolc managemert
delegated to Thames River Captal LLP {the 'Portfo 1o
Manager or the ‘Manager) Marcus Phayre Mudge
nas maraged the portfolio sirce 1 Apri 2011 and been
part of the Fund Managerment teamr since 19%7

Lrrual Revort & Ao counts 2023

Independent board

The Directers are ai. independert of the Manager

and meet regulary to consider investrent strategy,

to Tontor adherence to the stated obyjective and
nvestment poicies and o review investment
perfarmance Deta: s of bow tne Board operates and
fLIflis 1ts respons bilities are set out in the Report of the
Directors on page 47.

Performance

Tre Financ.al H grignts for the current year are set out
on page 2 and Historical Perforrance can be found o
page 3. Key Performance Indicators are set out inthe
Strategic Report on pages 35 and 36

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Compary currently conddcts ts affairs so that

its shares can be recomimended by Independent
Fimancia Advisers {IFAS’) Inthe UK tc reta’l investors
in accordance with the Firarcial Conduct Autmonty
(FCAY rules ir relation to non-mainstream nmvestment
products and intends to cortinue to do so Tne shares
are excluded from the FCA's restnct’ ons, which app'y
10 noa-manstream mvestment products, because trey
are shares in an authorised imvestment trust comrpany

Further information

General shareho der ‘informatior and detalls of how
toiqvest in the Company, Imcludng investrent
throLgh an 1SA or savirgs scheme, can be found on
pages 118 orwards This imformation can also be
fouand on tne Company's website www trproperty com
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022 Change

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 305.13p 492 43p -38.0%
Shareholders' funds (£'000) 968,346 1,562739 -38.0%
Shares in issue at the end of the year (m) 317.4 3174 +0.0%
Net debt'~ 12.3% 10.2%

Share Price
Share price 279.00p 456.50p -38.9%
Market capitalisation £885m £1,449m -38.9%

Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022 Change
Revenue
Revenue earmings per share 17.22p 13.69p +25 8%
Dividends?
Interim dividend per share 5.65p 5.30p +6.6%
Final dividend per share 9.85p 3.20p +7.7 %
Total dividend per share 15.50p 14.50p +5.9%
Performé“ﬁce: Assets an&"Benchmark o o
Net Asset Value total return - -35.5% +27 4%
Benchmark total return -34.0% +12 2%
Share price total return® -36.2% +19.6%
dr{aoing Charges®* ' ' o o
including performance fee 0.73% 2.76%
Excluding performance fee 0.73% 0.60%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs 0.67% 058%
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Historical performance

for e year ended 21 March 2023

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)
NAY "
Benchmark:
Share Price”

Shareholders’ funds {£'m)
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Net revenue {pence per
share)

Earnings
Dividends

NAV per share (pence)

Share price (pence) B

Indices of growth

[CAREEETS FELRETS 1 L

Share price”
Net Asset Value’
Dividend Net'
RPI

Benchmark -

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.
(A1 The NAV Tota Returnfor each year 1s caiculated by renvesting the d widends inthe assets of the Company o~ the relevant ex-d vidend date Cradends

2013

215
178
258

684

6.74
7.00

215.25
186.30

100
100
100
100
100

2014

22.4
149
37.7

809

8.09
7.45

25494
247 50

133
118
106
102
107

2015

283
233
29.5

1,010

8.89

7.70

31812
370,50

167
148
110
103
128

2016

82
54
1.6

1,065

8.36
835

335.96

297.50

160
156
19
105
131

2017

8.0
65
91

1,118

11.38

10.50

35242
314.50

169
64
150
108

136

2018

155
10.2
255

1,256

13.22
12.20

39564
38250

205
184
174
112
146

2019

9.1
5.6
6.2

1,328

14 58
13.50

41854
394 00

211
194
193
115

149

2020

-11.5
-14.0
-16.8

1,136

1462
1400

358.11
317.50

170
166
200
118
124

2021

207
159
283

1,326

12.25
14.2¢

417.97
392.50

277
194
203
119
1471

2022 2023

21.4
12.2
19.9

1,563

1369

14.50

492 .43
456 50

245
229
207
130

158

-355
-34.0
-36.2

968

133
142
221
148

99

ate deemed 10 be re nvested at the ex-disdend date asths s the protocg! used by the Company's bench~zrk and oter ind cos This ‘s considered to be an
Alternative Pe-formance Measure 25 defined on page 106
(B} Benchmark Index composite ndex compnsing the FTSE FPRA-NARE'T Ceveloped Europe TR Index up te IMa-ch 2013, and therea'ter the FTSE EPRA NARLIT
Developed Lurope Capped Index Source. Thames Rwver Capital

iC) The Share Price Totai Return s calou-ated by “e nvesting the dividends in the shares o te Lorpany fro~ e re evant ex-d wdend date

iC)

{E} Shareprces ony These donot refiect d'vidends pa d

(Fi Capitalon'y velues These do notreflect d vidends paid

[0 Price oniy va.ue of the inchzes set out in B ghove

-
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Chairman’s statement

B Markets have had to

absorb huge increases

in the cost of capital and

real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusual cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. in many of our markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

This has been a very difficult year for the property
market, for propérty shares and for the Company. Net
asset value total return was -35.5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -324 0%. The share price total return
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAY and the
share price widened siightly, reflecting weaker investor
sentiment as a whole. Although the change in the second
half was modest (first half NAV total return of -33 6%
March to September 2022} we have experienced some
very dramatic price action in the intervening six months

Macro-econcmic forces continued to dominate The
drivers and trajectory of inflation remained everyone's
focus. Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
consequences of their actions as market participants.
Vvolatility remained elevated. Whilst cur total return
figures are clearly very poor, the autumnal raliy in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK) by
political events in November, did resume in earnest in
January, This three month rally, based squarely on a
change in the expected trajectory of interest rates, gave
us, at last, a taste of a more optimistic attitude towards
our asset ¢iass. The last few weeks of the financial year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regicnal banks in the US and the final take out of Credit
Suisse. Thisraised knee-jerk concerns of bank contagion
which here feels sensationalist given the enhanced levels
of regulatory oversight and controls on European banks
post the gicbal financial crisis.

Your investment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic steck
selection. it s fair to say that the investment dynamics of
the last 12 months have not been their preferred context.
The dramatic price falls and bear market rallies have
been iargely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad. Forced sellers were interested in volume not price
Small caps, as usual, struggled in these conditions This
macro-driven enviranment 1s hopefully, finally, abating as
investars appear increasingty irterested 10 differentiating
between individual companies’ prospects followng the
significant correction

Ourinvestment universe has now seen a number of
companies who have suspended or reduced dividends
These were, inthe man, the iikely suspects and it would
be a surprise to us If many others now emerge given the
economic cycle. Gre of the core attractions of rea! estate
‘nvesting s the potential of ndexed .ncome and this s
showing through and remains our focus

TR Property In.esiment Trus:



Earnings per share increased by 26% from 13.69p per
shareto 17.22p. This is an all-time high. Althcugh
company earmnings did in general recover to pre-
Covid-19 levels, our headline earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments. More detzil of this is set out in the
Manager’s report,

The Board 15 pleased to anncunce a final dividend

ol @ 85p taking the full year divicend tc 15.50p,
representing a 6.9% increase. In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to investor
appetite for mcome but has also been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
earnings.

e

Following a record level of earnings in 2022/23, the
Board expect to report & reduction in net income for
the year to 2023/24. This is not only as a result of the
non-recurrence of certain items which enhanced the
current year earnings, but also because of the number
of companies that have announced dividend cuts or
suspensions. Al companies have had to adjust to the
change in the price of debt. For some the impact has
been immediate, while for others it will be somewhat
delayed as they continue to benefit from histeric
fixed rates However, on the income side of the
equation, index-linked rents will benefit. Companies
need to balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
baiance sheets. The medium to longer-term outlook
for interest rates is difficult to predict so it could be

a while before companies feel confident about the
longer-term outlook.

Gearing at 12.3% is an almost identical figure tc that
at the half year Inevitably these numbers are just
snapshots in time; the level of gearing has vared in
response to the market volatility and as investment
opportunities have occurred.

Sterling weakened over the year by just over 4% This
marginally enhanced our income acceunt as non-
sterling dividends were worth more in sterimg terms.

As our balance sheet is denominated in sterling a
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets. The halance sheet exposure
remains materially in line with the benchmark as we
hedge expasure to match the benchmark,

P S pUTS .
el oo N

The discount of the share price to the NAV widened
slightly over the year from -7 3% to -8.6%. However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between ciose 10 -1% and over -10%.

This volatility is indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5.8%, close to the 10-year
average of -4.9% and an improvement on the -6.6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

In light of the transient nature of the discount
volatility, no share buy-backs or issues were made
during the year

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

W Benchmark Tota: Return M TR Property Share Price Total Return
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Chairman’s statement
continued

| reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would broaden
and strengthen the Board and add diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity, In January this year we
were delighted to anncunce the appointment of
Busola Scdeinde to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspective on a
wide range of issues.

We also announced my intention to step down from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
will succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks will
succeed Kate as Senior Independent Director

ESG reports within annual accounts are becoming
ionger and contain more and more detall. This

is wholly appropriate for an operating company

and we welcome the additional disclosure. As an
investment trust company and primarity an investar
in companies, we have to think about what £SG
should mean for us

Our ESG approach covers three areas. Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly to the
investment trust as a Company under the direct
control of the Board. Secondly, ESG considerations
as part of the investment process for our equity
portfolio adopted by our Manager. Although our
Manager cannot have any direct control over ESG

policies in underiying investee companies, it can, and

does, use its influence carefully through corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest. Thirdily, our Manager does have

control over our direct property portfolio and bere we

continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
environmental care In al' that we do.

Qur Responsible Investment Report on pages 1610

25 sets out our approach in each of these areas with
some case study examples This s of course ar area

of active evolution

CIm RE

St e b
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Macro considerations continue to dominate. Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borne their
share of price adjustments However, this s an unusual
cycle where both rates and rents are nising In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply. Our central
assumption s that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks’
targets Listed property companies are generally more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead The sector
has been hit hard and many of our companies are
trading at large discounts to asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previcus cycles, If the
sector is undervalued then private capital will be quick
to step in. Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, one
of the Company's 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended bid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturbed share price. More recently in early May,
Civitas, the social housing landlord announced a cash bid
from an Asian congiomerate at a similar premium. These
businesses are chalk ard cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors. These
events remud us that, for many, real estate is seenasa
crucial part of the investment jigsaw particularly in these
inflationary times.

David Watson

TR Procerty Inestrert Trygs
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Manager's report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
levels of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebbs and flows around
interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, looking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those

sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

The Company's net asset value (NAV) total return for

the 12 months to 31 March 2023 was -35.5%, whiist the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR (in
GBP), fell -34 0% These figures are clearly disappointing
but not matenally different from these reported at the

haif year, where the NAV had fallen -33.6% in the first six
months of the financial year Equally important 1o note

is that these figures are snapshots in very volatile times.
To illustrate the point, the first four months of the second
half of the financial year (i.e. October to January} saw our
universe rally +14. 5% only to then give up all of those gains
in the subsequent nine weeks. The end result was a finish
to the year which was marginally worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrote that shareholders will

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of travel was obvious and more
protective action should have been taken. It always looks
clear in tindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explain some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rotate the portfolio nto the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents but then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first quarter of the financial year saw the sector

fall 24% as investors really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, you could still have made
money over a four-week period (in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts driving markets in mid-2022. Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal {(+9.5%) as bond
markets responded to the theme that rising interest rates
were having the reguired deflationary effect. However,
the summer break was followed by hawkish statements
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -20% between mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the ‘higher for
longer' mantra This severe bout of pessimism was

then followed by a +25% rally in pan-European property
stocks between mid-October and the end of January.
The tail end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebb away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year
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Manager’s report
continued

Benchmark Performance

W FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Tolal Return Net GBP (Daily)
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For a 'value' sector where returns are driven — year

in, year out — by income, these levels of volatility and
multiple directional shifts are almost unparalleled What

is happening? Essentially, the whole period has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interest rate
expectations and bond market behaviour. Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market observer with over
30 vears' experience recently wrote to clients | can't recall
a period of time when capital values have fallen so sharply
and yet ocoupier demand in most sectors has remained
pretty robust’. | have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsutates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, yields are rising but so are
rents, this is atypical. It is now clear that, through 2022,
placed too much emphasis on this guality of earnings (and
ndeed earnings growth) in many of our companies. The
market paid little heed, choosing to focus on the impact of
rising yields/capitalisation rates on asset values

The speed at which centra' banks responded, as
inf:ation gathered pace, tock many participants by
surprise. The rising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particular
cohorts of companies Those companies which had
successfully utitised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of (rejfinancing was
effectively shut. German residential businesses,
particularly the larger ones, Vonovia, LEG and the
more diversified Aroundtown {part owner of Grand
City Properties), are ai! seeing their cost of debtrise
dramatically as the expiry of existing bonds require
refinancing. The other heavily impacted group were
those with higher loan to value compounded by high
levels of floating rate debt. The impact on earr'ngs

for this group has been dramatic and the majority of
Swedish companies fall into this category. Both these

g

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23

cohorts share a couple of similar outcomes; firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are disproportionately represented and secondly, these
two groups have experienced the greatest volatility within
our universe, To illustrate the point, Swedish property
companies collectively fell 40 5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that pericd there were three sharp
bear market rallies of +17% (May), +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-October to the end of January).
These groups were nighly susceptible to changes in
sentiment towards the outiook for rates and margin on
new (or refinanced) debt instruments

Previously, | have written about the merits of the market
fundamentais of German residential. The vast supply/
demand imbaiance and the persistent widening of the
gap between regulated rents and open market values
remains in piace. What has been most frustrating is that
our largest relative position in that area is Phoenix Spree
Deutschland, which has no refinancing requirerments
until 2026 and 1s a market minnow {portfolio vaiue less
than £750m) where all sales, however few, will make a
d.fference performed in ine with its larger cousins,

Callectively the market capitalisation of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57%. Meanwhile, the
underlying asset values have corrected less than 10% in the
year and top Iine earnings nave grown with vacancy levels
stable and the 'mietspegiel’ (the rent table) continuing to
Increase rerts, albeit at a sub-inflationary rate The asset
class offers consistently low vacancy, steady rental growth
and the opportunity to move to market rents through
refurbishment or sales to owner-occupiers As aresult,
y-elds steadily tightened as the cost of finance fell. By the
beginning of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fully
reflecting the stability and low risk profile of the income. At
such low capitalisation rates, a modest reversal upwards of
100bps has a very dramatic effect on valuation.

TF Property Irsestmen: Trast




Much the same effect was felt in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - industrial/logistics. This sector
had enjoyed a surge in investor demand as strong rental
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
last three years. Again, the impact of the abrupt rise in
the cost of debt led to a quick reversal in yvields. However,
unlike regulated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
strong rental growth will persist in industrial/logistics
property given market fundamentals.

Offices continue to be the sector most under scrutiny
and rightly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working from home ("'WFH') regime are still being
worked through by tenants and landlords. Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conclusions
are hard to pin down given the speed of change.
However, we are confident that since the hzalf year we
have seen more data to suppaort our current thesis.
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based businesses — physical interaction is a vital part
of business tife However, the amount of space required
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
guality space has risen. This demand for better quality
working environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentials The
result is a histerically wide market bifurcation hetween
bestin class, well located, energy efficient buildings
and the rest. Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and well over 50% of that exposure is to
London and Paris, hence our focus on those markets in
this commentary.

Gecina, our largest European office exposure (see top
12 holdings) intheir Q1 2023 results highlighted that
their prime inner Paris assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whilst their outer ring assets saw negative
reversion Overall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highlights the gulf between the growth
achieved in central assetsg and the rest. Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenon, with central Milan
recording sclid demand and rental growth. Centra!
London office vacancy is elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3.7%) and the City {11 9%)

is almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation in
Dockiands is even more dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced either a
reduction in therr space requirerments (including HSBC,
Citi and JPMargan) or wholesale relocation (e.g. Clifford
Chance). In the case of the latter, the firm is also cutting
its space requirements by 40% One should be careful
not to read single statistic across to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Annual Renort & Accounts 2023

Wharf for several years. This increasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districts such as Canary
wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattanis
a reflection of both WFH but atso the lack of headcount
growth. This 1g a particular problem in London where
post Brexit, global financial services businesses continue
to increase their footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London.

This bifurcation of ‘best and the rest’ can be clearly
seen in recent valuation in the specialist London office
landlords. Great Portland reported in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings’ EPC {energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels (A&B) saw value declines of 2 5% whilst
C&D rated were -4 2%. Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable (=£1,500 per
ft} saw capital drift of -3.5% and rental growth of +2%,
whiist the least (<£1,000 per ft) saw value falls of -17.8%
and rental growth of just 0.3%.

Even though the best in class continues to enjoy steady
rental growth, this is partly due 1o its scarcity. The bulk
of all office markets are made up of much maore average
product and take up levels in the post pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West (the care) saw
avaiizble supply fall year on year {-19%) whilst it rose in
all cther markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the Inner Rim (+35%).

All of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best quality in the best
locations. MSCI/IPD's office sector capital decline in
H2 2022 was -15.7%, underperforming retall which fei;
14.5%. Central London initial yield has moved 80bps
from 4.8% {(December 2021} to 5.6% (January 2023},
As discussed many times, the UK's independent valuer
community have always attempted to mark-to-market
rather than the Continental approach which is more
‘mark-to-maodel’. The latter approach results in a
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuations are woefully historic when
markets are correcting fast. As aresult, we feel that
highlighting the medest moves in Continental European
valuations in H2 2022 would be misleading. They will
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond.

It feels as though this much maligned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to online retailing, the way we search for products
{and pricing} as well as the increasing demand for
entertainment/leisure ahead of more 'stuff’. The huge
reduction in vaiues has been felt more acutely in the
UK. Alongside the differences between the UK and
Continental European shopping malls, it 1s aiso crucial
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Manager’'s report
continued

to highlight the sub-sectors within retail as they have,
largely, performed very differently over the last few vears.

The worst performing group remains the larger malis
which are, quite simply, too big with an excess of floor
space, often a shuttered department store (or twa) and
a service charge with a chunky non-recoverable element
{due to voids}. None of this is new information | hear you
say Agreed However, the update is that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords (and lenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

to be repurposed for other uses. Malls must become
community hubs with a range of (lower value) uses
such as fitness, medical uses, nurseries, day care etc
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own. The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acquired

the outstanding loans on the asset. The price equated
to a yield of over 9% an a rent roll which has dropped
materally over the last decade We are confident that

at the right rents (and yields) those centres which canr
reinvent themselves such as this dominant city centre
asset will deliver acceptable returns.

The strongest sub-sector remains retail warehousing
and outlet malis. For different reasons both offer retailers
sales channels which complement online. In the case

of the former, it is the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks. Free home delivery will
become unsustainable from both a profit and an ESG
perspective. Click and collect and free returns to store
will drive demand for these super convenient Iocations,
The Company is a large holder of Ediston Property which
has announced a strategic review given the subscaie
size of the business. We are hopeful that this will provide
further evidence of supportive valuations in the sector,
Outlets help retailers offload lines withcut damaging

full price/premium offerings The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson have anon-
controlling stake) and Gunwharf Quay in Portsmouth
(owned by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
remain confident about their prospects.

The combining of retail, leisure and food continues,
particutary in tourist destinations BNP have highlighted
the pick-up in post Covid footfall in the most upmarket
locations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barceiona), Via del Corso {Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall increasing on
average by 1/3 and in some cases, more than 65% (Par s
and Munich)

Retail investment has beer resilient, particalarly in
Continental Europe where investors see affordable rerts
and higher yields than other sectors. Whilst investment
levels are unsurprisingly below the 2012 to 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year to €40 1hn (+2 6%)

RPN

according to BNF In the UK retail warehousing continued to
dominate volumes (+60%) over 2021 and 2022. This figure
was lower across Europe and highlighits the continued (a¢k
of large shopping centre transactions in the UK.

UK logistics take-up in Q1 2023 was 8.6m sq ft, a slowing
when compared to a quarterly average of 120msg ftin
2022 and 13.8m sq ft In 2027 but still ahead of the quarterly
average of 8.3m sq ft in the pre-Covid decade. Vacancy
remains at 3% and rents continue to rise. Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields rise by 175bps for
prime distribution units between June 2022 and March
2023 Such was the impact of the cost of money, whilst
market fundamentals are deemed less relevant. Even an
asset with strong rental growth prospects cannot have a
capitalisation rate 200bps below the risk-free rate. However,
that pricing adjustment has largely been completed in our
view. We are beginning to see stability in asset prices.

In Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savills
report 32m sgmetres taken up in 2022 across the 13
largest markets, just 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the S-year average in virtually all markets. Higher
construction and finance costs ied to reduced speculative
construction maintaining the intense supply-demand
imbalance in so many markets Qver £50bn was investedin
2022, again below the record of 2021 but well ahead of the
S-year average. Yield expansion (¢ 100bps) was much less
than in the UK but again we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentails drive capital back into the sector,

We have long been cheerleaders for multi-let industrials
(ML), generally terraces of smaller units, managerment
intensive, but often located in dense urban locations
Very little new stock has been built over the last few
decades with alternative (multi-storey) uses being

far more valuable. Rents remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable, The
tenant rosters have evolved hugely in the last 20 years,
undergoing ‘gentrification’ from being the domain

of iight industnia: ‘'metar bashers’ to & much broader
swathe of uses, many born out of irternet connectivity
and the ability to access customers directly Qur sargest
exposure was through Industrials REIT, where we owned
11% of the company. Just after the year end (3 Apri)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a 40%
premium 1o the undisturbed share price. The private
equity behemoth already has substantial exposure to
tn’s sub-sector but 1t 's a imely reminder tnat if quaiity
assets are left undervalued then private capita: will
acquire ther. Qur other MULEexposure is through Sitlus
{(65% Germany, 35% UK) and diversified names such as
Picton and London Metric (which acquired Muckiow ir:
2021 where we owned 5%) The healthy supply-demand
imbalance makes 1 a sub-sector we are keen to maintain
exposure to
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The shortage of private sector rental accommodation
remains acute, yet the listed companies focused on

this sector were amongst the poorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies (mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
teams were lured into increased leverage given the
stability of the underlying ncome streams and occupancy
levels. However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interest rates rse.

Al the assel level, rental growth has remained well below
current inflaticn rates given the backward-locking nature
of regulated rents. We fully expect ta see these rents

rise at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramaiic inflation datapoints. The serous shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
ointment Is the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insulation and the type
of heating. in open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improvements will be passed
through to rent prices. In regulated markets where only
a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth,

Within open market regimes such as the UK we have
seen strong rental growth through the combination of a
shortage of rental stock (amateur landlords leaving the
market due to higher regulation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to temperarily
rent awaiting price corrections).

Purpose bullt student accommodation continues to fare well,
with rising numbers of students across the UK and Europe,
Thetraditional accommuodation alternative of private rented
houses (HMOs - Houses in Multiple Ccoupation) are reducing
as regulation pushes up licensing costs and (correctly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accornmaodation. Unite, our
largest student accormmaodation stock was one of the few
companies to see positive capital value appreciation in 2022
with 4% annualised growth It has recently increased its rental
growth outlook for academic year 2023/24 from 5% 1o 67%.
Self-storage continues to confound the sceptics Rate
growth and occupancy have begun to normalise post the
‘Covid boom' but remain encouragingly positive. Safestare,
our largest holding in the sector, enjoyed like-for-like rental
growth of 10.7% in the year to Cctober 2022

Hotels particularly leisure and tourist focused have also
enjoyed strong growth as consumers continue to make up for
lost opportunities 1o travel in 2020 and 2027, Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the quality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year on year. UK hotels ex Londen
was also strong at +171% year on year and 25% versus 2019,
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Healthcare was the poorest performer of the altermnatives
group Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation.
Continental European heafthcare operators have been
rocked by the scandal at Crpea. The level of state support,
both direct and indirect, are the crucial figures required by
investors Even then, the rate of rental growth can be quite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Properties and Assura.

- P
'

Both debt and equity markets were very subdued during
the year. The total capitairaised in 2022 was £14bn
compared to €32bnin 2021 and £21bn in 2020. Over
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
quarter To illustrate the change in pricing over the

last year, we need only review the most prolific issuer,
Vonovia, Europe’s largest property company In March
2022, it 1ssued 4, & and 8 year maturities totalling €£2.5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1.875% and 2.375% respectively. By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
475% and 50%.

Short-dated leverage risked the vicious cycie of
increased interest costs resulting in lower earnings, so
risking credit downgrades leading tc even higher cost of
dett. Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings;
if zsset sales weren't possible then equity (even when
trading &t deep discounts to asset values) needed to be
raised through rights issues.

At the half year, | detailed the capital raising by TAG
immobilien, who had over stretched themselves with the
acquisition of a Polish housebuilder. They raised €200m
at a 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price to
help pay off the bridging loan from the acquisition. in
November, VGP a Belgium logistics developer raised
£302m. This was more front-focted with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one fer four share issuance

The business is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capital makes them less
dependent on cne customer. The CEC and CFO own 49%
of the equity and 'stcod their corner’ which reassured
investors. In Sweden, Catena, another logistics developer
raised SEK 1.4bn {(£135m) as its share price hovered
close to NTA and, whilst small, it was unusual as it was
an accelerated bookbuild and not a rights issue. Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay & hybrid bond
and strengthen its overall balance sheet.

The only merger and acquisition activity inthe 12
months to 31 March (the privatisation of Industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April) were two mergers,
both widely expected but the timing less sure. The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capco finaily happened after
a tortuously long period of negotiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager's report
continued

shareholders (we do not cwn either company) was
that the deal results in the repayment of much of
Shafteshury's cheap debt due to a change of control
provision. When coupled with further increases in
debt costs next year and some extraordinarily high
advisor fees (given it was an agreed transaction)
there will be precious little earnings benefit from
the anticipated synergies, The cther merger was
between LX| and Secure Income REIT on a NAV for
NAY basis It was a much maore straightforward
affarr. We were a large shareholder in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
to NAV, The managers of SIR were also large
shareholders in the company and their excellent
timing in previous property cycles was onge again on
display They even sold the management company
which had a contract ta run SIR for the next three
years,

Portfolio turnover (purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m in the year, considerably less
than the £549m in the previous year. With average
net assets over the year of £1.18bn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatility in the year.

In the half year report, | recorded that each rally then
trended down to a new low and therefore virtually

all buys looked poor and ali sells locked clever

The second half of the year saw the targest and
longest recovery from Gcteber to the end of January,
followed by the rmost dramatic correction back to the
October lows, this new low point virtually coinciding
with the year end Througheout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on efther a change in the outlook for
interest rates (and the concern that central banks’
behaviour would become more hawkish) or renewed
speculatior of a farure in the credit transrmission
mechanism Essentially, irvestor sentiment was
driven by the expectation of the change in the price
and availability of debt.

Ir hindsight, maintaining our long-standing
disciptine of buying (or addirg) toc companies where
we felt confident in the resilience of earnings driver:
by market fundamentas just wasn't enough

As would be expected, we have carefully analysed

al of our compan:es’ balance sheet capacity (in
terms of the quantLm of ieverage, cost and duration
of debt) In many cases, the market had quicky
adjusted the earnings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being cverly rational about these revised earnings

7

forecasts. The market was not interested i supply and
demand at the property/occcupational market level or
whether there were still profits to be achieved from the
development pipeline

The ability of the market pendulum to {over) swing
between exuberance (greed) and melancholy (fear) was
very much in evidence and we battled to

react accordingly.

A good example of this was our collective underweight

to Swedish property companies. Whilst this call was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the year, the volatility in the group resulted in multipie
phases of repositioning. Whilst the broad statement that
Swedish property companies are amongst the most
leveraged in our investment universe is true, some are
obviously more exposed than others it was therefore
crucial to understana which company wouid suffer the
fastest earnings degradation from rising interest rates but
alsc to assess when the market had over reacted. Those
most at risk were those exposed to bond markets rather
than bank lending ar had complex hybrd instrurments
dreamt up by bankers when money was cheap. The scale
of share price voatility is best explained in a handful

of figures. EPRA Sweden fell -42% in the first quarter

only to recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
anather 40% drop to mid-October and then the iong
recovery (+36%) to the end of January, followed by a
renewed bout of nerves sending the sector down almost
to the October lows. These figures are the collective
impact of 18 companies. For the most leveraged (SBB,
Castellum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater
Underlying property market fundamentals do not drive this
level of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market outiook for the cost/availability of debt impacting
on a tiny market segment (free float capitalisation of just
£20bn).

Cur exposure 1o German residential was the poorest
asset allocation decision of the vear. | remained
convinced, for tco long, that the market fundamenrtals of
virtuaily fuli occupancy and (sub-market) regulated rents
would underpin investor sentiment The fact that even at
prices a year ago all of these names were trading below
the reinstatement cost of the underlying assets mattered
not a jot The market focused exclusively on the impact
of the cost of debt. During the year we reduced exposure
in the larger naes (Vonovia LEG) but mantained

the holding in Phoerix Spree, tne small Berlin focused
venicle It is an externally managed fund whictk has an
annually renewed contract with QSix, tne manager. |ts
assets are all prime Berin, where open-market rents
cortirue to grow The share price total return in the year
was -50% |remain convinced that orce prices stabitise
the sma ler companies will benefit disproportionately
from the impact of portfolio sales With a market cap of
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just £190m and the share price at half the asset value,
it1s an excellent example of a portfolio of assets which
are no lenger benefiting from being held in a listed
company.

With the price of money rising so rapidly in the year,

it was the lowest yielding assets which saw the most
aggressive repricing and so it was with German {(and
Swedish} residential. The compression in yields in
the previous five years was a rational response to
the combination of strong market conditions, (high
occupancy and rental growth) combined with very
low cost of barrowing. This strong yield compression
{and capital value growth) was even greater in the
industrial/logistics sector. The structural tailwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseum, in previous reports.
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiable
investor appetite for assets with income growth.

The reversal {yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard Again,

our smaller companies suffered dispropartionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed to catch the bounce in any recovery
We are confident that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios witl perform well. However, if the
stock market continues to undervalue them, then no
one should be surprised when more privatisations
occur. In the industrial group in the UK, 1 would include
Industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust Whilst in Eurcpe the list would include Argan,
Sirius and Catena.

With the lowest yielding (highest growth) names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new cost of debt, it was the highest yielding sectors
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retail
property has ¢learly been out of favour for many years
as the weakening in tenant demand for physical retail
space continued. In Continental Furope, we focused
on Eurocommercial and Klepierre given their high

earnings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibaii-Rodamco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
quality spectrum but both suffered from weak balance
sheets and the need to de-leverage. Unibail announced
2 years ago its intention to sell its US portfolio whilst
Wereldhave has continued to sell assets whenever

it can European retail as a subsel outperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection also added to
perfermance with Unibaii -27 5% and Klepierre -2.5%
over the year.

UK retailis now a small part of the listed universe.
For most investors the only way to gain expasure
is through the diversified portfolios of Landsec
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and Britistt Land. The bulk of our exposure is through
Ediston Property which owns only retail warehouses.
However, its market cap at £140m is too small for the
listed market and we applaud the announcement from
the board that they are carrying out a strategic review
for the future of the company. We rermain hopeful that

a merger with ancther listed company is a viable option
which will ensure the assets remain in the listed space.
The company was arelative cutperformer in the year
{(-18%) as were virtually alt the high yielding retail names
Hammerson remains a play on corporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retall property. We believe
they are on the right path and we opened a holding in
the year. The crown jewels are the rminority ownerships
in the premium outlet malls controlled by Value Retail
investors will need to remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value is reappearing.

Investors’ attitudes towards office property has been
highlighted earlier. We fully subscribe te the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest. Smaller
Furopean cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposdre to those cities through Arima (Madrid),
Wihlborgs (Malmo, Lund) and Fabege (Stockholm). Cere
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina {Paris), Great Portland and Landsec (London)
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
business model through Workspace (London) and Sirnus
(primarily German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with total returns of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
data reassuring. Landsec (-16%) was a top performer as
it continued to reduce leverage through sales of newly
completed prime offices in Central London. We are
strong advocates of capital recyciing and expect to see
more sales from non-core assets such as hotels and
izisure.

In the afternatives space, our cverweight to self-storage
was entirely through Safestore (-27%) rather than Big
Yellow (-21%). Safestore has outperformed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last period
In fact, we find it hard to choose between these two
very well managed companies. Both own irreplaceable
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas
Demand for space has been remarkably stable given
the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accommodation provider, was another relative winner
in the year. The combination of increased earnings
guidance and solid market evidence on modest yield
movement continues to support the asset class.
Both these asset types have intensive operational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the platform through the traditionat asset
value model. This was certainly the case with Industrials
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating
business alongside the assets
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Manager’s report
continued

Ag noted in the Chairman's Staterment, the current
vear's incame benefited from a number of non-recurring
iterns. Eurocornmercial and Swiss Prime both changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional half year payment from

ecach of these companies The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-dividend on or around the last
business day in March therefore moves between March
and April. In the year to 31 March 2023, we received
dividends in April 2022 and March 2023, resuiting in two
full year payments If the dividend due around 31 March
2024 falls back into next April, there will be no income
recorded from this company in the year to March 2024
We have no control over these timings and there are
several companies where dividends go ex-div arcund
the year end. Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2.5% of the portfolio so this has had

a significant impact. Without these (and the small
enhancement due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been around 1.13p
lower than reparted The dividend for the year to March
2023 is therefore well covered

The dividend for the previous two years was partly paid
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down. In 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out above, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported period before COVID-19 (being the year to
31 March 2019) The full year dividend to 31 March 2023
is almost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the importance of a growing dividend
to our sharehoiders

Looking ahead to the 2023-24 financial year, at this
stage, we expect toc report a fall in earnings This is partly
explained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above.
However, the additicnal impact 1s frorm the number of
the German residential and Swedish compantes that
have announced dividend suspensions and/or cuts as
they work to reduce their gearing teveis 11 the face of
rising debt costs. The residertial names in particular
are making progress with their disposal programmes
so we expect to see their dividends resuming, athough
possibly at a lower level in the not toc distant future

The impact of higher irterest rates wiil feed through to
earnings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing. The 'mpact of this of course depends onthe
duration of such debt packages and this varies huge.y
across our companies. It is encoLraging to note that

for most of them. the majority of their debt s fixed (or
capped) until 2026 and beyond

f
oy

On a more ercouraging note, top line revenue is
benefiting from inflation. All of our European companies
and a significant number of our UK names benefit from
rents linked to some form of indexation. It varies widely
across countnes and sectors but s ¢clearly an important
part of our revenue growth trajectory.

Although the revenue for the forthcoming year is likely
to be under some pressure given all these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth wil! return over
the medium term. Market fundamentals continue to
drive organic rental growth in so many of our sectors in
the meantime, the Company still has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintain dividend levels over short term
income falls, as was seen through the CCVID-19
pandemic.

Geanng began the year at 10 2%, increased t0 12 0% by
the half year and finished the year at 12 2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearing seen throughout
the period as gearing has been actively changed

in response 1o the very variable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%.

The cost of our debt has increased through the year

as our revolving credit facilities and CFD financing

are linked to SONIA (or other currency equivalents)
However, an important part of our debt book are the
FUR 50m and GBP 15m lcan notes hoth at fixed rates of
interest. The combination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some price
stability at lower levels of gearing. Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate {so drawing on
the floating rate financing) the market conditions are
such that returns are not too sensitive to the pricing.

i1 the year t¢ the end of March the physical property
portfolio produced a total return of-13 7%, made up of
a capital return of -17 5% and an income return of 3 8%
The MSCI Monthly UK Property Irdex returnedg -14.7%
over the same perod, made up of an ncome return of
5 0% and acapital fal of 18 8%

TP Sroceriy InLesirert Trust



During the year we sold the residential element of the
Cclonnades development for £5m on a new 999 year
lease at a peppercorn rent. The value of this element

15 determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual flats. During the Company’s
ownership we completed tease extensions over 75% of
the flats and received more than £12 5m in premiums.
In addition, the sale facilitated the simphfication of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retained the freehold of the island site as well as all the
commercial elements. The locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the old Whiteleys shopping
centre nearing completion This is an important next
phase in the further gentrification of Bayswater.

It was a busy 12 months for assat management at
Ferrier Street, Wandsworth The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibility
for either a refurbishment of the existing or @ more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
permission secured in June 2022 During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 60% of the estate. This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new lettings exceeding £30 per sq. ft. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefit from the further
reduction in supply of London industrial space, whilst
the depth of demand from occupiers has increased,
The diversity of our cccupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to food
production and even a plant nursery.
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Inflationary pressures persist Central banks appear
resolutely determined to remain hawkish with another
round of base rate increases in May. Whilst a relatively
blunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates is having the required effect with
reduced retail sales growth. Energy ias been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spct price of gas has
fallen back tc pre-invasion prices. This will socn begin to
feed into lower headline inflation figures and also reduce
the likelihood of a recession. We expect wage inflation,
driven by high employment levels, to persist, resulting in
inflation remaining ahead of central banks' target rates.

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, in

our preferred sectors, remain solid with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Economic growth is
likely to be at best anaemic, for a while, and speculative
deveiopment wili remain subdued Income, cften index-
linked, wili remain the key valuation underpin. We will
maintain our focus on the most judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
reqguirements. With such a large number of well financed
listed companies, we also expect opportunities to gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a world
where debt availability is getting more restricted.

The sector has a tong tall of micro-cap companies

and we continue to encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consclidation where it improves share
liquidity and reduces costs Otherwise, we wili continue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
smaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners, Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids (and continues
to hold a wide range of small caps) we also believe that
growing the number of larger companes is in the best
interests of the sector and investers,

As we go to print at the beginning of June, we are
pleased to report an all-paper bid by London Metric
(market cap. £1,700m) for CT Preperty Trust (£780m)
The Company owns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the announcement.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
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Responsible investment

Introduction

The Board recognises the mportance of considering
Ervironmenta Social ard Governance (ESG) factors
when making investiments and inacting as a respons ble
steward of cap tal. This covers the Comrpary s awr
regpons'billties on goverrance and report ng and the
most materal way it which tne Company car nave
animpact, througn responsib e owrership of the
mvestments that are made or its benaif by ts Marager

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting
Maintaining a high evei of Governance ard disclosare

- the Compary's awn ¢perat.ons and reporting

15 extremely irrportant Our Furd Managers are
ercouraging and supporting trus from the companies
Mowhieh we mvest and we cannot fall short of these
standards curse ves

The Compary's cormplance with 1ne AIC Code of
Corporate Governance is detailed in the Corporate
Governance Repoert or page 59

Urder Section 474 of the Companies Act 2006 there g
areqg.irement to detai rformation about employee ard
huna~ nghts, incudirg irformat onabout any po c cs
nrelation to these matters and tre effectiveness of
trese polces Astae Cormrpany bas ro emp oyees, this
requirerrent does not apply The Company s notwitir
the scope of the UK Moderr Saavery Act 2015 because
has not exceeded the turnover thresrold and strerefore
not obliged to ~ake a s.avery and Puman traffickng
statee~t Tre Drectors are satisied trat, to 11e best

of trer knowiedge tre Company's prnc’pa sdppliers
w e are psted or page 128 comply wih tre provis ons
af the UK todern Slavery Act 2015 These are princ pally
professiona advsers and service providers «the firarc al
serv ces ndustry, conseguertly the Board cors ders the
Comparytcbe ow sk reation totr.s Tatter

TreBoargcurrently comprsestrree mae Drectors
a~dthree ferac Directors Tae Board a'sc meets tre
FCAsraesfordiversity and rciusior, folow rgthe
recoendat 0ns of tre Parker Review

Tneactivtes cf e No™ ~at or Comimr ttee ~re.gt on
te Board cnarges are referred to in tre No™ ~atier
Co™m ttee Repart o~ pages b a~d 57

T-eBoardsdverstypo ¢y sootired -~ ~oredeta -
t~e Corporate Sover~ance Report

Tre Corpary Pas nc greerno se gas eSS 078 1o report
from ts operators ~or does t rave respo s ity forany
other eriss:ors prodes ng sources wider tre Corpar es
ACt 2006 iShategic Report a~d D rectcrs Repoits

5

TE

RegLatiors 2013} Investment tro.st compar es are
curently exempt from report rg against the fask Force on
C. mate-Remted F nancia D scoosares { TCFD'Y however
tne Fmarcial Corduct Authonty (FCA) has now published
regdlatons that requie the Company’s Marager, as its
Aterrative Investment Fund Marager (AIFM'} tc report
aganst TCFD at botn the AIFM and product level by Lure
2024 Trisirearsthatthere wllbe a TCFD discios.are
specfic to e Company's portfol o ava lable in the futue
wich wit be published on the Manager's website The
Manager Fas produced areport or its overa: ¢l mate
change approach, wh ch s structured Ls.ng the TCFD
categories ard s avaliable o s webs te.

2. Our Portfolio Manager’s Approach to ESG
Our Pertfohio Manager's pr mary duty 1s to pursue the
object.ve setout at the beginr ng of this annua report
which is toinvest in property and property related
comparies wit~ 1re chjective of exceed ng the ret.rns of
oLt benchrark

The Company has ~ot set oot ts stalito be ar £SG
focused furg Fowever as a long terriirvestor,
goverrarce ard sustarab ity cons deraticons tave
a'ways bee- embedded nour Marager's investrent
process ESG nsk assessiments and considerations are
factors wn ¢ feed into the irvestmet decs ars Th
reflects tne beef tnat strong governance corbired w tn
arespons’eappreacn to sog al ehagatiors and tne
cormritrentto protect our ervrronment will entarce
snareno derretdrs in the long term.

I7the part of the portfo o trat s nvested d rect v into
commMerc a rea estate we endeavour ic prachice wrat
WwWe preacn

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO
A5 g ded cated rvestor ~ the praperty sector Gur Marager
s ol mavy rg o CorsIger sorme of tne rore contrsversa
areas of what s etrica rvest~iert However we are
~vest g rbe dngswhere constructonandorgs g
~aragemerthavegdrect mpactcntre envigntet
Al property s gsome way de verTg a soca pLrpose
Moderm b d ~g practices are very L more focLsed
crredoongerergy corsampt ot ard efic’eroy trar -
tre past Propert es nave vary ~g ' fespans batarebort
fortrecngter™ Gderblid rgs wrhchare essetergy
efficert tra~trer ~oder cooterparts are a fact of

fe trerrepacerertras v der emsirorrerta and
SGCATepercusso s as we  as ~ uge cost ™Mp. cations
fneyetegorgtofar~ partof tre ~vestbe Lnoverse for
treforeseeab e fLtreand trer efic ert ~prove~et
ard Manageert s)usias mportattas ensur g rew
deseopmetsfe cwitre ~ grest posshee v iorrenta:
shavdards Athoegr oder bl dmgs e ost ke y srov.

~fencr soores totrerr ore oder cocnterparts o a
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nubar of evirorimental measures, we are looking for
demanstrat'on of best efforts to mprove these measures,
recegn.sing that there wili be limitations o1 what can be
achieved but warting to see a positive direction of travel,

There are two fundamental cons.derat ons ta investmert
IN property companies. the assets themselves and their
manageiment The Manager seeks to invest in leng-term
assels wheh are managed by gquality teams 1n a wel.
goverred corporate structure As aresult tnere has been
a long-standing and strorg culture of stewardship ir the
Manager's investment approach The Manager believes
that engaging with companies 18 best in the fust instance,
rather tnan simply divesting or exclud rg nvestment
opportunities. However, there are instances where
governance matters nave driver a decis.0n rot to invest
I acompary. As one of the iargest teams invest ng in
pan-European real estate equities, our Manager meets
witrs a s gnificart number of maragement teams of
mvestee and potential nvestee compantes each year and
has a robust record of ergagement, with ar agenda of
reducing risk, improvirg performance and encouraging
best practice. Tris is acgnrented by the strength of
Columbia Threadneed!e's Responsible Investment

team and its broader engagement. Over the course of
the year. our management team participated in 227
individuai or group meetirgs with companies and their
maragement teams.

The Manager 1s committed to respensible nvestment
ard s act ve.y developing new procedures and ways n
which ~formation 1 gathered and used 1o support their
engagement witn companies o1 £ESG matters,

Corporate Goverrance disclosure requirements bave
increased transparency enormous v In recent years and
enabied cioser scruty and engagement on Governance
Issues for some years Environmental measures are now
rapidy coming to tne fore and, with wider disc osure
reguirements bemng piaced upon our rvestee companies,
the Marager is increasngly able 1o scrutinise otner
mMeasures such as climate change and sustainability
pclces and cutco™es

However, the Board and Manager are st Il of the view that
the FSG rat1g rdustry and its approach and processes
has s gnuficant mitations, making it difficult to draw

tree cempansors a~d make fully informed decis'ors

Tne assessments from the various data providers

reach dfferert concusiors as they do oot atl score na
consstentway Some of the assessirents are subjective
and d-fferent data providers bave d fferent definitiors and
crtena.

Anndg’ Report & Accounts 2023

Tnis may eventually converge into same farm of
consensus of standardisat on but it stil has a way to

go Conceptually, makirg ESG comparnisons between
comparies and pantfolios appears s mple but itis
actuzlly rather complex a~rd it1s miportart 10 ensure trat
va i corrparisons are bemg made. As the shortconings
are beirg urcovered and tne different approacnes
hughhghted we hope that th's wil' put pressure or the
data prowiders toimprove 12 quaaty and ¢ anfy the bas’'s
of their analys s Tne data services are subscribed to so
have to be ‘it for purpose.

Havirg noted the shortfal.s above with the data col ectled
from the different providers, our Manager 1s enhancing
the way in whicn ESG date 1s collected and campared
Their own company database covers financial and
operationa information together with extens ve
modeiling ESG data ‘s beirg collated aiongside this,
allowing comparisons to be made more easily between
the varous data scurces for @ single campany and
interrogated rather than relying on high level "scores”
Interactions with companies on ESG mratters are

noted and progress, or otherwise can be tracked more
efficently

The Manager ‘s therefore dedicating direct resource to
the analysis of the :rformat on avaiable and a'so has
the berefit of Input from ts award-wirnirg Responsible
investmert Tearr. This ‘s work in progress and a
signihcart nvestment in resource but it wilimprove te
Manager's ablity to engage with our nvestee companies
on environmenta. matters and play out our responsible
Investment aims

itis cruca to disaggregate between quality comparies
which also nave strong ESG credent.als and compan:es
wnich may appear to have strong ESG credentials {on
the surface at east) but will make poor irvestments One
example of this approach s Horme REIT Onthe face of it
Home REIT's ESG credentials appeared sirong gven the
company's busness model 1s focused on the provisior
of accommodatior to he p tackle nome’essness in tne
UK Inaddition, its eases are 100% "green’, meaning
Home and its tenants agree to identify and imp.ement
appropriate strategles for the improvement of the
propertes’ envirgrmental performance However, we
elected not to part:icipate 1~ the company's IPO, and

the fuad has never owred the shares subsequertly, as
we had reservations about the overa’l economics of

the business We were concerned about the covenant
qual ty of the tenarts (ofter newly forred charities}
and believed tnat the long lease structures put in place
by Home REIT risked overstating a realistic value of

the underly ng assets This approach proved correct

- short seller Viceroy published a 1epert on Home

REIT in Noverrber 2072 whicn higniighted numerous
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Responsible investment
continued

concerrs wth t-e busmess and the company has been
‘rvestigated by regulatory bodies on a number of itenrs
mn recent months T1e shares are current'y suspended
pending a decis’on over tne future of the bus ness,
fiavirg dropped 61°% from the engimal IPO price.

Arexampe of a arge Foidirg where we beeve the ESG
credert ais comp.emert the rvestment case s Landsec
As well as adhenng to the gover-ance stardards

we wodld expect from a ead ng usted company, the
compary alsc has a cleary outined sustairab: ty
framework. This ¢ wdes :ong-term targets, progress
aga ~st wh.chis regu arly montored and presented
back to irvestors, sucr as operational carbon emissions
recluction of 70% by 2030 (witn a 2013/14 baseine) and
average embodied carbon reduct’or of 50% compared
with atyp cal building by 2030 The compary's newest
developrrerts, which inour view contr.bute positve'y

to the investment case giver ther abiity to contribute
to both earrings and net targible asset value over tirre,
are a'so airet zero burd ngs, wh'ch we believe w'!
contribute to an .mproved rental growth tane wher the
assetsare let. As sachk there s a symbiotic re'ationshp
between the company's strorg ESG credent als and ts
Jnderying econamic perfarmance

Governance

Governance covers matters sueh as board structiure,
effectiveness, dversity and indeperdence, executive
pay and crtena, shareroider rnghts and finarc a: and
governarce reportig and stardards

T=e Manager nas a corporate governance vot ng po'icy
wh ch, ™ is op™» o, accords with cuirert best pract ce
wi ISt marrta g a prrrary focus o0 fratc a returrs
Tre exerc se of voting rig~ts attacnied tc the portfalo
ras been deiegated to tre Marager Where pract cabie
arsharerc d rgswere voted at @i compary reet nys

T t1efiranc a year in accordance wir Courh a
Trreadreedies owr corporate govertarce pcic'es Tos
ers.restratastrong corsistent approacr s take~ 1o
proxy »ot ng wn ¢ backs up a~drei~forces ergage et
takes arob.gt e 0r key goverrance ssLes sJct as
exec.tive pay ad rtegrates ervirgmrenta soca &
dwers ty ssues and susta rab ity practices into tne

vol g process

]

sioa Trreadneed es Stewardsh p Repon 2027

10 ades ~gre ~forrat o o te firre- ever stevardset o
O Ces aswe gs-owthegse compy wir the

expectat ons of 17e UK Stewards~.p Code 2025 tc w0
tre Marager s a sigratory 118 statement of co~parce
ca~ befou-d o tre nebs te at

ttps wva co wrbratrread-esdie com e

=)

-

Dorrgtreimacoa year tre Manager Joted aga mst st

0

least one maragemert proposa’ at 52% of shareho der
rmeetings. Tus represents 12% of total ‘tems voted Cf
tneitermns voted aga nst, the proposas can be broadly
categorised as follows

3% 2%

# Remuneration
Shareholder rights

| Election / Reelection of
Directors

B Share repurchase policy

] other
Director terms
| Ratify Auditor

Forthe year tne Manager engaged witn 24 compan’es
drectly onarange of ESG related matters These
engagerents were conducted at hotr the board and
serior executive level as wel as duectly with ~vestor
relat ons Topcs of engagement were sp it as follows

Climate Change
Environmental Standards
Labour Standards
Corporate Governance
Human Rights

Tne Marager tracks tre m estores of the ergage~ent
strateqy a~d ~as seer progress th's year om a norbet

af matters Examp.esire gge tne publcation of

sLsta nabi tyreports and board accoutab ity or ruman
rignts r'sk manageme-t

Social

A bodrmgsnave asora forction 1o so™ e extent
provd ~g pacesto ave work eat smop, store ete
Manager~ertof b dings ~eedstoersore ary soc a
chgatonstot~e ococdpants are met ~ tenms of

Hea t & Safety, erpioyee raragerent a~d we be g
a~dcorrtmerttacom L hies Wost of trese

ob gatorsaretrerespo-s ity oftretenartbut our

EfIECT*'"g eron T eTp aees a~d s.cr statements are
<
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Environmental

Erviraonmenta: po icies in the property sector focus
largely or sustamabi ity and climate change Cimate
change s one of the defining ca ienges of modert times

The managerment team have sodrced data and research
from severa' providers, nicluding tne Columbia Threadneedie
Responsib e Irvestment team, MSCland Global ESG
Benchmark for Real Assets { GRESB).

The quant ty and dept™ of data ava'lable in our sector
varies greatly, tre arger companies now have teams
dedicated to providing environmerta impact data and
reporting However many of our comparies are sma. and
do nol currently have the resources to contribute data

10 the organisations providing analys.s to the ‘nvestor
community As a consequence, we see strong correlations
between company size, matunty and overall scores Since
ourinvestmert strategy leads us to own focused mid-sized
companies ir prefererce 1o some of the larger divers fled
ones, the portfoios overall ESG score mignt tend to be
unflattering compared o the wider benchmark The nigour
of our process ensures that these companies receive
scrutiny by the team.

GRESE is a mission-driven and investor-led organisat.on
providing standardised and va-dated ESG datato the
capital markets. Established in 2009, GRESE now covers
over USD 5tri.ion inrea estate assets, publisting 1) an
arnua:real estate assessment score for participating
comparies, and i} a public d'sclosure score for aii listed
real estate companies. The rea! estate assessment score
ranks Eavironment, Social and Goverrance metrics based

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

2023

Rated i 66% ) 62%
Unrated ) 34% 38%
Total 100% _100%

on data contributed directly frorr participating companies,
whilst the public disclosure score eva.uates the -evel of ESG
d'sciosure by I'sted property companies ard REl s,

Further deta or GRESE can be found at
wiww gresh com

For 2023 there s ncreased GRESE Real Estate
Assessment coverage of the Compary s equity portionc
(66% frort 50%;.

German residentra’ compamnes representing 11.6% of the
‘ndex do not submit data to GRESB due to the requirement
to submit data at the asset or bi” ding level and concerns
around fair comparisons of data aggregation. We continug
to ergage with GRESB, encodraging them to modify the
requirements to encolrage wider patticipation,

MSCI ESG research covers a wide range of environmental
impact measures inc.uding COZ and greenhouse gas
emissions, energy and waterusage, in addition to wider
corporate gavernarce scores. Further detail can be found at
WWWW MISCI COMY/OLI-Solutons/esg-Invest rg/esg-rat ngs

Coverage of our sector reduced from 99% to 96% ard the
Company's portfol.o mcreased fiom 89% to 6%, Where
coverage is based on public data, a sigrificant proport:cn
1s nc.uded, whereas where specific data has to be
submitted by comparies the caverage s currently muc
thinner

The tab e be ow compares coverage by both data
providers year 00 year

% 4% 4% 4%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Source GRESE,MSC . Colurbiz Treadneedle nvestments Data as at 31 02 2023 Fund expesure calculated as the ™ weight of the iInvested equity portic .

2022 _ _ _ GRESB
~ Real Estate Assessment |

Rated  s0% o

Unrated 50% 46%

Total 100% " 100%

Public Disclosure 5
Fﬂﬁd_ - Benchmark__

Q7% 97% 88% 99%

3% 3% 11% 1%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Gource CGRESE MSCI Colurt: 2 ™ readneedie nvestrients Lataas at 21 03 2027 Fund cxposure caiculaterd as the ». veerght oF the invested equ ty portfohio

Annuzl Report & Accountg 2023
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Responsible investment
continued

We continue 1o col'ect data or emissiors arnd compare
to proryears with tre empnas s be.ng mare on direct o
of travel than t1e absclute measores themrselves. This
IS @S0 al area wnere we expect to see further change
wher s alse explaired

For the year ended 31 March 2022 we disciosed, as best
we were able to, the portfono-weighted carbon mtenstty
of the total portfoio for te first time

Carbar R sk measares exposure {0 carbeor intensive
companies MSCls definition ard ca'cuiation, witr

data based on MSCI CarbornMetrics, s tre portfolio-
weighted average of issuer carbon niens'ty Atthe
ssuer leve! carbor intersity 's the ratic of annud
scope 1 and 2 carbor erssicrs o annuai rever Le
Carbor R'sk:s categorized as Very Low {C 1o <15),

Low {(1510<70), Moderate (70 1o <250) High {25C 1o
<H25) ard Very H'gr (=525}, The Carbor Risk of the
equity portfolio measured at the “inarcial year end was
A2 67T CO2E/SM Sales (2022 63 3 T CC2E/SM Saies),
fanagwithintne ow 1 sk MSC! category The Compary's
porifolio-we'ghrted carbon ntensity was ower than that
of the benchimark of 49 8 T COZE/SM Sa es

Corpanng aga 1st treresu 1s from last year s1icws a
headiire ¢ 31% decrease in carbon rtensity for botn our
own eguity portfol ¢ and -18% fortre index Théere are a
number of reascrs for tris. Whilst the ratio s a snapshkct
taker at each financiai year erd reflectirg the charge

M equitly holdings over the pericd, there s alsowder
coverage of data at tre 2023 firancia, year end {98°%
forthe currert year fund ~oldimgs vers.s 89% for t-e
priar year; Toe atest em ssiors data for each compary
s captured by MSCl o pubication of ther data each
compaTy s otie eas ngirer data at the sar-e poirt
sotm ng differences wilarse Tneratow! also be
irpacted by tre changing va e of $Saes no udirgthe
mpact of FX rates However vt rirese i iators
e Car bereasorab v corfidert trat tme Jarbom R sk of
treportfor ¢ s ~pro.y ~gacdcoorrent y better tran tre
bercrrark

T CO2E/SM Sales
0

0 - . -

202

o8]

2022
& TR Property rpogtrent TTost

F73E LPRA-NARET Developed Eurcpe Cepped ndex

[7 order to attempt to give a prcture of the direction of
travel, we Fave locked at the dvidua comparies the
Comrpany ho ds 1o assess which have improvirg or
deteriorat'~g carbor intersity Tetr:cs over three and
‘lve year penods

Tnis analys s deperds upon the integr ty of the
Lnderlying oata ard breadth of data coverage, 50 we
would caction that th's s a work r progress. but it
rdicates a positvetrend as awareness mproves ard
compar es are oblged to disciose data

3yr
momentum

5yr
momentum

] IMProvIng
Detenorating
u Neutral

By ~omner of compan es Iprov g werere end of per od
va e & esstran start of penod Detenorat “g wrereerg
ver od va e s greater 2yrs Data for 47 of 67 stocks

vis Dataor42of 61 stocks

'

'

—
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For the propérty sector, the focus 1s currently on the
energy efficiency of bu idirgs once they are occup’ed,
but we expect in tirme more attention wil be paid to tae
carbon emitted in getting the'n built and eventua y
d-srrantled wh'cn accounts for a large proportior of a
building's emss’ons over us lifespan.

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOLIC

Sustarabi ity s core to the strategy of the direct property
portfono wh.ch we invest .r, nold and manage on beralf
of snareho-ders a~d tnis has been a key focus for the
mManage™Ment teair v 1neir asset management approach.

Certral to the year's approach was energy corsumption
As the primary scurce of carbon emissiors within the
portfolio, a prionty over the :ast tweive months has
beento gar a ciear understanding of the consumption
Mtersity across tne portfolio, establish rg a benchmark
from wh ¢ we can rrap the strategy to manage tne
gaviraamenta impact of these assets through energy
saving irterventions This data collection allows us to
fix tre base year from which to set out future targets as
we i as a clear path toward a net zero carbon portfolio
Alongside this we have also worked Pard to future-proof
the portfolio against the forthcoming Minimum Energy
Efficiency Sta~dards

We also recognise that the buit envronment plays a
fundarmental role in the Iife of local communities. As a
landiord t~e Compary continues to enhance its social
engagerent witn the loca: community stakeholders
atour assets. We also strive to work with local suppy
chan partners to deliver a best-in-c'ass service far our
occwp ers, whilst also supporting the local economies
surrounding our assets Th:s helps us demonstrate the
socal value we br'rg to communit.es, occuplers and
snareholders.

The final strand to our apploack ‘s governance

Th's forms tne foundation for how we manage our
properties. The manager operates a Sustainability and
Sociai Responsib ity Commnittee which focuses on the
imrplementation and devery of all ESG mit'atives and
prov des full transparency on our proactive hands-on
appreacn From this we can execute our environmental
and social responsib ties. We are only ab e to ach’eve
oLr geals through a jo™ed up approach wik our property
manager, energy consaltart ard other key partrers wta
whoT we work

D latele

firnua Report & Accounis 7025

I tast year's report we dentified the three key piltars

to estabi'sn the foundation for the delivery of cur ESG
stralegy These three pilais namey Asset Energy
Performance (Enviionmert), Occuapier Engagement
(Soea) and Operational Perfarrmance (Governance)
cont.nue to nav'gate the Managerment Team towards the
successfulieal’sat.on of cur ESG strategy

Whilst the sigrificant progress immade over tne last 12
months remforces our com™tTent 1o acheve net zero
carbon by 2050, our uit'mate goa stoambitious y
mprove on 1his 2050 target To that erd, we have
nstructed net zero acdits across the portfotio to faciitate
Ls 1 identifying exactly how we can biing this target
forward from 2080, This strategic framewoirk will be
driver by scierce-based targets in a cost-eficient
marmner, and we wili be art.cuating our improved
pathway cver the forthcoming year

Environmental

Accurate data co'lection ard transparent reporting are
integral to our goal of reducing carbon emissions across
our portfolio. We bave put in place a rumber of init.atives
to this end which are cutined below

Reliable and accurate data co lection s the cornerstone
1o understanding the carbon mtensity of our assets. Th's
g ves us the ability to set ambitious targets to reduce
tnhe carbor intensity and Scope 1 and 2 emissicns for
botr ourselves ard aur oceupiers 7o th.s end we have
been working in collaborat-or with our stakenolders

to implement a pregramme {o install actomatic meter
readers {AMRS") across the portfolio to enable the
accurate measurement and moritoring of each asset’s
energy corsumptior THis consamption data 1s now
being coliated and analysed by the property industry-
recognised SIERA+ platform This means we can
rmeasure energy corsamption and access 'ive data
whicn we can analyse and then use to shape our building
operat'or dec.siens  The AMRS bave also provided the
dataset which wuil form part of the Company’s inacgural
GRESB submission currently underway, setting the
benchmark for future ESG performance Witk orgo rg
access to this ful'y transparent and |'ve dataset we can
take control of our carhon ermssions with ‘ntegrty ard
pinpoint exactly where furtber " mprovements car be
achieved
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Responsible investment
continued

As outhred inthe 1ast report a key objective fortre Furd
was 1o commence 118 ‘irst GRESB submission NMow that
we have an accurate dataset of carbon corsumptior, we
have been able ta begir the first GRESE subrmission for
2027723 Theresllts of this submriss’on wi'l be ava'lable
n Ccteber 2023 and fromi th s we wil: be able 1o dent fy
furtter sustainab’lity opportanit es and enharce our
strategy towards ret zero Thisis a signficant v lestone
for the Compary and GRESB wil enabie us to measure
0ur ESG performance with-na L~ formr and giobal v
estahushed piatform

Anotier key e ement to maragirg the carbon ntens'ty
of the portfol'cis through the implenentat or of Green
Leases Clauses across the portfolio. It nas enab ed Ls
to embed our net zero comritrTents irto tne formal
structure wthn which we lease oJdr assets. sett ng out
a rrutuai agreemrent between landiord and occupier

to strive to roprove energy efficencies and reduce
carbon emissions generated by the assets Trey also
prov de a forma: frarewotk for the Company to work
wit™ ocoLpiers or our data coilection workstream n
rstances where we are rot r control of the Lttty supp y
This in turn strergthens our abil ty to enforce carbon
intens ty targets ard gam furtner contre! of Scope 1 and
Z Brm $$:0NS

Furtrer contia, of carbon errissions has been acnieved
tarough the successful trans tion of ail energy across
and ord areas for tne whele portfohio to rerewahle
sources Tmis saportfcic-wide mtatve and 100% of
lardiord electrc ty and gas suppl €s are now confracted
on certified greer tar ffs backed by tre Cfger reguiated
Reqewab.e Energy Guarartees of Crigr (REGO! scnere

Fro~ 1 Apr 20232 co~~ergalientla properties
arereqgdredto~ave ar EPC of E or better Tne drect
property portfoi o corrent y meets these standards and
cveia treportfe o's ERC profie swe lpaceaforite
srort-termreqa remetts ard e proved rat ~gs nave bese

acre.edorertte ast 12 —o-trg

Two s gaifica~t ace everents of note are the
Tproverient of tre two EPC G rat ngs withir the
portfo e te Band Cratngs and increasirg the
percertage of assets row guahfying for EPC ratirgs
by aver 20%. Tus nas been accomphshed througn
deta led operat onal analysis of our assets and the
nrp ementaton of energy sav ng ennarcements

1118 1Important 1o note that the increase nErating s

due to changes in the assessmert critena and the
Taorty of the E and Diatirgs are at Wardsworth where
the strategy is 1o etner comp ete a comprenensive
refurbysamert or g fu' -scae redeveloprert - the e d
term. Work onthis project w .l complete prior to the 2230
MEES standard wh ¢~ wirl requ re a mrimurm EPC of

B Oncethispioject has been de veredtne percertage
of tae portfolic by ERV acmieving 2030 comp'.ance wi i
ncrease to 88%  Tnisis before ary otner ennarcemerts
arenrpengnted

Farther to this, the Company has naw raised the target
of achievngamimrLm EPCrat rgto the minimum of a
B for all pla~red refurbisnments and upgrade works ta
the portfa ‘o This forms part of the w der ESS focused
refurb snmert checkust

EPC (% of ERV)

E: 8%
(2022 6%}

5. 58%
(2022:47%

C &%
(2022 13%

TRPropery Ireestrar: Tras:



The Company nas been working closely with the major
terant of our industnal estate 1 Gloacester to install
PY cells or the roof of the bunding to generate cheap,
wow carbon {carbon neatral) erergy on site  Infusion,
who package specia st teas for a number of hugh-end
31d party customers have been a key tenant on the
estate sirce purchase :n 2015 ard sustanability s key
to the compary etnos The installation of PV cells ar
the raol was a cut'ca: developrent for the cormpany n
‘tg path towards net zero carbon. Results to date have
been very positive with 80% of the onsite generation
being consumred on s.te and the balance being exported
tognd Infusior project that 756% of ther total anrua
electricity corsumptior will be generated on site

Tre key facts of the installation are
+ System Size - 244 8kWp
« Year 1 Generation Prediction — 231.752kWh's
« COZ 3aving per annum - 49 1onnes

EPC improvement from C rating ta B
This rugely successful project demaenstrates cur
occcupler-focused, oppartunity-led approach whereby we
Fave cnampioned our occupier's success in achieving
the'r sustainability goals whiist also improving the
ervirgmmental profile for the portfo io Fo. owing this

success we are investigat g ‘nstaling PV onto the
remaning Jnits on the estate.

Phaleie]

Anrual Report & Accoants 7025

‘Infusion GB are extremely commutted to reducing our
environmental footprint and the installation of Solar

PV at Gloucester was a critical step towards this. The
proactive engagement of TRPIT was instrumental to this
and enabled us to nstall a self-generating power scurce
to our butldings This iitiative has been mceredibly weli
recerved by customers, suppliers and employees alike”
Bruce Stevers Commercia Director Infusien GB
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

The rmaragement team has continced actively to engage
with occupiers to support and potentially invest ir therr
ESG object ves. Commuication and codaboration plays a
centra. role in achevinrg ESG goals

A quarterly ESG newsletter s now pubhished and

c rculated with occupiers to encodrage engagertent Key
content for the rewsletter \ngiades rviting occuplers

to part.cipate In the AMR stz latior programme,
commJnity ergagernert int at'ves and raising biodiversity
awareness across the portfo o wn'ck nc'ude the
irstallation of bird boxes and bug notes at Gloucestel

At Wandswortn we have successfully managed to
ntegrate a critica -ocal comrunity partner into Ferrer
Street trroagh tne lettirg of Un.t 16 1o the Wandswaorth
Foodbark. By ett ngtheunit at ril rent we rave enab ed
them to cont.rue to support pecple and farles fac ng
severe Pardship across Wandswortn Borougn 17 tre
astyear over 11 JO30 emergency food parcels were
provided 1o 0ca househo ds in severe hardsnip Wina
larger faci ity at Ferr er St they nave beer ab'e to "crease
t~er emergercy food provision by 71% througnoat tre
borougr a~a delver directly to trose Fowseno ds who
car-ot access the r We come Centres,

‘Wandswonth Foodbank are extremely gratefulto TR
Property investment Irust ior enaling cul move 1o
Ferner St The waréhouse provides us wilhh a space [
recerve, s0rt and store jarge amounts of donated food,
and dispatch it to our seven Welcome Centres and
directivio people s hiames We are regilv grateful for tmis
”efrﬂér Mg ag e Support foca

s.s Darn Frim y,

is thvougn the
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Tne Colonnades 18 also central to the cormmunity
lardscape of the Bayswater atea and it isvtaltnat it s
fully integrated irto this environment We have continued
to work with our local cormunity partrers at the
Co.ornades over the last 12 months to Pelp & 'eviate the
cna: enges of rough s eepers in the Bayswater area.

Governance

Inarder to dedver our £S5 targets tis essential that our
internal management structure s fully aligred w th our
slrategy. The Sustarab ity and Sccia Responsibiity
Comrittee meets on a bimontnly bas's to ensure tnat we
are on track wth our Sestamability Roadmap objectives
through the tnorough rev.ew of current mitiatives and
‘mplementatior. The Cormmitiee works n partnersnip
with our managing agents (Stiles Harrold Willams)

to ensure we mainta n a sustairable supply chain

which comrplements our ret zero carbon goals, Thisis
demonstrated throudh objectives set 1o ensure 100%

of waste matenal under iandlord control is not sert to
ardfill Tre accreditation of our managing agent to Safe
Contracter also demonstrates our commitment 1 paying
al directly employed staff on our assets a real Lving
Wage In addition, the maragement team attend reguiar
ESG training events and semrars, cont nuing cur internal
educatior arcund ESG and making sure that all avenues
are beng explored tc achieve positive outcomes across
the portfoilo.

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

Thiz sigrificant progress over the last twe.ve months
demonstrates our firm commitmert to bring forward cur
net zero carbon 2050 strategy. Througr our thorough
carbo~ censumption data management. GRESB

subm ssian and MEES improvements we v | be able

to clearly set out our key objectives for the farthcoming
yeal

We wii continue to expand our AMR progranmme {o
ma):dm se our comprehensve dataset on Sierra+. This
will provide further ingignt inte how we canidentify and
imrplement energy saying measures, targetng Scope 1
and 2 emissions.

In October 2023 we w il have the Company's iInaugura’
GRESE ratirg From s we w. | be able analyse the
results to formulate a robust strategy to strergthen this
rating and target a~ nerease of at ieast one star for the
next submission

Annual Feport & Accodnts 2022

In order to further futureprocf the portfolio against MEES
we wil cortinue to track our exposure to meffiicient
assets through regular EFC analysis By reduc ng the
portfolio’s relance on foss [ fuels ard implemerting
further rencwable energy sources through sciar PV we
wilcart-ae to dive down the higher EPC 1ated assets

Over tre next twelve months we will strengther our
maragement of Scope 3erussons We wi' continue 1¢
col aborate witn our supprers and occupier s 1o adopt
more sLstanable practices reduce therr re-arce or
fossil fuels and delver best ‘1 class asset managenent
to mmpiove our pathway to net zere carbon tirougn
carefully plarned and de.ivered "terventions

By si.ccessfully achievng these objectives aver the
forthcoming year we expect to be able to declare
an amrbitioLs imiprovement on cur net zero carbon
corrmitment, boinging it ferward from 2050.
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Portfolio

as at 31 March
2022 2022 0.5%

£000 %
UK Securities’
- quoted 385,876 40.5 518,417 332
UK Investment Properties ) 73,957 7.7 96,255 . 6.1
UK Total 459,833 48.2 614672 393
Contingntal Europe Securities
-guoted 488,839 513 940744 602
Investments held at fair value 948,672 99.5 1,555476 985
- CFD {creditor)/debtor? __ __4882 05 7657 05 ,
Total Investment Positions 953,334 100.0 1,563,073 100.0 @ UK Securities
UK Property
| " Continental Europe
as at 31 March . Securities
] 2022 2022 CFC Debtors/Creditors
£'000 %
UK Securities
- guoted 385,876 35.7 518,417 256
- CFD exposure? 75,963 7.0 57,324 29
UK Investment Properties _ 739657 7.0 96255 5.5
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671,996 340
Cantinental Europe Securities
- gquoted 488,839 452 940,744 595
- CFD exposure? - .. 54943 51 87318 65
Total investment exposure? 1,079,578 100.0 1,.700.058 1000
£31 March # Secg__r_\_ﬂés
s A 2022 2021 2020 2019 UK Property
Total investments £949m £1,555m £1.407m  £1,155m £71,29"m
Net assets £868m £1.563m £1326m £i136m  £1328m
JK guoted property shares 41% 33% 28% 3% 33%
Overseas quoted property shares 51% 60% 66% 61% 5¢%
Direct property (externally valued) . B% 6% &% 8% 8%
as at 31 March
2023 2022 2022
Benchmark Company Benchmark
. % % %
GBP 351 339 33.6
EUR 42.3 41 3 479 4z 3
CHF 9.9 9.5 74 71
SEK 13.8 38 63 163
NOK 0.4 0.3 o5 o4

JK serurtes o uses ane ur sled ne ding 'L 00E

Met arrea s=d- asg on CVD senteits e d 2z bz

ensesnzel et deblor
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Investment portfolio by country
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Market Market
value value
; % %
Belgium Sweden
Xior Student Housing 15,267 16 Wihlborgs 21,999 2.3
Aedifica 8,959 0% Fastighets Balder B 19,804 21
Care Property Invest 7,191 07 Catena 11,166 1.2
Icade 5,457 06 Sagax 10,677 1.1
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 3,476 0.4 Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget 8,410 09
Montea 1,732 0.2 Fabege 6,382 0.7
Warehouses De Pau 1,429 0.1 Pandox 3,939 0.1
Shugard Self Storage 601 0.1 Platzer Fastigheter 2,706 03
44,112 4.6 Atrium Ljungberg 1,493 01
""" o Cibus Nordic Real £state 1,274 01 g
France Fastighets Neobo _ 742 01 3
Gecina 34,321 36 o ) 88,592 9.3 g
Klepierre 29,984 3.1 ®
Argan 22,445 2.4 Switzerland
Covivio 16,785 1.8 Psp Swiss Property 40,606 472
Carmiia 5,741 0.6 Swiss Prime Site ) _ 25,547 2.7
Altarea o 1,170 01 66,153 69
- 110,446 116
i T United Kingdom
Germany Segro 79,223 8.3 %
Vonovia 72,456 76 Safestore Holdings 42,509 4.5 §
LEG Immaobilien 14,868 16 Picton Property income 32,628 3.4 o
TAG Immobilien 13,014 1.3 industrials REIT 28,318 3.0 z
Arcundtown 4310 05  LandSec 28,199 3.0 E:
- 104,648 110 Sirius Real Estate 23,664 2.5 8
- : Phoenix Spree Deutschland 23,137 24
Netherlands Great Portland 22,973 2.4
Eurocommercial Properties 24,767 2.6 Ediston Praperty 19,440 20
NEI 2,902 0.3 Londonmetric Property 17,115 18 c
Unibail Rodamco Westfield 2,110 0.2 Unite Group 15,219 1.6 2
- -7 20779 31 CT Property 14,262 15 3
T ' Workspace 13,390 1.4 E]
Norway Tritax Blg Box REIT 7,033 07 ;
Entra 2,500 04 Supermarket Income REIT 2,909 03 S
’ © 3,509 04 Hammerson 2,827 0.3 2
’ ' Warehouse REIT 2,700 03 :6:
Spain Atrato Cap 2,573 0.3 5
Merlin Properties 26,908 2.8 Urban Logistics REIT 2,494 0.2
Arima Real Estate 10,531 1.1 Shaftsbury 1,709 0.2 g
inmabiliaria Colonial 4,161 0.4 Helical 1,408 C.1 3
41,600 4.3 Cap & Regional 1,205 0.1 %
T Newriver REIT _ 941 0.7 g
) 385,876 40.5
Direct Property 73,957 78
CFD Positions (included in
current assets and liabilities) 4,662 0.5 g
o
Total Investment Positions 953,334 100.0 g
&
=]
Notes §
- Companies s90wn by country of lsting s
b=

~ The above posihans are the privsical ioldings neluded 0 the nvestraents eid atfa < walue o the Ba'ance Shest “he OF O poeslons s thenetofl the prof Lor ossonthe

CFC contizcis {1e not the investment exposuret neinded nithe Bzlance Sneet cur-ent assets and abi mes

]

Arnuz Repor: & Accodnts 2023



Twelve

; SEGRO

371 March 2022
Shareholding -
value ~ £792m £77.3m
% of investrment

portfolio’ 7.3% 4.5%
% of equity

owned __09% _ 0s5%
Share price 768p 1346 0p
Segro (UK)

Segrois the largest UK RETT by market cap
and is the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listedin the UK, with a
total portfolio of €. £18bn (split c.62.0%in
the UK, ¢.38.0% in Cantinental Eurape, with
¢ 56.0% urban warehouses. €.26.0% big
boxes and ¢ 18.0% land and other uses)

in the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics
Rental growth inthese markets has been
extremely Strong as there remains an
acute supply-demand imbalance, fuelled
by tenants’ requirements to deal with the
growth in e-commerce.

InEurope, Germany and France are the
group's largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outicok (and are
geographically less space-constrained). In
2H22 UK valuations saw a sharp correction,
while EU valuations have lagged the
aggressiverepricing of the UK. Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
rmanages iargely to pre-let and develop at
yields significantly in excess of investment
values (c 6-7% yeld on cost vs. an EPRA
net inital yield of 3 7% at FY22) This has
been & successful formula to drive both
earnings and NAV growth, as well as high
shareholder returns.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +45 7%

t Notes:
Theperientzge 27 nessteent pootio L oS tons st aut abo. e no ude exposures tioud TR oo betatae nd
- Thef e otz enzreno e retune atetas t=tuns ntas otz surens, oftns o dng
e
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largest equity investments

VONOVIA

31 March 2022
Shareholding
value _£72.5m £1499m
% of investment

portfolio’ 6 7% 88%
% of equity

owned 06% _ 05%
Share price €17.34 €42.21

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonovia is a German listed residennal
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalisation. Atthe end of 2022. the
company owned a portfolo of c.€85.85n,
primarily split between Germany (c.88.9%
of value), Sweden (¢.7.4%) and Austria
{c.3.7%). The portfolio has increased
dramatically and stands at 548,000 units,
following a string of acguisitions, mostly
of listed peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hermbla, Victoria Park. and BUWOG,

Vonovia is involved in the whaole value chain

of the residential sector, via its rental business
{¢.80.7% of group EBITDA), third-party
development segment (C.6.7%), recurnng
sales segment (¢ 4.9%), 1ts value-add
segment (energy, multimedia, and other
services segment, ¢ 4 6%) and its nursing
segment {c 3.0%). The German residentia:
sector remains heavily regulated, yet Vonovia
has continually been able to generate solid
rent growth (+3.3% in 2022), whilst also
complying with regulations and assuming a
social rale, which permits therr to benefit from
critical politcal goodwill and partnerships (as
observed by the 20000-unit portfolic sate to
the State of Berinin 2027) Eventhough asset
values have came Jnder pressure, as seen
with all real estate asset classes, cperationally
the business cortinues to perform strong'y as
seen by FFO | growth of 14.6% p/s, driven by
operational imorovernents and heaithy rent
growth. Moreover, market evidence points

to further upward rev'sions ta rent growth
estimates as the supply cemand imbalance in
Germany Dersists,

"he five-year total shareholder returr has
beer-45 7%,

E "<

31 March

Shareholding

value £59 6m  £67.5m
% of investment

portfolio’  55% 3.6%
% of equity

owned 1% 1.0%
Share price £20.85 €2418

Klepierre (France)

Kiépierre is a French REIT, which owns,
operates, and manages a portfolic of
Eurcpean shopping céntres, spanning ten
countries. At the end of 2022, the company
owned a portfolic of c €16 .8bn, with major
exposures nFrance (¢ 38 3% of value),
Italy {c.23 8%), Iberia (.13 0%}, Germany/
Netherlands (¢ 9 7%), and the Nordics
(€.8.7%) The company, ke all shopping
centre awners, has reaped the benefits of
a return to normality as social gathenngs
are permitted and travel restrictions have
heen Iifted demonstrated in its strong
rebound in footfall and tenant sales. While
the ongoing shift towards e-commerce
as aretail channel has continued it has
al a slower rate, even retreating In certain
markets, with digitally native retailers
pivoting to physical by opening stores. (n
arelative basis, the company continues 1o
benefit from its 100% focus or Continental
Eurcpe, without any exposure to weaker
UK and US markets. Lastly, the company
benefits from the experience of the
Chairman, David Simen, alse Chairman
and CEQ of Simon Property Group, which
owhs a £ 22.3% stake in Klépierre.

In 2022, EPS growth was +18.7% Yo,
benefiting from accelerating indexatior
and occupancy #Mmproverments, with
EPRA NTA broadly flat YoY. Meanwhile,
1's financial metnics remain conservative
with a net debt to EBITDA of 7 9xand an
EPRA LTV 0f .43 7%, Its average cost of
debtislow atjust ¢ 1.2%. andis expected
1orerralr low, as evidenced by its high
hedging ratic of ¢ 30.0% and weightea
average loan matunty of & 5 years

The five-year tota: sharehoider return has
Heen -4.5%

duz postc nAdtEpoto o
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- fLandSecurities 5|

31 March 2022

Shareholding

value - £59.3m £45.2m

% of Investment

portfolio! _ 55% 2 7%

% of equity

owned o 13% 08%
Share price 621p 786p

Land Securities (UK)

Landsecis one of the UK's largest REITs,
with a portfolio valued at ¢ £11bn The
company’s assets are a mix of offices
{c.51.0%}, retail assets (¢.36.0% split
between shopping centres and outlets)
and other uses (¢.13.0% such as leisure
assels, retall parks and hotels), ¢ 67.0%
of the assets are in central London.

Since joining the business in 2020 new
CEO Mark Allen has sought to alter the
company’s strategy, pledging to sell out
of its non-core assets (e.g. hotels, leisure
assets and retail parks), while ncreasing
the size of the development pipeline 1o
focus onlarge mixed-use schemes that
others do not have the capabilities to
deliver. In addition to the established office
deveiopment pipeline the company now
plansto spend an additional £1 5bn over
five years onmixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target. Balance
sheet management has been relatively
conservative with a very long debt
maturity of 10 9 years as at September
2022 netdebt 10 EBITDA of 8.7x and LTV
at Septernber 2022 of 31% (and lower
since that date foliowing disposals of
large office assets including 1 New Street
Square). The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the development pipeline,
avoiding gearing up despite capex spend,
andhas a medium-termiarget of LTV
remaining in the mid-30s.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-17 0%,

1 Notes:

gecina

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value ~£524m  £440m
% of Investment

portfolio! - 48% 2.6%
% of equity

owned ~ . 08%  06%
Share price £€9555 £114.3

Gecina (France)

Gecina s the largest French REIT

andis one of the largest real estate
companies in Continental Eurcpe by
market capitalisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was valued at ¢ €20.7bn,
comprising of offices (¢ .80.0% of value),
residential (¢.18.0%), and student
accommodation (.2.0%;).

Gecina develops, manages, and owns

a diverstfied portfolio, which s heawily
skewed toward the Paris region {c.97.0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris inrecent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
much-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
quality portfolio As aresult, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-inked
rents, positive reversion and a material
ncrease in occupancy levels YoY which
allhelped to drive 7.4% EPS growth YoY.
Asset values during FY22 were broadly
flat (-0 6% including value creation from
pipeline), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
stronger indexation, and highlights the
high quality of the portfolic

The company is one of a handful of
European real estate companies with an
Arating from Moody's and S&P given its
conservative financial profile, operating
with an EPRA LTV of ¢ 36 8%, The average
costof debtis low at ¢.7.2%, alongside a
high hedging ratio of ©.90.0%, and a long
welghted average loan maturity at 7 5
VEars.

The five-year total shareholder return has
heen-15.4%

P _

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value ) £42.5m  £60.4m
% of investment

portfolig’ 3.9% 36%
% of equity

owned 2% 21%
Share prire as0p 1310p

Safestore (UK)

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning c.160 stores, primarily
In the UK (and werghted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores). In addition the company
has a large footprint In the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new European cites (through both JV
structures and outright ownership) taking
foctholds in Holland, Spain and Belgium.
Safestore has a bestinclass operating
platform which, along with peer Big Yellow,
allows it to dominate the UK storage
market, particularly in terms of online
search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like cccupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions. The setf-storage market also
performed extremely strongly during the
COVID-19 pandemic and has repeatediy
shown its resilient credentials during wider
economic turbulence

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +119 6%

» Tme percentage of mvestroent portfolin posiions set ot above niciude exposures through CFE for bothine ndividuai positong and e portfo io

e hive vear tolal shareht del “elns are e retums inthe ool curency of the holding

Arrual Reoort & Accounts 2023
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

[ R

(SRR I O S
twm gy,
31 March 2022
Shareholding
value £40.6m  £446m
% of investment
portfolio! 37% 2.6%
% of equity
cwned 0% 10%
Share price CHF1040 CHF1215

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Property is ane of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies, owning

a diversified portfolio of high quality

real estate assets in Switzerland. At the
end of 2022, its portfolic was valued at
CHFS.4bn, comprising of offices (c 64.0%),
retail (¢ 16.0%), foed (c.6 0%), and

other (¢.14.0%). The portfoho s skewed
towards Switzerland's key economic
centers, iInciuding Zunch (¢ 57.0%, Geneva
(c.14.0%), Basel (c.B.0%). and other major
citiesatc 21.0%

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be halding up well
Transactional evidence is light, but from
the few transactions taking place it seems
that property values for prime assets are
broadly stable Similarly, demand for office
space n economic centers such as Zurich
and Geneva 1s expected to remain strong
As aresult, PSP made further progress
during the year on its vacancy reduction,
lowering vacancy from 3.8% to 3.0% at
Dec 23, and saw hke-for-like rents grow by
+2.2%: all thisled to EPRA EPS growth of
+4.7%. Moreover, EPRA NTA still grew 3%
over the year an modesi revaluation gains
andretained earnings. LTV remained low
at 32 6%; amongst the lowest levels for
European property companies whie its
curren: costof debt s fxed far 4 7 years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
neen+371 4%,

t+Notas:

0
[

P

A

. s VICTON
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £37.3m  £35.9m
% of investrment

portfolio” _3.4% 2.7
% of equity

owned . 98% 6.7%
Share price 69p 28p
Picton (UK)

Picton s a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industrial. The
£850m portfaolio, as at September 2022,
was .58 0% industrial, ¢.32 0% offices
(of which ¢.22 0% London and the South
East) and ¢.10.0% retaill (of which ¢.7 0%
retall park). Along with a high quality asset
portfolio, where renta! growth and capital
value performance have repeatedly beaten
relevant benchmarks, the company 1s

run conservatively, taking very limited
development risk as well as maintaining

a very strong balance sheet. For example,
the company’s LTV as at December

2022 was ¢.26 0%, with long-dated debt
maturity (c 10 years) and very limited
near term refinancing requirements In
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

a number of valuabie asset management
opportunities, including both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space
and the potential for residential conversion
in certain assets which could provide
lucrative upside versus current valuations.

The five-year total sharehoider return has
beer -0.4%

ssuresthoudn LFL ‘o

e n ding

industrials

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £34.5m  £53 3m
% of investment

portfolic’ _32% 31%
% of equity

owned _98%  92%
Share price 118p 198p

Industrials REIT (UK)

Industrials REIT s 2 UK focused

mult-let industrial business. The partfolio
has been transformead over a number of
years 1o focus solely on the UK ML sector,
and the £660m portfolio is now ¢ 95% MLI
(as at September 2022) Over a number
of years the UK ML! asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by

both yield compression and ongoing ERV
growth {in the 12 months to December
2022 industnals REIT has seen LfL ERV
growth of +10.5%), with rents coming from
alow base (average passing rent in the
portfolic was £5 94 at December 2022). In
addition to its stirong underlying property
fundamentals the company's Hive
operating platform gives the company
access to data on enguiry levels and
demand, as well as allowing for nnovative
cperational approaches such as the

use of digitai short-form smart ieases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfolio vacancy.
Total sharehclder return since IPO in June
2078 has been +29.0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstone ata
premium of +42.0% t¢ the closing price
pefore the offer was made.

The total shareholder return since listing
{15/06/18) has been +29.0%

stae gL dus pos teos zndinepo e o
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SMERTIN

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value - £269m  F47.8m
% of Investment

portfolio! 2.5% 2.8%
% of equity

owned _ 08% 1.7%
Share price £8.06 €10.59

Merlin Properties (Spain)

Merlin Praperties is a Spanish diversified
REITwith & ¢ €11 .3bn portfolio. The
majority of the company’s assets are
offices {¢. 56 4%), where the company
focusses Its exposure on major cities,
primarily Madrd and Barcelona.
Additionally, the company owns shopping
centres (¢ 18.9%), data centres/logistics
(c.12.4%), with the residual ¢.12.4% of
assets in land and other uses.

As aresult of inflation and continued
tenant demand in the Spanish market, the
business continued to perform well, with
average like-for-like rent growth of 7 3% and
year end occupancy of 95.1% (a 60bps YoY
improvernent). Even though property values
are not insulated from wider market trends
(asset values declined -1 5% YOY) vields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and are therefore likely to provide more
protection going forward. During 2022,
Merlin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, cornprised of 659 bank branches
let to BBVA, forc.€2.0bnata 17% premium
toits book value (the BBVA portfoiio
represented ¢.15% of the total portfolio)

As aresult of this transaction, the company
managed to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps to ¢.35.8% by financial vear
end. This gives the company significant
flexibility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline in combination
outlook for property values. Moreover, its
cost of debt remains low, at an average of
€.2.0%, with a hedge ratio of ©.99.6%, and

a weighted average loan matunty remains
long at 4.9 years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%.

1T Notes:

. PHOENIX
bt Z» SPREE

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _£268m  £51.9m
% of investrment

portfolio! o 2.5% 31%
% of equity

owned 127%  14.7%
Share price 186p 382p

Phoenix Spree {UK}

Phoenix Spree Deutschland is a UK listed
investment company that owns residential
units, exclusively in Berlin, Germany The
company is predominantly investedin
so-called ‘altbau’ properties {typically built
between 1900-1940) which offer features
that remain highly desired by prospective
tenants and buyers Attheend of 2022,
the company’s portfolio was valued at

¢ €776m. The company aims to maxirmze
sharehclder returns by converting

rental yunits inte condominiums and sell
these inthe open market at significantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

to benefit frorm a structural supply and
dernand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specifically, which led t¢ healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6.6% ahead of the prior year. Furthermaore,
increased mortgage costs will likely mean
that many prospective buyers will rent
forlonger as mortgages have become
miore expensive. This will likely [ead to
further upward pressure to market rents,
Nonetheless, property vaiues reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of increased
interest rates, which led 1o a decline in the
EPRANTA of -9 7%, even as average sales
prices were still materially (+22 4%) ahead
of trailing book values. Whilst transaction
volumes have significantly declined as
aresult of Interest rate increases itis
expected that iInvestment volumes should
pick up again once interest rates have
stabilized.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been -40.5%.

e SWI5S PRIME SITE
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _E256m  £274m
% of nvestment

portfgolio” 24% 1.6%
% of equity

owned ) 0.5% 0 5%

Share price CHF76.05 CHF91.25

Swiss Prime Site (Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site 1s one of the largest

real estate companies in Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolio of real estate
assets, coupled with aleading real estate
investment (Indirect} business. 11 owns
adiversified real estate portfolio, which
was valued at CHF13.1bn, comprising of
offices {c.44.0% of value), retail {c 26.0%),
logistics (9.0%), hotels (£.7.0%), with the
residual c.14.0% of assetsin land and
other uses.

Despite a slowdown in transactions,
underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well,
as the faw transactions that did take
place appeared broadly supportive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demand remains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts to simplify its corporate
structure (the sale of Wincasa, a real
estate services company) and exit the
retail business (Jelmoli). Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with like-for-like rent growth of +1.9%
and further vacancy reduction (-30bps

10 4 3%) whilst EPRA NTA increased
modestly with +1.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reduced
by 130bps over the year 10 38.9% and cost
of debt was kept low at 0.9%.

The five-year total sharehclder return has
been +5 9%.

> Thepercentage of nvestment portfol o postions sst out above nclude exposuies through CFD forbotn the nd-adua posit ons and te porticlio

Lnnual Report & Accounts 2023
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail Industrial
West End of London 50.0 - 50.0
Inner London™ 17 376 393
Sauth West - 10.7 10.7
Total 51.7 48.3 100.0

*Inner L ondon defined as nside the Nortn and South Circuiar

Lease lengths within the direct p

010 Syears
51010 years
10 to 15 years
1510 20 years

20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,

London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
TRebel, Specsavers

“he property cammpnses a large

mixed-use block in Bayswater construciec

nthe mid-1270s The site extends to
approximatery 2 acres on the north eas:
corner of the lunction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road, close to
Bayswater tube sistion and crgoing
development of The Whiteley. The
cormmerciat element was extended and
refurbished in 2015 with a new 20 year
1ease beng agreed with Waitrose.

£
r3

roperty portfolio Contracted rent

£29m
f99m
£1415m

Gross rental

income

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
wandsworth, t.ondon, SW18

Sector: industrizal

Tenure: Frechold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: infusion GB, Pulsin Ltd

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sqf1): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betly, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers .

The 10 Centre COMPrises Six Inoustria;
units occupied by three tenants ara
sisorad S-acre site Gloucester
Business Park s located 1o the east of
Jancticn 17 Aof the MS anc ore mile to
the east of Gloucester ity Certre. The
nroperty also has easy accessto the
A417 providing good inks to the t4 via
junction 15.

Site of just over an acre, 50metres ‘rem
Wandsworth Towr railway stat.on iran
area that s predominartly residentiar.
The estate comprises 16 small industnal
Jnits generaliy let to a mix of small to
medum-sized private Companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

TF Srazerivineesimrers Trust
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The Company's investment objective is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
rejated businesses internationally and aisg in
investrment property lacated in the UK.

The benchmark 13 the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterting. The
ndex, calculated by FTSE is free-fioat based and as
at 31 Maich 2023 had 109 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure to any one company o 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
bhenchmark website www epra.com contains further
details about the index and performance.

Busiitess hoaes

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company.
The Company has no employees Its wholly non-
execulive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strateqy; corporate governance;

risk management and internal control; the overall
investrment and dividend policies, setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring
investrnent performance.

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedle
Investment Business Limited as the Company’s
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFNM') with
portfolic management delegated to Thames River
Capital LLP Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Aiban Lhenneur is Deputy Fund
Manager. Gecrge Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager They are
supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 4G to 51.

In accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD’), BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
BNF Paribas alsc provides custodial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on
pages 58 and 59.
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Strategy and investment policies

The investment selection process seeks todent fy
wel managed ccmparies of a'l sizes [ne Managet
genera‘ly regards future growth and cap tal
appreciaton potentialmore h galy trar immed ate
yield o1 discount to asset value,

Alihcugh the nvestrent objective allows for
mvestment o an nternationar basis the Compary's
benchimark s a par-European index and the
rmajority of the irvestimenrts wiil be located in that
geographica area Direct property investrants are
located i tne UK only,

As a dedicated investor in tne property sector

the Company cannot offer diversificatio” oLiside
ratl sector, nowever, within tre portfono there
are I mitat ons, s set oJt below, on the size of
nd vidual mvestrents held to ensare that there s

diversificat or withir tne portfolio

The maximum ho'ding ' the stock of ary one 1Issuer
or of a simgie asset s ited 1o 15% of the portforo
atthe portotacqguisiton Inaddit o any noldings in
excess of 5% of the portfoio must not in aggregate
exceed 40% ¢f the portfol.o

Tre Manager cdrrently appiies tre fo'lowing
gJide nes for asset al ocat on

UK listed equities 25 - 60%
Continental European

listed equities ) _ 45~ 75%
Direct Property — UK ) 0 - 20%
Other listed equities ) 0-5%
Listed bonds C0-5%
Unguoted investments 0-5%

Treasseta:ocal 0” g. de ~eupper ~ tfor UK
sted eac tesas ~creased from 5% to 60" Tne
requrement fortre we grtirgto UK corrmers a
property ~as not cranged rowever the ~ember of
compan es ~o diig rea estale ccatea 1 Europe
hatviina UK strgrasincreased thereforetre

asseta ocato™ gu dedne ~as been oranged 1o
acco~odate tth s
34

The Corrpa~y may empioy leveis of geanng from
time to tme w th the air of entarcing retur-s,
subject to anoveral max mwr of 25% of the portfo 10
value.

[ certanr market condimicns tre Marager ™May
corsider 't prudert net ta eriploy gearing at ail, and
10 hold part of the portfolio In cash

The current asset al'ocat o0 guidelire 1s 15% net
casn to 25% et gearing {as a percertage of portfclio
value)

Investnrert properties ate valued every six months by
an externa rdepsrdentvaluer Valuat.ons of al the
Group's preperties as at 31 Marcn 2023 ~ave been
carned oLt gn a 'RICS Red Book basis ard these
valuaticrs rave been adopted inthe accodnts

The Groap crarges 75% of a~nua! base Marager-ent
fees ard firance costs {o capital, » I 1e with the
Board's expected ‘org-term spli of returns in the
formi of cap ta. gans and ircome A'l performance
fees are charged to cap tal.

it s the Board's curre~t irtent on1to hold no rrore
tran 15% cf tne portfelo 1 Usted closed ended
vestmert corparies

Scre compar es rvestrg ncomrercal or
res.dent al property are structured as asted externay
managed ¢ osed-e~ded irvestre~t comparies

and therefore form part of our avestment L verse
Atnougnths srota Tode sseay favoured by oor
Fo~d Manager, sore rvestments are made i these
structures ~ ¢rder to ascess a particu.ar sector of tre
~arket cr woereire maragertent tear sregarded
asespeca ystro~g Htnose compar.es grow and
hecore a arger part of our rvestment Liverse and.
Or rew ca~par escove to the market ~th s forrat
the Find Manager —ay w 87 1o rorease exposure
totrose ves ces If the Marager w shesto ~crease
vestentto over 15% tre Corpary v make 2n

ar~ource~ert gooord gy

“F Propert, brcestmert Trust



Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’s
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs'):

KPI

The Directors regard the out-performance cf the
Company's et asset value total return relative to
tne bercnmark as be:rg an overaill measure of value
del'vered to tne snareholders’ over the longer term

Board monitoring
The Board reviews the performance in detai at each meetirg
and d'scusses the results and odtlook wit~ the Manager.

KPI

The princ'pal objective of the Company 1s a total
return objective, fowever, the Fund Manager a so
aims to deliver a renable div derd with growth over
the ionger term

Board monitoring
Tre Board rev.ews statements on ircome received 1G
date and income forecasts at each meeting

KPI

wnilst expectation of irvestment performance is a key
driver of the share pr.ce discourt or premium to the Net
Asset Va'ue of an nvestmert trust company over tne
longer term, there are periods when the d-scount can

widen The Board i aware of the vulnerability of 5 sector-

specialist to a change of investor sentiment towards tnat
sector, or to periods of wider market uncertainty and the
impact that can have on the discoJunt

Board monitoring

The Board takes powers at each AGM 1o buy-back and
Issue shares Wnen cons.dering the merits of snare

b.y- hack orissauarce the Board .ocks at a number of
factors, in addihon to the short and longer-term discodrt
or premiam to NAY to assess whether act:on woold be
beneficia to snareholders overall. Particular attention

s pa'dto tne current market sent-ment, the potentia
mpact of any share buy-hack activity on the hquid'ty of
the shares and or Ongoing Charges over the longer term

Annual Renort & Accounrts 2023

Outcome
NAV Total Return* (Annualised) -35.5% -1.8%
Benchmark Total Return {Annualised} -340%  -49%

*“he NAY 1otal Return s caloulated by assuming dividends paid by the
Lompany are remvested n e assets of the Company onthe relevant ex
dwidend date ~he benchimark tota return assumes dividends a-e re-nvested
an e relevant ex dhadend dates

Although this KPI'has not been met in the current year, it

has over Syears The NAV Total Return has exceeded the

benchmark forthe previous 12 years

Outcome
Compound Annual Dividend Growth* - 65% 4.9%
Compound Annual RP 135% 57%

*The final dvidend in the tme series diaided by the in tat dividend in the petied
1aised tothe pawer of 1d vided by the number of years nthe series.

The exceptional inflation figure for the year to 31 March

2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen

behind RPI on both a one and a five year basis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered in the current and

previous 12 years, despite a fall in earnings through the

COVID pandemic. Qver the longer term, the dividend growth

rate has comfortably exceeded RPton anannualised bas:s

(10 years: 8.3% vs 4 0% and 20 years: 10.6% vs 3.6%).

Outcome

A%

Average discount™. o -5.8%
Total number of shares repurchased - -
* average daiy d:iscount throughout the perod of share price tc NAV wath
inco~e Scurce Bloombeg
The discount has seen wide fluctuations threugh the year
as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The
average discount over 1 year is wider than we have seen for
a while however, over b years s at a similar level to the prior
year level of -4 6% and to the ten year average of -4.9%.
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPi
The Board 1s conscious of expenses and ams to
delver a balarce between excellent service and costs

The AIC delimitor of Ongoing Charges includes any
direct property costs in addition to the manage™ent
fees and a'l other expenses incurred in rurning a
publ:cly l'sted compary As no otmer mvestment trust
cormpan:es hold part of thea portfe’io 'n direct property
{they either hold 100% of the'r portfoio as property
securities or as direct property), in add ton to Ongoing
Crarges as defined by the AIC, th s statist'c s showr
vilnout drect property costs ir order to allow a ciearer
corpanson of overall admin.strat'or costs wintrose
of other funds investing ir securities

Board monitoring

Tre Board rontors tre Compary's Ongoing
Crarges '™ compansor to arange of otner
nvestmert trast companies of s'milar size, bot
property sector spec al sts and otner sector

spec ansts Tne broker provides a. st of compan es
It beieves s a reasorahb.e compar son Note there s
no other lirvestment Trust special.sing 11 property
related equ t es.

Experses are budgeted for each firarcia year and
tre Board reviews reperts on actua: and forecast
expenses dur ng the year.

KPI
Tne Copany roest cottimue to meet the reqe rements
of Sect 07 1158 of the Corporat o Tax Act 2010

Board monitoring
Tre Board reviews “na~ciai ~forrat oo and forecasts at
eact meel ~g wn or set oot the requ rererts oot ned o

Sector 1758

ix]
o

Outcome

Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees _ 073% __064%
Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees and direct

property costs 0.67% 0.62%

The Comparys Ongomg Charges are competit-ve wien
compared to the peer group

Costs over tre year have not nereased signficantly; tne
norease Ir tne onge 1y charges percentage s as a result
of the fall in NAV over the vear

Outcome

The Dorectars petieve that tre cond t ors ard 01go g
reguirer-ests nawe heen roet o respect of the year 10
371 Maree 2223 a-d1iat tre Compary w cort ~ue 1o
meetiterequirertemg

Tme KPls are cors dered 1o be 4 terat v Perfor—ance Weasiies as detred ater ~ tre 27 La Pepant

TF Propert s rvestrent Trost



Principal and emerging risks

in delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must atso identify and monitor the

risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. It has included below details of

the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
order to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commodity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks to raise interest rates in response.

Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated. This
nas brought challenges not seen tor many years and particularly impacted the property

sector.

The legacy of COVID-19 has seen ongcing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of resourcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

Tne shares of the Company are listed on the _ondon Stock
Exchange and the snare price 1s determined by supply and
dgemanc T he shares may trade at a ciscount or premium
tothe Company's unde-lving NAY and th.s discount or
premium may Auctuate over time

Poor investment performance of the portfolio

relative to the benchmark

The Company's portfolic1s actively managec Inaddition

to nvesument securit'es, the Company aiso invests in
commercial property and according v, the portfolic may not
fo'low or outperfarm the retun of the benchmark.

Annual Report & Azcounts 2023

The Board monitors the levei of discount or premium at
which the shares are trading over the shiott and longe term.

The Board encou-ages engagement with tne snarehoicers
The Board rece’ves reports at each meeting on the activity
of tne Company's broke-s, PR agent and meet ngs and
events attended by the Fund Manager

The Company’s sha-es zre avalable through the Columbia
Threadneedle savings schemes and the Company
participates in the active marketing of thase schemes

The snares are a so widely avaiable on open architecture
platforms and zan be held directly through the Company's
reqistarn.

The Board takes the powers to1ssue anc to buy back
shares at each AGM

The Manager's objective is to outperform the benchmark
Tne Board regularly reviews the Company’s long-term
strategy and Investiment guidel nes anc the Manager's

re ative posit'ons aganst thosg

T1e Manzgement Engagement Commitiee reviews the
Menager's performance annua ly The Boarc has the
powers to change the Manager * deemed appropriate
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

[eN]

Market risk

Botn share prices and exchange rates may move rapidy and
can adversely impact the value of the Company's portfolio
Aithough the portfolio s d versfed across 2 number of
geographica rec.ons, the nvestment mandate 1 ‘ocused
ona s'ngie sector and tnerefare the portfol o w ll be sensit ve
towiards the property sector, s wedl as global equity markets
ma-e generally

Property companies are subject to many ‘actos wnch can
adwersely affect therr imvestment performance They nclude
the genera. economic and frnancia’ enviroament in wnich ther-
tenznts operate Interest rates, avanakb Ity of -nvestment and
development finance and "equiations ssued by governmenis
and authorities

Rising ntecest -ates have an impad: on both capital values
and d stnbunons of property compan es Higher nterest -ates
cepress capltal values as investors gemanc 2 margin over an
ncreased rsk-free rate of return

Although e JK 1Es now ex tec the Furopéan Jnion, tne
structure of its relztonsh:p with Contnental Europe continues
1o evolve and there could be arimpact on occupation across
each sector

Tne COV D-1G gioba! pandermiz has cnangec the way we | ve
and work and uncerta ity -emains regard ng tiempac: on
ECONCIMIEs ang PIoperty mar<es arounc the world both inthe
short and longer term

e invas on of Ukrane by Russia mn February 2022 createa
fuher ma-ke volatl ty a1d uncerta nty which remains
~flation and interest rates are 27 elevated evels not seen 1N
over 10 yea s

Anv strencthenng o weaxening of stem 1ng will have a direct
meacs as a propertion of our balznce sneet ‘s held in non-GBP
denom nated currencies T he curency exposdre s mantamec
i1 11e w th the benchmark and v Il change over ime 4g at

37 Mearch 2023 68 £7- of the Company's exposure was to

urrenc es other Tan sterl ng

aa

The Boarc rece ves and considers a requ'ar meport from the
Manager cetal ng asset gllocatian, imvestiment dec-s ons,
currency expesures, geat ng leve s gnd ralicnae Inre-at.on
to the prevalling marke: concit ons

Twe report cons dets the ampact of a rance of current
izsues and sets out the Manager's response in pos tioning
me portfo 1o ang the 01go 1g ME caticns “or the property
matke?, valuatons cverall and by each sector

TR 2ropert, Ir.estrer Tryst




The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

ower earnings i1 the Underlying port’aio putting pressure
on the Company’s ability to grow the dvicend could resul
from a number of faciorg

+ Altnough most companies negatively impacied by
COV.D-1@ returned 10 pay ng d'vicencs during the vear,
with many at pre-covid evels, nsing interest rates have
posed a new threat The effect on dividends has {in
generan net been fe't through the financia: vear that we
a~e repurlng un but e incregsec debt costs wiil have an
mpact on earnings and heqce aistributions in “uture,

- pro.ongec vacancies N the cirect propet ty portfol.o and
lease or rental ~enégot.ations as a resu't of longer-term
changes foilowing COVID-19.

strengthening of sterling recucing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in slerling terms Tne Company saw

a matenal ncrease inthe Jevel of earnings inthe years
leading up to the COV'D-19 pandem’c A significant factor
in this was the weaken.ng of sterl'ng following the JK's
decisionto leave the EU ("3rexit’] Aithough this has now
Fassed, the value of stening may continue to fluctuate
he near or medium term as the longer-termampl cations
of Brexit and COV/\D-19 anc the impact on the UK and
European economies Become c'earer The invasion of
Lkra:ne by Russa has also inc-eased marke! uicertanty
The ionger-termimplications will differ across the
European economies. Tw's could lead to currency valatility
Strengthening of sterling would read 1o a fall in earnings;

.

income recelvec by the Company,

.

changes in the timing of divigend receipts from investee
companies,

legacy impact of CGVID-19 an wor<ing practices and
resulting changes in wor-kspace demand, and

- negative out ook leading to a reduction .0 gearing levels in
order to pratect capital has an adverse effect on earings
Accounting and operational risks

Jisruption or fa’lure of systems ana processes
underpinning the services provided by thad partes and the
risk that those supp 1€7s provide g sub- standa-d service

Lnnual Report & Accounts 2023

adverse changes in the tax reatmoent of dividends o otner

The Beard recerves and consicers regular income
forecasts.

Income forecast sensitv ty to changes .n FX rates 15 also
monitored.

The Comipany has substanual evenive reserves whizn are
drawn upon when required

The Board conunues to monitor the impac: of teres!
rates, Brexit and COVID-16 and the long-term mplcat ons
for ncome generation

Third-party service provicers produce periodic repors
to the Boa~d on therr control environments and business
continuation provis.ons on & regular basis

The Management Engagemen: Commitiee considers the

performance of eacn of the sevice provigers on g regular
basis anc cons ders therr engong appomtmen? and Terms
anc conditions

The Custod an anc Depositary are responsitzle “or the
safeguaraing of agsets Intheevent of aloss of asse!ls
the Depos tary must ~eturn assets of anidentical tvpe or
corresponding vaiue unless 't sable to demanstrate that
the loss was the resu't of an event beyond s reasanable
comtrol
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

I

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by WM Revenue &
Customs as annvestrment frust company. subect to
contnumg to meel the re evant elgibif ty conadit ons.

As such the Company te exemnpt f-om capital gams tax on
the proits rea:sec from the sae of nvestments

Any Breach of the re’evant engibility concitrons coud leac
0 ne Company osing Invesument Irust s1atus anc being
subject to corporat o1 tax on capiiar gams realised witnin
e Company's portia' o

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Fallure to comply witn the condon Stock Exchange
Listng Rules ana O'sclosure Gu dance and Transparency
Rules; fai'ure 2o meet The ~ecui-ements of the Altenative
'nvestment Fund Managers Reguiations, the provisions
of the Compan es Act 2008 and ctner LK, Europezn anc
werseas leg s ation affecting UK companies

Fa.ure to meet the recU res account.ng slanca-as of
make appropriate gisc'osures in the 5zl Vear anc Annua
Reports

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gea™ng, & therrcugn e use of bank debit or cenvatves,
may be ut sed from e to 'me Wh st the use of
geernng santenced o ennance the NAV 1otz return, it wil
have the opposite effect when the return of tne Company's
nvestment porifolc s necative o7 waere the cos: of debt
s higher than the retu s from the portich c

Other Financial risks

The Company's mvestment actvities expose 10 & vanety
o financial - sks wn ohoinclude counterparty cred t sk
lcuia ty nexano the vatuat'on of ingnoie nst-uments

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss cf portio cimansger or one key sia®

)

The Investmen: Matager monors the investiment portto. o,
income and proposea ¢.ovicena ‘evels to ensure that the
provis ons of CTA 2010 are not breached Theresuts are
reportea to the 8card at eacn meeting

1come “orecasts are reviewed by 1ne Company's tax
advisor through e yvear wna &1s0 reports 1o the Soart on
the year-enc tax postion and on CTA 2010 compiiance

“he Board receves regular "equlatory updates from
the Manager. Company Secretary, lega adv sers and
“he Audtar The 3card cons. ders tnose ~eports and
recommenaat ons and takes act on accordngy

Tne Boarg recenves an annua: repo-t and upaate from tne
Deposrary

Interna! check'ists ana review procequres are 0 place 3°
sernce prov.dess

The BosTd recelves reguiat reporie from the Manager 00
theevels of gear ng in the po-tiolic ~hese are consice ed
zganst the geanng amite set out in the 3os7d$ nvesimen:
Guidelines and a sc n the context of curent mar«et
conditions ang sentment The cost of debt s monitorec
anc a balance sought between term, cost and “ex bility

“hege r sks 1cgether with the poncies for
aemare found 0 ome Notes to the Financa:

T
Statemen:s

The Chatriman conducts regular mestings « 17 tie Fund
fManagement team

Tne‘ee basisprolects the cote nfrastructure anc deptn
anc gua-ty oF resources T1e fee structure ncen: vises

SCEens stuncamentz nine sk My toretan




Long-term viability

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Cerporate
Goverrarce Code, wh cirequires the Company

10 assess the prospects of the Company over
tne.onger term the Directors nave assessed the
prospects of the Company over the coming three
years This pericd s used by the Board during the
strateg c planning process as 1t considers this
penod of ime to be appropnate for a basiness of the
Co~pany's nature ard size

Tus assessment takes account of the Company's
current post or ard tne poicies and processes for
managing the principa and ermerg rg 1isks set out 0N
pages 37 to 40 ard the Company's ab ity to continue
- operation ard to meet its iabilities as they fall due
over the perod of assessment

In making this statement the Board carried cut a
robust assessment of the principa and er-erging
rnsks fac ng the Company, ncludng those that might
threater 118 business mode | future performance,
solvency and liguidity.

Inreachmg their conciusiors the Directors have
reviewed three year forecasts for the Company with
sersitivity analysis to a number of assumptiors
investee comipany dividend growth, irterest rates,
foreign exchange rates, tax rates and asset value
growtn,

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ The Corrpany has a long-term investmert
slrategy under which it invests mainty in read'ty
realisable, publicly isted securities ard which
restricts the level of borrowings.

- Of the current equ.ty portfolio 50% could be
hguidated withir five trading days and 71% withir
10 trading days.

+ Ona Group bas's, currert assets exceed current
habities at tve Baiance Sheet Date

» The Company irvests n rea estate related
cormpanies wrich hold rea. estate assets and
wests e commerciai real estate d rectly Trese
mvestments provide cash receipts inthe form of
dividends, property income distnbutions and renta
income

Arnug Report & Accourts 2022

Ihe Compa~y s abie to take advantage of i1s
closed-end rvestment trust compary structure
to ncld a proport'on of its portfol.o in less hguad,
direct property and the ess | quid securties of
smaller companies with a view to 019 term
outperformance

- At the Balance Sheet date the Company ad

£120 millior undrawn o ts revolving :oan
facilities

+ The structire has also enabled the Company to

secdre lgng-term finarcing EUR 50 milllon Ican
notes iss.Jed in 2016 are due to mature at par in
2026 ard GBP 15 miliicn loan notes issued or the
same date are due 1o mature at par in 2031

« The resuit of this s that of our own debt, 32% has

fixed interest rates (assumirg all loans are fully
drawn). The flexible structure allows delst levels to
be rapidly increased ard reduced as needed

- Theimpact of COVID-19 on the UK and ELropean

commercial preperty markets continued to
diminish through the year This resuited in dividend
receipts from vestee companies in the current
year significantly stronger than the pricr year as
the majority of companies have now returred to
paying dividends, although some at lower leve.s
than before the pandemic

+ The mvasion of Ukra nein February 2022 has

created furtner market volatiity and uncertainty.
However the portfoiio remains ighly tiguid

- The core part of the direct property portfoho s

defensively positioned, w:ith 40% of the income
secured to a major supermarket for over 10 years
and benefits from fixed upl fts The balance of tne
portfoio1s focused on the industrial sector where
the supply and demand dyram-cs remain positive
from an pceupational stardpoimt

- The expenses of the Company are largely

predictable and modest n comrpanson with

the assets Regular and robust moritaring of
reverue and expendture forecasts are Lndertaken
throughout the year Anaysis as showr that the
Company could suffer a reductior inearn ngs of
86% and st be ab’e to meet ‘ts liabiities from
rever Je cashflow as they fell due Expenses col-d
be met entrely fron capita if required due to the
hguid rature of the pertfolo
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Long-term viability
continued

» Index | rked rcome wr i benefit fiom the 'mcrease
-nanterest rates

+ Globa nterestrate rcreases nave adverse v
affected tne property sector and treresu t g
ncrease N the cost of debt w | Litimately have an
‘mpactonearnrgs

+ Soire compan.es ‘ixed debt for the medium term
sc, for these compares, tne mpact of current
rates wi l rot be fe't for a wnile

The Cormpary nas roemployees and
consequently does not ~ave redundancy cr other
emp oyment re ated : ablities or resporsihiites

The Corrmpany retans ttle to its assets beld by t1e
Custod-an wnicr are subject to further safeguards
imposed or the Depositary

Tre~pact of a rarge of factors rave beer
cons'dered nterms of the potent’a’ effect o~
sterhing. 66% of the portfo 10 s exposed tg
currercies other tnan sterl ng

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

- Reai Estate wi | contirue to be a~ investible sector
of nterrationa steck markets and imvestors wii.
continue 1o wisr 1o Nave exposdre to that sector

« Cosed end investrent trust comparies w
cortrietobendema~dby nvestors ard
reg.lat or or tax egis ation wi not cnange to
a” extertto make the structore chattractive ir
comparnisor to other ~vestment products

- Treperforarcecf tre Company Wi cortrue
to be sat sfactory S~ou dt-e Board deem trat
performmance s ess than sat sfactary, rastre
apprepr ate powers 1o rep ace tre Irvesirrent
Marager

The Company’s business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled it to operate over many
decades and the Board expects this to continue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full aver the coming three years to 31 March 2026.

By order of the Board
David Watson



Uverview Strategic report EMmianice Financial statements Glossary and AlFMU disclosure  Notice of AGM sharenclaer INTormaton

Q
O
C
0
C
| -
)
S
@)
U




Directors

David Watson

Appointed:
Apnl 2072

Experience:

Davic became Chairman ir July 202G,
prior o which he served asthe Board's
Seror Independent Director {SIGN

anc Chairrrar of the Audit Committee
Davdspent B years as Finance Director
of M&G Group plc whete hewas a
director of four eguity nvestmens
trdsis, anc More recert v at Aviva

olc as Chief Finance Gfficer of Av va

Gereralinsurance He Cha rmman of

Legon Asset anagerrert UK ple anti
September 2022 Davidis a Crartereg
Accourtant anc bas bao a distnguished

career rthe francizl services ndustry

Skilis and contribution to the Board:

Trroughouaib sexecdt e career Ta

hasaccumualagiecre e an sk g o

“rarce addtarcnsk maregemenrt aro

exper ence r the rLesirent naastry
|3 zsSiarcCharora

rroer of boarcs race buls sigrfcar

Other appointments:

Ca.ooscarrert sa Srecorofibe
r

Sroder ngt £

PeCharsthe Ladt

I
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Kate Bolsover

Appointed:
Qctober 2018

Experience:

Kate prev-ous v worker for Cazenove
Group ana J.P. lv organ Cazenove
between “995 and 2005 where she «
Wanag ng D rector of the mutual fund

ous ress and atterly director of Corporate
Communizatong Priorio that, she workeo
extenswveqy i the mvestment fund incustry
and was Manag ng D rector of Banng's
mutdal funds group Kate was previcusly

a non-executive arector ¢© JPMorgar
Trust o o, Sermor

American fnvesimen:
Ingenenaent Sirector of Montanaro LK
Sma er Comnpanies Trust ard Chairmar
ard Trustee of Tamorrow's Peogle

Skills and contribution to the Board:
From rer eéxecdt ve erper ence Kate
conroutes sigr ficartancre evartsk g
sfrhe r restert nodsy Herrole or
carcJs ocards a'se g esherthereevart
exsererce rsharebcioer ans n.esior
ergagemert

Otherappomtmems

sarrersy Charrar oFFoe T,

z Jes 2LT zro Senor inceperder:
orofircesco Bong INTomre =03
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Tim Gillbanks

Appointed:
January 2012

Experience:

Tirr s a Charteres Accountant w.oh
ZJyears expererceinthe finarcial
services and nvestrrertincustry rMost
tecenty he spent 13 vears at Coiumd a
Threadneedie Irvestments, mitial y

as Ch.ef Financias Offcer ther Chief
Operating Officer and finzlly s intenm
Chef Executve Of cer

Skills and contribution to the Board:
TIT OTNGS & v 0E €x08r ercE partCaar,
rANErc.@ Ser, . Ces anc INveESTITenT
TanageTert Hspre.ious Tnarca
cxper erce cur rghus exacut ve career
rforrskr b sroie asthe Charran of

the Augt Comvrities

Other appointments:

T osCurrertya Nlor-Erecyt e Dreltor
ofBrosr Shpey &Colemied Lanos
Hencersor fUkirvesars L mtes ars

_ards Hergersor Grodas Ho 2 ngs L mtes

S Binon Canter UK

TP Property Ircestrert Trus*



Sarah-Jane Curtis
e P P

Appointed:
January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-Jane s a Member of the Roval
Irstitution of Chartered Surveyors She
Wwas previous y Business Director at
Bcester Vilage for Vaiue Retail Prior
1o that Sarsh-Jane was a director of
Covert Garden *or Capital and Counties
PLC Ehe has also worked for Grosvenor
for 24 years, including as London Estate
Director (retail/residentia’ and Fund
Manager for LiverpooiONE,

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has ga'ned extensive
experience during her vaned

career, particularly in the retar and
experience sectors and i fung and
mvestment managemen? act vities

Other appointments:

Sarah-Jane s carrentyy Property
Jirector of Boester Motor as wel as a
consuliant to Va ue Retai PLC

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Andrew Yaughan

Appointed:
August 2022

Experience:

Ararew joined Redevoo JKin 2000 as
Managing Director ancwas appairted CEO
in20"1 Hevegan h-scareer at Friencs
Frovident where he was a *und manager.
Ardrew spent three years at Moorfiera Group
as anInvestment Specials’ beforejoinng
Redevco Hehasa BScinUrban Estate
Surveying

Skilis and contribution to the Board:
Andrew brings deep experience as a pan-
European direct property investor.

Other appointments:
Andrev, s Chief Execu: ve Gffice of
Regevco BY

Busola Sodeinde

Coa

Appointed:
wandary 2023

Experience:

Busola s & Chartered Managemenit
Accaourtant who has spentmost of her
execulve career in Fnancial Services Unii
2016 shewas a Managing Director/Chie!
Financ'al Officer at Siate Street Global
Marke:s EMEA, prior to which she was
Finance Director to the Corporate Finance
team of Deutsche Bank Capitar Markets
Busola iz the founder of a digital punhishing
firm focused on'literacy and s glsoa
supporter of women-led ventures.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Busola has consideran e experience in
the financial services sector and from ber
non-execdtive career has gained expertise
i aaditand risk She also has experience
i~ dig-talisociah media ard consumer
engagement.

Other appointments:

Busaia s anon-executive director of
Hargreave Hale AIMVCT PLC, The
Ombugsmar: Services, a trustee of the
Church Commissioners for Englana, where
she sits onthe Avart & Risk Commitiee and
a rustec ot The SCouts Association
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Managers

v

a

\
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Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Marces Prayie-Mudge joired tre management team
for tre Company at Hendersor Global Investors ir
wanuary 1997, nitiaily managing the Corrpany’s direct
property portfol o and latter'y focus ng oM rear estate
eqJdities, manag:ng a number of UK and pan Eoropear
reai estate equity funds in add'ton to activities m the

Trust Marcus moved to Thames River Cap.tarni~ Getober

2004 wrere ne is aiso fund marager of Thames River
Froperty Growth & income Fund Limited Prior to joring
Henderson, Marcus was an nvestment surveyor al

Knignt Frark (1950) and was made an Associate Parlrer

i the fund management d'v s orn (1995) He qualifled as
a Crartered Surveyor in 1992 and ras a BSc (Hons) 7
Land Marager-e-tfrom Reading Uriversity

. | 1

George Gay

eorge Say nas been tne D rect Property Furd Marager
~ce 2008 Hejoined Trames Rwver Cap tal 12005 as
sistart d regt preperty ~g-ager and quarfedas a
Crartered Sorveyor — 2006 GE0rge wWas previals vy at
ncre Cty tvestrrent agent Morgar Pepper wnere 35

W oy

a~ mwvest~entgradoate e ga ~ed cors derab e dostry

- Property Va catonard Lay

expel erce He rag ar 1A

froom Coepdlr cergity

I~
[

Jo Elliott

oo E'lott has been Firarce Marager sce 1995 first at
Hendersor Gioba. Investors then s nce Janaary 20035,
at Thames River Capital, wne” she jcired as CFC for the
property tear She joned Henderser Giobal Investors
1 19S5 where she mast recertly Peid the postion of
Grector of Property, Finance & Cperations, Europe
Previous'y she was Corporate Finance Marager with
London and Edinburgh Trast plc and pr or to that was
an investrent/treasury analyst with Hercon Corporation
plc JotasaBSc (Horst n Zoology from the Uriversity
of Nottirgham and quanfied as a Crartered Accourtart
with Ernst & Young ~ 1988

Alban Lhenneur

ApanLnoniecr Deputy Furd Manager joired Trares
Rver Capla M A_QLst 2008 He was prev cos'y at

Cit grocp Gioba: Markets as a~ Equ 1y Research ara vst
focusirg o Cot ne~ta: Eurspear Rea Estate Praoric
t~at ~ewas at Socete Genera.e Secor hies, where T2
focused or transport ege ty researcm He nas a 85S¢

-~ Bos messa~d larage~etfrom tme ESC Touic se
Cotedirg cre year at Brone U ears ty Londen

He ascatteded CERAM Nice Hgr Busiress Soroc

I~ 2005 ~echta ~ed g post-gradasate Spec arsed Masier
~Frarce m Z00S fro ESCR-EAR
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements

of tre Group and tre Company and therr Strateg ¢ Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 Margh

2023 Tne Growp comprises TR Property Investment Trust
picandits wholly owned subsid ar es. As permitted by

eg sation, some matters rormaily mcluded n the Report
of tre Directors bave beer included in the Strategic Report
because the Board corsiders tnem to be of strategic
importance. Therefore, the revew of the business of the
Company recent events and out'ook car be found on
pages 41047,

Status

The Company s an investmenrt company, as defired in
Sect or 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
an nvestment trust in accordance witn Section 1158 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Corrpany has a single share ¢ ass Ordirary shares,
with a nomnal vaiue of 25p each which are premium
listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Tre Corrpany has recelved corfirmation from HM
Revenue & Customs that it nas been accepted as an
approved investment trust for accounting periods
comrencing or or after 1 Apnl 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the elig.bility conditions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 ard the ongoing
regu-rements for approved companies 0 Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investment Trust {(Approved Company) {Tax)
Regulations 2011 (Statutory Instrument 20171/2899)

The Directors are of the ocpirior t1at the Companry has
conducted and wii continue to conduct its affairs so as
to mai~tain rvestment trust status, The Company has
a'so conducted s affars. and will continue to conduct
its affairs, n sucn a way as to comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Regulations. The Ordinary shares can
be held in Indwvidual Savings Accounts (15AS)

Results and dividends

At 31 Marcn 2023 tre net assets of tne Company
amodJrted to £668 mitlon (2022 £1,563 m’llion), on a per
share basis 305.13p (2022 492 43p) per share.

Revenue earnirgs per share for tne year amounted to

17 22p (2027 13 69pland the Directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 9. 85p (2322: G 2Cp) per
share bringing the tatal dvidend for the year tc 15 50p
(202214 20p) Irnarnving at their d'vidend proposal, the
Board alsoreviewed the income farecast for the year to
March 2024

Anrual Renart & Accouants 2023

Ferformance detar's are set out ir the Financia- Highlights

or page 2 and the oJtcome of what the Directors consider

to bethe Key Performance Indicators on pages 35 and 36
The Charman's Statement ard the Manager's Report give full
detal.s and analysis of the resdlts for the year

Share capital and buy-back activity
At 31 March 2023 the Company had 317,350,980 (20772
317.350980) Ordinary shares in 1sst.e

At the AGM n 2022 the Directors were given pawer 1o buy
back up 1o 47,570 917 Qrdinary shares. Since that AGM the
Directors nave rot bought back any Ordimnary skares under
that authority, which will exp re at the 2023 AGM. The Board
will seek to renew the authority to make market purchases
of the Company's Crdinary shares at this years AGM

Since T April 2023 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellation The
Board has not set a specific discount at which shares
will be repurchased

Management arrangements and fees

Detaiis of the management arrangemerts and fees are

set out In the Repaort of the Management Ergagement
Committee beginning on page 58. Total fees paid ta the
Manager in any one year (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of Group Equity Snarehoiders
Funds Total fees payable for the year 1o 31 March 2023
amount to 0.6% (2022 2 0%) of Group Equity Sharenclders’
Fuinds No performance fee was earned in the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: £24,489,00C)

Basis of accounting and IFRS

Tne Group and Cormpany financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a
go'rg concern basis in accordance with UK-adopted
interrational accourting standards and in confarmity with
the requirernent of the Compan’es Act 2006, The financial
staternents have also been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recorrmended Practice Financial
Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Cap'tal Trusts {SORP) to the extent that it 1s consistet
with UK-adopted Irternational accounting stardards

Ineaccounting po. ¢ es are set cut in note 110 the
Frrarcia’ Statemerts or pages 80 to 83
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

The Company's Frrancia- Instruments comprise its
irvest™ent portfo io, cash balances, barrowings

and debtors and creditors tnat arise directly from its
operatiors such as sales and purcnases awaling
settlerrent, prott or ioss ba ances on der vatve
rstremenrts and accrued IncoTe ard expenses The
financia. r.sk management objectives ard pelicies ar.sing
from its financ.al mstramerts and exposure of the
Cor-panytor sk are disclosed ir note 11 to tre financ ai
statements

Risk management and internal control

The Board ras overali responsibility for the Grocps
syste of r sk managemert and internal control and
forreviewing ts effect veness, The Portfol.o Manager 1s
resporsib-e for the day 1o day imvestment maragement
decis’ors on behalf of the GroLp Accounting and
Compary Secretariai serv ces have botn been outsourced

The system of risk maragement ard irternai control aims
to ensure tnat the assets of tne Group are safeguarded,
praper accountirg records are ma nta ned, and tre
fGrarcialinforraton tsed witkin the busiress and for
publ catior srelabe Controi of the nsks dentfied,
coverntg financia . operat onal. corrpharce and rsk
ma-agemert s embedded nine coatrols of the Group
by a seres of regear mvestimert perfermance a°d
attriizition statemerts fmarcial ard r sk ana yses AIFM
and Portfo 1o Manager reports and grarterly cortro!
reports

Key risks mnave bee ide~tified and cortro:s put e
p-aceto mtigate tnem, c ading those not direct y 1ne
respors b Lty of tre AIFM ar Portfo o Manager The key
rsksare expla red inrore detal - the Strateg ¢ Report
Gnpages 37 to 40

Tre effect veness of each third-party provders rierra
contros sassessedor arorgorrg bassbytre
Co™prance ard R sk depart~e~ts of t~e AlFM a~d
Fortfo ¢ Ma~ager the Ad™ ~ strator and tre Co~pary
Secretary Eac” marta 75 tsowr system af sk
matage~e~t and rtemal co~tro a~dthe Board ard
ALd1Co~ ttee rece ve "eg. ar reports from the

The risk —arage~e~t a~dinter~a ccrtra syster

s des gredtc prov dereascrab e bot not absclute
assurartce aga st atera o sstaterment o '0ss and 1o
Tarage ratherttas e o nate rskotfa uretcacneve
ohject ses Astne Dopaty tas To e p ovees and ts

sertakes by e partes

spertatora fonctors are o

the Audit Cormmittee does not cons der it recessary for
the Corpany 1o establ s1 1s own ~ternal audit furction
Instead, the Audit Camrmittee relies on niternal cortrol
reports receved from its principal service providers to
satisfy itself astothe contros npace

Tne Board ~as estab shed a process for dent fvirg,
evaluating ard managing any major risks faced by the
Group It Lndertakes anar~uaal rev ew of the Greup's
systerr of nsk manageivent and interral cortroi nl ne
with relevant gaidance Busiress risks tave also been
analysed by the Board ard recorded in a risk map that
15 reviewed regularly Each quarter the Board recewes a
forma report fror each of the AlFM, Portfolic Manager,
the Adrrnistrater and the Compary Secretary detan ing
any identified imternal control faliures or errors.

Tne Board aisc corsiders the f ow of rformaticn and
the irteract o hetween the th rd-party serv.ce prov-ders
and the cortrois ~ place to ensure accuracy and
completeness of the recordirg of assets and incomre
The Board rece ves areport from the Portfoilo Manager
setting out the key controls v operation

Tre Board alsc has d rect access to Compary Secretaria
advice and services provided by Columb'a Tnreadneedle
[vestirent Bus ress Limited wihicn througn 18
Horinated represertat ve, 15 respors ble for enserirg
that the Board and Ccrn ttee procedures are foicwed
ard trat apphcable regu at'ons aie comp ed win

Trese cortro & nave beer ™ p.ace throagnout the year
Jnder review a~d upto tme date of sigr rgthe accourts

Key 1 sks:dert fled by the Audtor are corsidered by the
Avdit Committee to ensure robust ntera certro's ard
rmonitor ag proced.res are .rp ace T respect of tnese
reksorarorgoirgbass

Annual Generai Meeting (the 'AGM’)

Tre Corpany's AGM v T be ~edat the Roya. Avtormich e
Coob 89:9TPa Ma. Lordo- SWIY SHE or Trursaay

20 L.y 20233812 30p~ Tne Notceof AGM ssetolten
pages 11010 114 ard exp aratory ~otes fo' ow o7 pages
112 a~d 116

Material interests
T-ere were ~o cortrasts suhsst~gdor "gorati-e e d
of treyear » wocraDrectoroftre Compary S or was
~atera v rferestedard wo oo S0 wassgr icat o
reat o~ totme Compatys bos ~ess No Drecior —as a
cortract cen i treCopary Fortrer det
regard ngire Drectors appo et letters can

foordor page o0
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Listing Rule 9.8.4R

Tne Campany confirms that there are no items whicn
require disclosure under Listing Ruie 6 8 4R inrespect of
the year ended 31 March 2023,

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to app 'cable statutes and other sharetolders'’
nghts, shares may be issued with such rights and
restrictions as the Cormpany may by ord nary resolution
decide, or (f there is no such resolutcn or so far as it does
not make specific provision} as the Board may decide
Subject to tre Articles of Associat.or (the ‘Articles'), the
Companies Act 2006 and other sharehoders rights,
Jnissued snares are at the d'sposal of the Board

Voting

At a general meeting of the Compary, wher vot'ng
1s undertaken by way of a poli, each share affords its
owner one vote,

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitied to vote if he has been served
with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articies) after

fai ure to provide the Company with irfonmation conceming
Interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Corpanies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisabie at a general meet'ng of the
Company in respect of which the business beirg voted
upor1s being neard Votes may be exercised noperson by
proxy, or in relation to corporate members, by corporate
representatives.

The Articles provide a dead ire for subm.ssion of proxy
forms of not less tnan 48 nours (or such snorter time astne
Board may determine) before the meeting (not exciud ng
non-working days).
Transfer of Shares

Ary shares 0 the Company may be keld i uncertiicated
formand, subject tothe Articles, title to urcertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system Subject
to the Articles, any mermrber may transfer all or any of his
certificated snares by an irstruament of transfer inany usual
forror in any other formy wh'cr the Board iray approve

Annual kecort & Accodnts 2073

Significant Voting Rights

As at 31 March 2023, the folowirg shareholders had natfied
that they reld over 3% of the votirg nghts in the Company on
anor discretionary basis.

% of voting rights*

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphin Ltd 17.0%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 8 4w
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 4.9%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5 5%
Quitter Chevigt Investment Management Ltd 37
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.6%
Charles Stanley Group plc 2%,
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%

* See ghove “or ‘urther informat onon e vot ng ngis of Ord nary snares

Snee 31 March 2023 the Companry nas been inforred that
Integra®in Holdings plc nold 4 0% of the voting nghts inthe
Companry

Articles of Association

The Company's Artic:es of Association may ony be
amended by a special reso'Ltion at a General Meeting of
the shareholders They were arended at the 2021 AGM
and are available 1o view on the Comrpary's website

Corporate Governance

FLI details are gvenin the Corporate Governance Report
or pages 4510 55 The Corporate Governance Report
forms part of th s Directors Report
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Diecters 's accountab.e to sharelro.ders for Composition and Independence of the Board

tre goavernance of the Company's affairs Th s statemert Tne Board currertly corsists of s x Directors, al of

describes how the princ’p es of the 2018 UK Corporate whormm are nor-execdt ve The Board's irdependence.

Covernance Code (the ‘Code) -ssued by tre Firancial mcwding that of the Charrman, nas been cors'dered

Repaoitirg Codral (the FRCY i 2018 Rave been appled and all of the Directors are deemed to be

1o the affairs of the Company The Code can be v ewed at indepenrdent i~ character and have nc relat onshps

www fre org uk. or ¢ rcunrstarces which are hke'y 1o affect their
Judgemert

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In appiying the princip'es of the Code, the Directors

have also taker account of tne 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance published by the AIC (the AIC Code), of waicn
the Company is a merrber. The AlC Code establishes the
framework of best practice specifically for the Boards of
Imvestment trust companies Furthermere, tre AIC Code
Fas ful endorsement of the FRC, which means that AiC
merrbers who repart aganst the AIC Code meet their

ob gations wrder the Code and the re ated d sciosure
requiremerts conta ned 1 tre Listing Rules The AIC Code
car be viewed atwwwtneac co uk

Tre Board subscrnbes tothe view expressed intne

AIC Code tnat .ong-serving Directors shouid "ot be
prevented from forming part of an ndeperdent majonity
It does not consider tmat the length of a Director's tenure,
inisolatior, reduces ther abil ty to act mdependently
Tre Board's polcy ontenure s that continu:ty and
experience add significant'y to the strergth of the Board,
although it believes 'n the merits of an ongoing and
progressive refreskhment of its composton

Diversity
Tte Board recognises the benefit of d versity ard

Tre Drectors bel eve that dunng the year under rev ew the as al the date of th s report it comprises three mep
Company as cormpled witr te man princ p es ard relevant andtree women Diversily 's take into accourt as
provisions of the Code insofar as they apply to the Company's part of the tecrutmert, appo rtment and sdccession

bus~ess, ard with the provs ons of the AIC Code piarng process. Tre Board is committed to
appoirtng the most appropnate cand.date regardless

Compliance Statement of gender or other formrs of d vers.ty ard therefore no

The Directors fote that the Corrpanry did riot comply with (879818 have been setaganst which 1c report
tne fol.owing provisiors of the Code v the vear ended 31 , )
March 2023 Inaccordance with List rg RLie @ 8 6R {9y (105
and i 17) the Board nas prov ded the fol owirg
Prov s:ior 9 Dueto the rature and structure of the rforTaton I relation 1o 1ts dversity
Eeoerl“ntparg t@reoBoatrd tof ;OH*E‘XSCﬂi\f@fdl['iCtC)TFSedoeS rot Board Gender as at 31 March 2023
s >prate 1o ontacref execative.
poTeR PE ’ Number
. ) of senior
Provis o~ 19 The C-arrman ras served o tne Board for Number Percentage positions
~orethar rine years Ir accordarce w th the AIC Code, of Board of the on the
tie Board noretneiess considers trat he s ndependenit members Board Board
! wn at th g AGN
He well stard down at the fortncamring AGHM Men 3 0% o)
Provis or 24 Tae Board be ieves that ail Directors noudicg YWomen 3 50% 1@
e Crhar—an smocdstona of the Boards Co~ittees The Compary does nat d sc-ose the number of Directars
nexeourve manageren: as this s norapp cabe foran

Fiovsor 26 Astre Compary ~as ~o e™piovess ansc 1s MVESTMEIT. \JS: Corpany
operatcnal furctions are Lodertakes byt~ ~d part es tre The three senor pos T ons are Charman of the Board, Senor
A.dt Corrr ttee does rot comsider t appropr ate for tre Independen: D rector and Cha rrian of the Aud < Corir ~ee

- ; e Th s onofthe Chairm he Aud T SO
Companytoestab 7 its 0w “terra adtfoctior Tre Nose she pos : on of she Chairman of :ne Aud : Somm ee
g s not currernt y defined as & sen-or pos vonunae the L st ng

Zocrropany T ce prov ders prov de .rarce rer
~CTTRAaTYS SErL C8 pmy ders prov de ass.ra ) cf e Rues, however the Board be eves tha: foran nvesiment ras:
effect ve syste~ of rsk —arageme-ta~d ~terra a~d corpany, shou dbe regarded as such as © shroad vegovaer:
contre “cthe Chef Franca O%icerof a rad ng company

Th s rieers the L stng Ruies target of 40%

Proysor 32 Tre Board does ~otrave a separate CThsimeers e L st g P es sarger of 1
RPe~orerat o Comrttee Tref notorsof 3
Re~_~erat o0 Lo~ tlee are carred ot by tre

tiarzge~ et Ergage~ert Co~ o tise

e TR Srozertyirves mert Trgst



Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023

Number
of senior
positions

on the
Board

Number Percentage
of the
Board

of Board
members

White British
or other White
(including rminority-

white groups) 5 83% 3@
Mixed/Multipre
Ethnic Groups 1 7% -

The Company does not d.sclose the number of Directors
nexecut ve management asthis snot applicabie foran
MVEsIMen: trust company

Thehree sen or postions are Chairman of the Board, Senior
independent Director and Chairman ot the Aud t Committee
Naote the posizon of the Chanman of the Audit Committee

18 not currently defined as a sen or positon under the Listing
Rules, however the Board be ieves that, for aninvestment trus:
company, -+ shoud beregaided as such as s broadly equivalen:
t0the Chief Financia Officer of a trading comipany

The information inciuded inthe above tables nas
been obta'ned through guest onnaires completed by
the individual Directors,

Powers of the Directors

Subjectto tne Company’s Articles of Association,
the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given
by special resolution the busmess of the Company
& maraged by the Board wno may exercise al the
powers of the Compary, whether reigting to the
ranageient of the business of the Company or not.
It particular, tre Beard may exercise all the power s of
the Comrpany to borrow money and to morigage or
charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and
uncalled capital and 1o issue debentures and other
securities and to give secunty for any debt nability or
abligation of the Corrpany to any third party.

Board meetings

There are no contracts or arrangements with tnird
parties which affect, a‘ter or terminate upor a
change of contio, of the Company

Directors

Siron Marrison retired from the Board at the
corc Jsion of the 2022 AGM Andrew Vaugnan
was appointed a Director cn 1 August 2027 and
Busoia Sodeinde jo'ned tre Board on 24 January
2023 The Directors’ biographies are set out

on pages 44 and 45 Al Drectors wall stand for
re-e ection by shareho ders at the forthcoring
AGM naccordance witn te Code, win tne exception
of David Watson, wno will retire from the Board at
the corclusion of the meet ng Kate Bolsover will
sLeeeed nim as Chairman and T Gilibanks will
become Sentar Independent Director

Board committees

Tne Board has established an Audit Committee,

a Nominat-on Committee and a Management
Engagement Cormmmittee, which also carries out
the functions of a Remuneratior Commuittee Al
tne Directors of the Company are non-execJt've
and serve an eac Committee of the Board. It nas
beer the Company's policy to include all Directors
on atl Committeas. This encourages unity, clear
communication and avoids duplicat.on of discussior
between the Board and the Cormittees,

Tne ro'es and responsib’hities of each Committee
are set out in the individual Commuttee reports
whick follow Fach Commitiee nas written terms
of reference which clear y define its responsibiities
and duties Tnese can be found on the Company’s
webs te are ava abie onreguest and wil. also be
availlable for ‘nspection at the AGM.

The nurber of meetirgs of the Board and Cominittees neld durirg the vear under review, and the attendance of

mdwvidual Directors, are shown beiow:
Board

Attended Eligible

David Watson
Tim Gillbanks
Simon Marrison'
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan

N & O N
N & 0 8 N O

Busola Sodeinde

Retied from the Board on 26 July 2022
Apponted 16 the Beard on 1 August 2022
Apponted 1o the Board on 24 January 2023

Audit
Attended

=T S e

MEC Nomination

Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

O = NN = NN
N o T Yy
B S R Gy
B T .. QN Y

inaddition 1o formal Board and Comin-ittee sneet rgs, tne Directors alse attend a number of ad hoc meetnmgs which

are convened gs and when recessary
Arnaa Resont & Accounts 2023

Eligible

1
1
0
1
1
1
1
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Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

T1e Board 1 resporsbie for the effect ve stewardsrip
of the Company's affars Certa r strateqic issues

are mo~itored by the Board at imeetings agamrst a
framework wn ¢ nas been agreed w tn the Manager
Additional meetings may be arranged as required The
Board has a formal scheduie of matters specfically
reserved for its decis-on, which are categonised under
various head ngs inc'udng strategy, maragement,
structure, cap tar financial reportirg, interral cortre s,
gearng. asset allocatior, share price d scount, contracts,
mvestment poacy, finarce, risk, Investment restrict.ons,
performance, corporate governance ard Board
rmerbership ard appo rtrmerts

Inorder tc enatve trem to d'scharge trer respoersb.ties,
a’ Directors nave fu'l ard timely access to re‘evant
Imformation Ateach meeting, the Board rev ews the
Campany's ‘nvestrrert performance and cons ders
financia’ analyses and atrer reports of ar operatioral
nature Tre Board mon'tors compliance witn the
Company's obyectves ard s resposible for setting asset
alocat or and rvestment and gearng brits w th™which
tre Partfclio Manager nas discretion to act and thus
s.pervises the management of tae mvestrrert portfolio,
wihich is contractLal y delegated to the Port{oio Managel

Tre Board nas respors bity far tre approval of
nvestments ir Lngucted vestments and ary
Imvestments i furds maraged or advised by tre
Portfoic Manager It Fas a.so adopted a proced.re
for D rectors, ir the furtherance of the r dut es, to take
Irdeperdent profess ora adv ce at the expense of the
Company.

Ceonfiicts of interest

[ mew it tre Corpares Act 2000 the Board ~as the
power to author-se any potental corf cfs of interest
tratmayarseard Tpose s.oor imisorcorditiors

as Tt ks fit Aregsterof potertalconf cis s
Tartared ara sreviewed at every Board rmeetirg
thyer-s.rea dela sarekept Lp-to-date Approprate
gulnor sat.or wi be soLgnt prior to tre appo rirect of
ary new Director or fary ~ew corf. cts ar se

Relations with shareholders

Srareroderreat crs aregven C g prorty bytre
Board, tre AIFI and the Portfo o Marager Treprire
~ed L by wr o tre Comrpany CoTTr LT Cates vl
srareranders sitrosge the HafYearard LAnria
Reports whicm ar~to proy de snarera ders @ t- g c.ear
wrderstard ngoftre Corparysactviesardirer
res.1s Tr.s nforrator ssoppe™ertedbytredary
cacoator of tre Net Asset Vg Leof tre Corpary s
Ordrarysmares w o~ spub smedom tre Landor

Stock Excange

Thsinfonrat or s a:scava able onthe Company’s
website www trproperty corm, together with a
mantnly factsheet and Manager commentary

Tre Arrua: Report and Accounts and Notice of tne
AGM are1ssced to sharelolders so as to provide at 'east
twenty workirg days’ notice of tne AGM. n accerdance
witn corporate governance best practice Snarehoders
wistirg to lodge questions n advance of the AGM, ar to
contact tne Board at any other tre are rvited te do so
by writing to the Company Secretary at the registered
address givenan page 118

General presentatiors are given to hotr snareno'ders
and ana'ysts follow g the publicatior of tne anrual
resJis Alirreet ngs between the Manager ard
sharenoders are reparted 1o the Board

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Sectior 172 of the Comparies Act 2066 requires
directors to act 7 good faith and -~ a way that1s the
most ket to promcte tne success of the Company
in accordance wintrhe requ.aements of the
Cormparies (Miscel'aresus Reportingl Regu atiors
2018 bewow the Company explains Fow e
Drectors have d scharged trer duty under section
172 during the year Fulfiling th s daty naturally
supports the Corpanyir ackeving its Investmert
Chjective and neips to ensure tnat a s decisiors are
made 1N a responsible and sustairab-e way

Crappointirent, Drectors’ are provided with &
deta led mductior out ~irg ther dutes egaily
ardregJatary asabrectorofa UK publ o Tied
company and contirge Ic rece veregular re.evant
tectr ca undates andtra n~g The Drectors a s¢
Fave access to the adv ce and serv ces of tre
Corpany Secretary and. wner deemed recessary,
they tave the apportor ty t¢ seek ndeperdert
professwcraiadvice - tre furtreracce of the r dutes
as a Drector atthe Co™pany's expense

Decision making
Tre —portarce of stakeno der considerations,
o oparticear e cottext of decsion-~akrg s
reg..ary brouag-tio t~e Board g attert o” by e
Compary Secretary a~d take™ "o accou~t atevery
Board Teel ~g. Tre Board cors'ders tre mpact
trat g~y "atera decsonw . Tave o a reesatt
stakencdersioersaretratd s makngadecsor
iratpro~otestre argler— suecess of tre Dopany
whetrertnghe forexarpe ~regtortcd vy dends
“ew nvest~entopport.ttes ortie Companys
futore strategy I~ add tor tre Board togetrer wtr
tre tiarager, ~¢ ds a meet rg focosed o7 strategy
Ccranartrua pasciclook aread  tre market and
art ¢ pate poterta scertaros ard how b s may
rpact ire Comipary s stakenn ders
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Stakeholders

Tre Board recognises the needs and impoertance of

the Caompany's stakeholders and ensures that they are
corsiderad danirg all its d scassions and as part of 1ts
dec’sion-makirg Since the Campany 1S an investment
trust compary tnat is extermnally managed, the Company
does not have any employees (the Diectors bave a

Cormpany), nor does it have a direct impact cn the
commiLrity or envirenment in the convent onai sense
The Board recogrises its key stakeho-ders ard expains
beow wny tnese stakeholders are corsidered important
to the Company ard tne act'ons taken to ensuare that
their mterests are taken 1o accouant,

Letter of Apportrent and are not empiavees of tne

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Sharenolder support 1s
essential to the existence
of the Company and
del'very of the long-term
strategy 0 the husiness

The Manager

—old ng the Companys
shares ofers investors a
liguso :vestiment vehicle
tnrough which they can
chtanexposure to the
Company's d versified
port‘cl-o Tme Investment
“Manager's performance s
zritica for the Company
10 suzcessfully deliver s
Inyestment strategy anc
meel its chjective

Annuzl Report & Agcounts 2023

The Company has over 3,000 shareholcers, inciuding instrrutional and retail investors

The Board s committed to maintaining open channels of communicat’on anc to engage with
snareholders 'na manner they finc mest meaningful 'n order to gam an understanc ng of
their views. "hese inc ude the channels baiow

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welzomes and encourages attendance and
part'cipation from shareholders at ‘'ts AGM. The Manager gives a presentation at the
AGM on the Company's performance and the future outlook Shareho ders have the
opportunity to meet the Directors and Manager and to address questions to tnem directly
The Company values any feedback and guestions 1t recelves from shareholders ahead of
and during the AGM and takes action or makes changes if anc when appropriate.

* Publications — the annuai and ha!f yea- reports are made avaiizble on the website and
sent 10 snarenolders. These publications provide information on the Company and its
portfolio of investments and a bette- understand ng of the Company's financial position
Tris 1s supplemented by daily publization of the NAV on the London Stock Exchange and
monthly facisheets on the Company's website The Company 1s open to feedback from
shareholde s to improve its publications.

- Shareholder meetings - tne Manacer meets with shareholders periodically anc often ang
feedback is sharec with the Board.

- Working with the Brokers — the Manager and Brokers worx togetner to maintain dialogue
with sharehalde s and prospective investors at scheduled meet ngs. The Board is provides
with regular updates at meetings anc outside meetings If “equired

+ Shareholder concerns - In the event tnat sharenolders wish 1o raise :ssues or concerns
with the Boa-d, they are weicome 10 do 80 at any ime by writing to the Cha rman at the
reg:stered office Tne Semor Independent Director 1s & 5o avanable 1o shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channei of the Chairman has falled to
resolve or for which such contact i1s nappropnate

Main:aining a close and constructve working refationship with the Manager 1s cruc’a:, as ine
Board and the Manager both aim to continue 1o ach'eve consistent, long-termreturns :n I'ne
with the Company’s investment objective Important components in the collaboration with
the Mznager, representative of the Company's culture inciude those listed below

- Encourag ng cpen, henest and collaborative discussions at ail levels, 2ilowing time and
space for ong nal and nnovative thinking.

+ Ensuring that the mpact on the *eanager 1s fully consideree and understooc before any
business decison s made

* Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest ave avoided or managed effectvely

The Board holds detanec ciscussons vith the Manager on all key strategic and operat'onal
‘opics on an angomg hasis Inacdition the Cha rman ~egu'ary meets vath the Manayer to
ensu-e a close diziogue s maintamec

[$3]
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Beoard engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

Arange of advisers
enables the Company

to function and ensure
Nat it meets its 7e evant
okl gaticns as an
nvestiment rust company
and a canstituent of the
FTSE 250

Lenders

Avanabrity of funding and
houidity are crucia! o the
Company's abil 1y to take
advantage o nvestment
oppartunities as they zse

Regulators

"he Company can only
operate w.th ~he approva
of its requiators wino have
a egitimate interest 1N how
the Company operates in
e market and treats s
sharenciders

Investee Companies

Portfol o companies are
ult mately snareno aess’
assets anc t1e 3oard
’QCOQH\QE’S e H’T‘hf‘O!’*Sﬂ”@
c* good stewsrcshp end
COMMUTCation w th
TVESTEE CaIMmpan es in
meetg tne Company s
nvestment obect ve ana
strategy

Tre Board

IaTatyl

223 areexampiesofth s

Gearing

Dormgtrefirarca vear tre Comparny cont ~ved to
~gatrea oan fac
rev ev; of tme ava ab e opl.ors each wer
broadivs = artervsasi~erereyna's fe
~e Board s
gcofbaﬁk “great cnst petoensure
casaccesstcad verse range of terms and s wt re a7t
om anyone provder Thefaciesprovde fext
coperentite longer ter priiate oo ace

LLise tsexstrgreso'v
fo owrga
reneved o
dugtrrocgrouttre vear T

aw ders

ter~ debtt-atis ~ place

o
P

s aways mrdfu of therequ rere~ttoact -
t1e best rierests of snarenc ders as awro e andtorave
regard to the otrerregu rererts of sectcm 172 wh g for
part of Boards dec-sion-makirg pracess The falow g key

dec:s oms take by the Board dunng tre vear ended 371 Marcr

The Board maimia s regu a” contact watn 1ts <ey external prov cers and rece ves regular
reporting from them through 3carc end commitiee meetings, as wail as oulsice of the
regular meeting cycle. Therr advice, as we!! as therr needs anc views, ame rout nely taken e
account The Menageme 71 engagement Comm tiee formally assesses thenr pe*forma ace,
fees and continu nig appointment at least a7nually 10 ensure tnat the key service providers
continue to functon at an acceptatie evel and are appropr gtely remuneratec ta defiver

the expected level of service The Audit Commitiee reviews anc evaluates the conto
evironments n pace at each service prov.de” as appropriate

The 3oara needs 1o demaonst-ate 1o lenders that it 1s & well-managed business, capable of

delivering ong te'm "eturms cons'stently

Tne Boarc regu.arly considers how *and the Company mee: the varcus regulatory and
statutory ob igations and ‘ollows voluntary anc best-practice guidance, iInc udmg how any
goveriance dec.sons tmakes can vave an Impact 00 1s ste<eholders, both - the shorter
and in e longer term

sharehoiger (on behalf of the Company) “he Board mon tors the Manage s sie
ar-angemen’s and recevas regular feedback 01 meeungs witn The managemen
compan es &1 vot Ng at ther cenerg meetings

hlp

Tre Manager communicates 'eqgularly w th potioiio companies anc ¢ an engagen
WETCS
11 of porfolio

Dividends
S..bject to srareno der approva of the proposed fina
dv.dend tre Compary w ' payaltota dv.dercof 1553 for
trefinarc a vear represerting an roreaseof 6 9% gniine
presvicds vear Pcoe rose snarp y s corpaniesresamed
pay rgdvdendsard asaresattrsyearsdyderd s
osered byearrgs i~ 1a forecasts fortre ina~ca year
to 21 Marcr 2024 rd cate tnatreveue —ayfa agar asa
~Lmberof compan es rave susperded d v dends Tre Board
reccgr ses e mporta~ce of d v dends to srareno ders ad
sobject te zarefu revew of t~e Companysrevense forecasts
a~dreservestogetrer wio the mvestert ol ook trema g
kKee™ 10 va ~ta preparedtc Lse rever e reserves o sopporttne d s dends
etrat t cadtcchareroders over percds of mcorre stortfa or
Cat tyfordert fled e

tes and

[gH]

as0rs
Tty and

orrET t‘sxed

TR 2roperty Ireestmert Tryst



Portfolio management

During the year the Board continued to focus o0 the
performarce of the Manager in achieving tre Company's
investment object ve witnin an appropnate 1'sk

frarework. The Board continued to consider the mipact
onthe Company (ircluding portfolio actrty, risks and
opportunites, gearng, revenue forecasts and the operations
of atrer trird party oroviders] of a nLmber of events through
e financial year to ensure that the portfolio nad safficent
res lerce together with the Company's operationa’ structure
to meet the unprecedenled croumsiances.

Culture and business conduct

Tre Board believes that having a good corporate

cuture, particularly in s engagement witk the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakehalders, aids delivery of

Its long-term strategy I line with th.s purpose, tne Board
promotes a cuiture of operness debate and integrity through
argong engagemenrt with the Manager and with its otner
service providers. The Directors agree that estabiishing and
maintaining a nea'thy corporate culture within tne Board and
Ir11s interaction with tne Manager, shareholders and ather
stakeholders will support the delivery of its purpose. vaiues
and strategy Tne Board strives to ensure that its culture is i
I'ne with the Compary's purpose, values and strategy.

The Compary has a number of policies and procedures

N place 1 assist with mairtairing a culture of good
governance Including those refating to diversity, Directors’
co~flcts of merest and Drectors’ dealings in the Company's
shares The Board assesses and montors compliance with
tese polices as wel as the general culture of the Board
regularly througn Board meetings and - particular during
tne annual evaluation process {for more irformatior. see the
Board evaluation sect.on o1 page 56)

The Board seeks to appo'nt the best passible service
providers and evaluates their service onarega ar basis as
described o~ page 58 The Board considers the culture of the
Manager and other service prov.ders, including therr policies,
practices and behaviour, througn regular reporting from
those stakeholders and in particolar during the arnual review
of tre performance ard corting'ng appomtment of all service
provders

Employee, social impact and wider community

Tne Board recogrises the reguirermert under the Compares
Act 2006 to deta linformation aboot humar nghts,
ermp'oyees a~d community issues, ncludi~g rformation
about ary porcies t has inrelation to those matters and

the effectiveness of those pclcies These requirerrents,
practically, are not applicabie to the Company as it 1as o
eriployees, al the Directors are ron-cxecutive and it has
outsourced ail operatioral fanctions to thid-party service
providers Therefore, the Cornpany nas not reported furtaer in
respect of these provisions

Lnrual Resort & Sccounts 2022

Directors’ indemnity

Directors’ and Officeis’ hab Ty nsarance cover 15
place 1n respect of the Directors The Company's Articles
of Association allow 1It, to the extent permitted by tne
Companies Acts, to irdemnify the Directors against ary
habrnity

The Company has entered "o deeds of nderirity for

tre bene’it of eacr Director of the Compary in respect of
habiities wrich may attachto themin ther capacity as
Directors of the Compary. These provisions, which are
quaifyirg thid party indemnity provisions as defined by
secticn 234 of the Comparies Act 2000, were miroduced ir
Jaruary 2007 and currently remain in force,

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

Tne Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors’ Report are isted on pages 44
and 45 Having made enquines of fellow Directors and of the
Company’s Aud'tor, each of the Directors confirms that

so far as tney are aware, there 15 no information of which
the Company's Auditor is uraware; and

+ each Director has taken all the steps that they cught to
have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit nformation and to establisk that the
Company's Auditor is aware of that information,

Th's information 1s g ven and should be interpreted n
accordance with the provisions of Sectior 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

L attan

By order of the Board,

Columbia Threadneedle Investment
Business Limited,

Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
Review the Board and its Committees and make
recomrrendalions to the Board - re.at on 1o structure,
size ard compos ton, the bala~ce of knowledge,
experience and skt f rarges,

+ Corswder succession pianning and teniure policy ard
oversee the deve.oprent of a diverse pineling,

+ Consider the re-eection of Drectors; and
+ Review the odtcome of the Board evalLatior process

The Nom.ration Committee Meets at ‘east arn.aliy,
and more freguently as ard wnen regu red It last met
March 2023

Activity during the year

The Cormttee discussed success on paring of

the Board, ts tequre ard diversity pol-cies itreviews
annsaly tre size and structere of the Board ard wi,
contnoetoreview succession plarn ng ard further
recruitment, taking irto account tne recommendations
of Board evaluations The Comrrittee appointed a search
consultartard, forow.rg mterviews with a ramber of
sJtable cand dates, it recommended the appo riment of
Busecla Sodeinde to tre Board

Board evaluation

D.oring the year tbe Board engaged T ™ Stepne son

cf Stephensor & Co, ar independert corpary woicn
specialses i vestmert irast board evalLaticns, to
faci:tate an ndependent evaluatior of the effect veness
of t7e Board, ts committees arnd the perforra-ce of
eaco Drector = addit' ¢r to the Directors, tre most

sen or merrbers of tre Investmert Marnagement tear-s
veere nterv ewed Mr Steprenscris report was disc.ssed
by tre Co— ttee

Treeva .atorwas cors dered by the Co~rtteeto be
corstroctve ters of anays ~g Board compos tor and
provid ng recomrmendat ors 01 Board succession plars g

Trerewere ~oggrfhicart actions aris ~g from the

eva _ator process and twas agreed t-at ire currert
compostor ofire Beardard ts Corr tees ref ecteg =
s.tabie ~x i skais a~d expererce and toat e Board
asawrce the ~dydoa Drectcrsano 18 Com o tiees

werefunctor ~geffect cely

L
o

In lignt of the external perfarmance evaluat or, the Board
confirms thattne performance of each Drector cortirues
tc be effective ard demonstrates tneir corm tment to
their role Taereforea Directors, w inthe exception of
Davidd Watson, wil offer themseves for re-eiect on at the
forthcoming AGM Furtherrformation or each Director's
skills, experience andiber contrbutior to the Board are
outlhred n the Biograpk es on pages 44 ard 45

In accordance with the prav.siors of the Code, it .3 the
irtention of the Board to engage an exter~a’ faci itator to
ass st with the performarce evalLat.on every tnree years
and tre next external eva'vat.on wil be carred ot dur ~g
the year erding 31 Marcn 2026 The Board wil cant-nue
to comrprete an .nterna. board evaluation annreal'y in the
ntervening vears

Board's policy on tenure

Provision 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Governance

al ows a dfferent approach to terare rielator (o avestrent
comparies, ieflecting Pow they differ to operating
companies m ot naving a cnief execut.ve e Board took
nto consideration the approach ard rtroduced its 'Po' .oy
Governng Board Members’ Tenure ard Reappontmert’
1his porcy outl nes the Board's approach to tenure and
reappa rirent of no~-execdtive drectors 1t states ts bel ef
trat the value biougnt througr cortruity and experience of
O rectors wir .onger peniods of service 15 not o'y desirabe,
bt essentialinar rvestment company Tae Beard did

1ot feel trat T wolid be appropriate 1o set a specfic tenure
irit far indwidual Drectors or e Grarman of the Board
orits commritees. instead. the Board wl seek 1o recru’t

a rew D.rector 0 average, every two Io 1ree vears s¢ as
regularly 1o br g the stmulls of fres= thirk ~g inte tae
Board's discessions ensaring that o7 eacn oocasior that the
Board enters ~to new irvestrient comitrents, at east
Fa f tne Board mermbers have direct personal expenence of
negeliating prev s commitiments with the Manager

Board Succession

Hav g served as a Drector s ~ce 2012 1wt stand down
fro~ the Beoard at t-e conc us on of tie fortrec™irg
AGM Kate Bo sover wil s.cceed rre as Cha rmar
TG 'barks vl socceed Kate as Serwor irdeperoent
Drector Buso a Sadeirde was appo nted a Director o0
24 _aneary 2023 A- ndeperdertinrd party agemoy
Noro'e Lo ted. was engaged for the recr. trert process
wrorres,ted m Buss as appointment NUrg e nEve ne

ctrer correct'or witt it Corpary



MIIARAN

Directors’ training

Onappartrent, new Directors are offered train ~g 1o
sart thewr needs. Direclors are also provided with key
informatior on the Company’s activties cna regalar
basis. ncludirg regulatary and statutory requirements
and rterng cortre s Changes affecting Directors’
responsibilities are advised to the Board as they arise.
Durectors ensure that they are updated on reg. atory,
statutory and industry matters

uodaiaibateng

| etters of appointment

No Director has a contract of errployrent witn

the Company Directors terms and co~ditiors for
appointment are set aut in letters of appoi~tment wh:ch
are avalable for inspect or at the registered office of the
Company and at the AGNM,

David Watson
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee {the '"MEC")

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

Monitor and review the petformance of tre AIFM ard

Portfolic Manager

» Rewiew the terms of tne Investment Management
Agreement

+ Arnually review tre contracts and performance of
eacn extéerral third-party service provider; ard

» Review, or an anncal basis, the remuneraticn of the
Directors.

inaddition 1o nvestrert maragerent, the Board
has de'egated to exterrai trird part es toe depositary
ard costodial services funchions (which mo'ude the
safeguarding of assets), the day to day accountng,
cormpany secretana, adm . atrat on and share
reg.stration seivices Each of these contracts was
entered nloafter ful and proper consideration of the
quaity of the services offered, inciuding tre contra
systerms i aperat-on irsofar as they relate to tre
affars of the Corpany T-e MFC determmires and
approves Directors fees having regard to the eve of

fees payabie to nor- execut-ve D rectors in the nduastry

ge~erany, the role that irdiv dua D rectors fu'fil in
respect of Boaid and Committee responsibyites ard
the ture comprutted to tne Cormpary's affars For
furtrer detai s p'ease see tne D regtors’ Rermuneratior
Report o~ pages 631a 6%

The MEC meets at east a~nua ly towards tre end of
trefinarca vear and astmetin March 2023

Activity during the year

Al tre meet g neid  Marcr 2023 1the MEC

rev ev.ed t7e performarce of tre AIFNM and Portfc .o
Marager arnd cons dered bot tne apprepr ateness
oftre M“'“age. s appo tmertand the cortractea’
arrarge~ertsi ~cludirg the stracture and leve, of
re~orerat.omivatn toe Manager

Imadditigr tot e revews bvire MEC tre Board
rev ewed ard cons dered perforrarce reports
fromr t~e Porifo o Manager at eac~ Board ~reet 7g
Tne Board alsc rece ved requ arrepcrts from t-e
Ad~or o strator and Compary Secretary

TeeBoard be. eve that tre Maragers track record
ard perfor—arcere~arsocotstand ~g Asates.t
tre MEC co~frredt-at te AtFM and Fertfc ¢
Marager sroo d berets ~ed for tre firarcs year
erdimg 31 tAarck 2024 be ng ~ tre hest —terests of

St

ad snarenc.ders A surmary of the significart terrs

of the Investrrent Managerent Agreement and tne
thrrd-party service providers who support the Company
are set out be'ow

Durng the year, the MEC also reviewed the performance
of all their thrrd party service providers ncaud.ng BNP
Paribas, Corrputersnare, Co.umbia Threadneedie acting
as Corpary Secretary botn firms of corporate brokers,
Panmure Gordon and Stfel and PwC (as tax advisors:
The Portfolic Manager provides regular updates on the
performance of all turd-party providers durning the year
and attended this part of tne MEC Meeting The MEC
corfirmed trat t was sat.sfied with the level of services
de.vered by each th rd-party provider

Management arrangements and fees

Orn 11 ULy 2014, the Beard appeinted BMC Investirent
Business Limited {row Cowmb’a Threadnesdle
Investment Business Lirm ted) as tne Company’s
Alterrative Investmenrt Furd Marager ('n accordanice
w ik the Aternative Investment Fund Managers
Drrective) weth portfoiio managemenrt de'egated to the
Irvestirert Marager, Thames Rver Capital LLP

The significart terrrs of the Investment Maragerent
Agreement with the Manager are as fol ows

Notice period

Tre lrvestrent Management Agreement {IMA)
provides for termimation of the agreemert by e ther
party w.thcut compensat on on t‘"e prov.sicr of not
less than 12 months wiitten ~otic

Management fees

The fee fortre per od cnder rev ew was a “ixeq fee of
£3.895 000 plus ar ad va'orer fee of C 20% pa based
o the net asset va'ue tdeter~uned 1 accordarce witn
the AIC mistrod of va.uat o) o7 t-e last day of Marcr
aune Septerber arda Decerber payable guarterny -
advarce Trefeearra~ger-e~is rave been reviewed by
the Beard for tne yvearto 31 March 2024 a~d ire fixen
eerertcfire feew ~oreaseto £4095000 we st
tre ad valoreT rate v reTanr Lnonasged

The Boardcort ~Lesfccors dertrat the fee strocture
a1g"s e ~lerests cf tve smarercider a~d the Marager
asv.e asoengr gnycompet tive

Trefee arangee sy Cort ~oe s be revewsy gr
a - ann.a bass

Performance fees

I~ add toriatre rarage~ert fees tre Beard »
agreed tc rax ~e Marager performrance re ated fees -
respect of ar accoortirg perad foenta i perfor~ace
chiect ves are af) ever

"F Property e cestnant Tryst



A performance fee 1s payable 1f the total return of
adj.sted net assets (after dedaction of ali Base
Maragerrent Fees ard other expenses) as defined
intre IMA at 31 March each year cutperforms tre
total return of the Cormpany's berchirark plus 1%
{the ‘hurdie rate’); this outperformance {expressed
as a percertage) is know- as the 'peicentage
outperforimance. Any fee payvable wi i be tne
amount equvalent to the adjusted ret assets at

31 Marct each year muitip.ed by the percentage
outperformance, et naltiphed by 5% The
maximumr performance fee payable for a period s
capped at 1 5% of the adjusted net assets. However,
If the adjusted net assets at the erd of any period
are less tnar at the beginning of the period, the
maximum performanice fee payable wili be \imited to
1% of the adjusted net assets.

‘Adjusted Net Assets’ means the Net Asset Value
after ('} excludirg any increases or decreases in Net
Asset Vaiue attr butable to tne 1ssue or repurchase of
any Ordinary Snares: () adding back the aggregate
amount of any dviderds paid or distributions made
in respect of any Ordinary Shares; and (i) excruding
tne amount of any Perfarmance Fee accrued for

tne period

if the total returr of shareholders” funds for any
perfarmance period 1s less thar the benchmark

for the relevant performance perod, sucn
underperformance (expressed as a percentagej will
be carried forward to future performance pernods

if any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
{expressed as a percentage} w 'l be carr.ed

forward and app'ied to offset any percentage
underperformance .n future performance periods.

In the everit that the benchmark 1s exceeded bt

tne ~urdle is not, that outperformance of the
bencrmark can be used to offset past ar future
Jdnderperformarce These amounts can be Lsed

for offset purposes only and therefore cannot have
tne effect of creating a fee r a year where a fee
woud not otherwise be payabie or .ncreas ng the

fee inthat year. Tne -1 5% underperformance of

the benchmark in the current year has been offset
against the brougnt forward outperformance

as described above As atesdlt of thrs, the carry
forward of outperformance at 37 March 2023 is C 4%
(2022 1 9%)

oy

Anngz. Report & Azcourts 2023

Management company

On 8 Novernber 20271 BMO's asset management
businessir Europe, the Midd-e East and Africa became
part of Columbia Tnreadreedle Investments, the global
asset managerient business of Amenprse Financial,
Irc The process of integrat ng the two firms 1s wel’
advanced and botk companies have confirrmed the
portance of mamntanirg the stabdity and contiruny
of tne teams which support the Compary

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Paibas was appointed as Depositary or

14 July 2014 in accordance with tne AIFMD

The Depositary's responsibiities include: cash
monitoring, segregation and safe keeping of the
Company's firanciatinstruments; and monritoring the
Company's compiiance with investment and .everage
requrerrents. The Depositary receives for 1s services
afee of 2.0 basis points per annum on the first

£15C mition of the Company's assets, 1 4 hasis points
per annum on assets above £150 milion and below
£50C milion and 0 75 basis peints on assets above
£500 mitnon

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody and Adrnistratior Services are provided

by BNP Paribas and Company Secretarial Services

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Lim:ted Tne fees for these services are charged
drectly to the Company and are disciosed within otrer
administrative expenses d sclosed in notes 1o the
accounts

David Watson
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit commitiee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities

Review the inter~al finarcial ard nor-firancia.
controls

+ Review reports from key trird party service providers

+ Consider ard recommend to tre Board for approval the

contents of t7e draft Half year ard Annuad Reports,

Rev'ew accourtirg pol cies ard s.gnificant firanciai
reportirg Jdgemerts;

- Monitor, together w th tne Manager, the Company’s

complance wtr financial reporting, mamntenance of
Irvestrert Trast status and regu'atory requirements,

and

+ Corsider the mpact of provid ng nen-audt serv.ces on

tne external audior's independerce and objectivity

Representatives of the Mar~ager's interma audtand
corrpla~ce departmenrts may attend cermrutiee
meet ngs at tre Commttee Charmar's request

Representatives of the Company's Avditor attend the
Comrittee neetings at wmich tre draft Half Year and

A-nal Report and Accounts are reviewed ard are giver

the opportumity to speak to tre Committee members
w thout the presence of the representatives of tne
Marager

T~e Board recogn ses theregu remert for at east one
Cormittee member to have recent and reevart irarc a
experence ard forthe Avdit Com~itiee as awho e to
nave competerce re evant to the sector. The Corim ttee

Cra ran, Mr Watsor ard Ms Sodeinde are g.a fled

accountants win extersive and recent experence ntre
Frarcca Services ivdustry The otner me~hbers of tre

Co~m ttee have a corrh ~at on of property ‘iranca
nvestrentard bos ress exper ence tnhrougr se™.of
positions ~e dimrocugroLt tre T Careers

Activity during the year
Jregtrevear the Committee rret twice win a

me~bers ateac —eetrgand cors deredtme foow g

Conaiderator of tre Rsk Map any £°angesto
tre ke noodcor pactof reks and comseguent &

cranges req. red to Board Mo tor ngasd mtgat or

procedures Comg derat o of a-y rew arererg ~g
rsksacd ro Lsor ntoe Rskiap fapproor ate

This has ncwuded corsiderat or of the /mpact of tre
COVID-19 pandermic, Russ a's nvas or of Ukraine,
imflationary and mterest rate increases across a range of
r sk categores,

Tre Grodps interra Cortro s and consideration of the
Reports thereon,

+ Tne ISAE/AAF reports or therr equivaient from BMO/
Columbia Threadneed.e and BNP Panbas

VWhetner the Company snod'd have its own nternal
ard tfunctior,

Fte externa. Aaditor's plarning memorardun setting
0Jt the scope of the annual audit and proposed key
areas of fcous

+ Thereports from tne Auditor concerning its agdit
of the Frnanc.al Staterients of tre Company and
Consderatior of S gr.ficartigssaes nreigtontothe
Firancial Statements,

~ Tne appropriateress of a~d anv changes fo, tne
accourt.-g pohees of the Company, includ g the
reasonabieness of any judgements required by such
DOHCIES,

+ Tne Long-Term Viabitty statemert and consideration
of the preparatior of the Firarcia Statemerts on
a 3ong Concern, basis, takirg accoL-t of forward
ooking ircome forecasts, the | quidity of the
ryestrment portfolio ard debt profie

+ Trefira~ca ardotner disc osures intne Foranca
State™merts,

- The nforration presented nt-eHalf Yeara~d Anr.a
Reports to assess wnelrer taker asa wno'e tiey are
far bama~ced ard urderstandabie and the inforrat.on
preserted vt e18b € g arenolders to 35sess e
Co~panve postor perforTarce bus mess rmooel
ard strateqy,

+ Treperforrarce of tre externa’ aLd tor 1o approve
theraldt fees ard cons der tne assessment of
ngependence,

« Trerevies and subseguert propesai to t-e Board of
tne ~ter~ ard 172 d-oderos and

Treres ena of tre Cormmittegs 1erms e frﬂfﬂ erce
75T g IAEY rere ‘aprru ptateardcomrp art wto
tre 2012 JK Corporate Govertarce Code

TF Zronerty Investmert Trus



Going concern

Inassess'ng whether it continues to be appropnate to
prepare the Accounts or a Going Concern bas:s, the
Committee has made a detalled assessment of tne
ability of the Company and Group to meet its wabit es
asthey fal due inciuding stress and hquidity tests which
cosidered tne effects of substantia falls in investment
valuatiors, substantial reductiors it revenue receved
and reductiors n market hau.dity.

In gkt of the testing carred cut, Lhe overal' levels of

the investment hq.idity Feld by the Compary ard the
significart net asset position, the Parert Compary ard
Group. the Directors confirm trat they are satisfied that
the Company and the Group have adeguate financial
resources to cortinue in operat.on for at least the

next 12 months foliowing tne signing of tre financia:
statements and therefore it 1s appropriate 1o contirue to
adopt the Going Concern bas's of accouring.

Trelorg-term viahiity of the Corrpany was also
assessed a3 set out or pages 41 and 42.

Risk management and internal control

The Bcard has overali respons il ty for the Group's
system of Risk Management ard Interral Control and for
reviewing therr effectiveness. Key risks identified by the
Auditor are cons.dered by the Audit Committee to ensure
that robust .rterna. controls and monnoring procedures
in respect of trese are in place on an cngoing basis
Furt~er details can be found on page 48.

The Audit Comimrittee received and corsidered reports
on Internal Controls from the key service providers No
areas of concerr, were highlighted

The Company’s Risk Map was corsidered to identify
aryemergirg risks and whetrer ary adjustments were
required to existirg risks, and the controls and rmitigation
measures n place m respect of those risks

Elevated ieveis of irflation and nterest rates and the
RJassian nvasion of Ukraire were also considered and
tre nsks associated with t1ose events reflected nthe
risk map

The legacy impact of COVID-19 on economies arcund
the woild ard operationar changes made by our serv.ce
providers r resporse ¢ cnang'rg workplace pract ces
were cors'dered and the risk map adjusted accordingly.

Based on the processes and contiols i place wethin
Columbra Threadreedle Investments ard other

sign ficant service providers the Board nas concarred
that there 1s no currert need for the Company to have s
own nternal audit function.

ArraaRepor: & Accodrts 2022

Significant issues inrelation to the financial
statements

The Committee has considered this report and financ a
staterrents and the Long-Term Viability statement

or pages 41 and 42. The Committee considered the
Auditor's assessment of nsk of matenal misstatemert
and reviewed the internal cortrols in place ' respect

of the key areas dent fied and the process by wnicn

the Board moniicrs each of the procedures 1o give tne
Committee comfort or those nisks on an ongoing basis.
I hose risks are a'so highlighted i the Cormmittee’s Risk
Map

« Carry:ing amourt of Isted investments (Group and
Parent Company) - the Group's invesiments are
priced far the daily NAY by BNP Parbas.

The quoted assets are priced by the Administrator's
Giobal Pricing Platform which uses independent exterral
pric’ng sources The control process surrounding this s
set outin the BNP Parbas AAF G1/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by tne reporting accountart for the
period reported to 30 Septemnber 2022 which did not
revea: any significant except-ons The quarter'y contro!
report 1o the Board from BNP Paribas covering the period
up to 31 March 2023 discicsed no significant 1ssues 1o
report. In addition, on each business day, the Manager
estimates the NAV Lsing an alternative pricing source as
an independent check

The Auditor agreed 100% of tne listed investments of the
portfolic to externany quoted prices and independently
received third-party confirmations from investment
custodians and found the carry ng value of listed
mvestments to be acceptable

+ Valuation of Direct Property Investments {Group and
Parert Company) - tne physical property portfolio is
vall.ed every six months by professional independent
valuers

Knight Frank LLF vaiue tne portfoio on the basis of

Far Value inaccordance witn the RICS Vaiuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1 5) Fair Value ard VPGA
1 Valuations for Inciugion in Financia Statements,
which app y the definition of Farr Varue adopted by the
Interrational F-nancial Reparting Standards IFRS 13
defires Fair Value as:

Trne amoudnt for which an asset could be exchanged, a
nab. ity settied, or an equity 1nstrarment granted could be
exchanged hetweer knowledgeable, wiil 1g parties i an
arm’s iength transaction’

"
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

I undertaking trefr valuation of each property,
Kmgrt Frank make thew assessimen! on tre basis of
a coliaton and aralysis of approprate comrparable
r~vestments, rental and sale transactions, togetmer
with evidence of demrand within the vicinity of each
property This inforrat.or 1stien applied to the
propertes, takimg o account s ze, .ceation, terms,
covenant and cther matena, factors

The Board ras reviewed reports from the Manager
and the external valuer and determined the valuation
to be reasonabie

The Acditor nas set cut ther detaned testng and
proceduares i respect of the direct property va uationr
ard corcluded that they focnd tre Caompary's
va'.ation of irvestment propert es to be acceptabe

Trere has been nothing browght to the Committee’s
attention mrespect of tre firanaial statements for
the yvear ended 31 Marcn 2023 trat was materal

or sign'ficart or that tre Comrnitiee fe't snou'd be
bro.grtto sharehc'ders’ attent,on

Auditor assessment and independence
The Comparys exterral auditor KRMG LLP (KPMG
was appomnted as tre Company's auditor at tne 2016
AGM The Comrittee undertook a review dur ng
2021 toenscre that snareho'ders were recew ~(

tre best services and va e for marey A number of
firms were Mvited to express imterest ard respond
ar asmarumber of key points e decision was
made for the audit torema ~wilh KPMG Thisis Mr
Mercma~1's second vear as the Company s Acd t
Partier

The Comm ttee expects to repeat a tender process
nonaaterthar 2026 rrespectoftre andit fortre
forow rg 371 Marchvear end, ~irew thitre current
auditregu atcrs

Attre rafyear meet ng of the Committee, KPWMG
presetedtrerandt pan forthevearendardire
Cor~ttee comsidered tne aud t gprocess and fee
nropcsa The Com tlee misorev ewed KFNMG's
mdependerce poic es anc procedures nc.d g
c.a tyassorarce procedures Itvas cons deed toat
1se po-Cesare fit for purpose ard tre O retiors

Tota fees pavabetor-e Aodtcr ~respect oft-e
aodtfortre yearto 21 March 2023 were
et L) fo e atatal

02022 £82 2000 w0 were approsed by

tre L. dt Comr o tiee

Tre Corm tteg bas approved and impie™ented

a poloy on the engagement of the Auditor 1o
suppiv non-audit services, takng rto accourt the
recomrendations of the Accounting Pract ces
Board with a view to ensuring that tre exteraal
Audtor does not provide non-auadit services that
ravethe potetalto mpat or appear tc impair the
rdeperdence of the rauditrose in addif o~ the
Comnr ttee rev.ewed the actions put in p.ace by
the Acdior toensure there was a clear separaticr
between audt ard adv sory serv ces The Comm Hee
does not he'ieve there to be ary imped ment ta tne
Auditor's objectivity and ndependence

Full detar's of the Aud'tor's fees are provided 1 note
6 to the accedrts on page 85 The fees for nor
audit services for the year tc 31 Marck 2023 were ni'
(2022 Y

Fol.iowing each audit, the Commitiee reviews the
aLdit process and corsiders its effectiveness

and the guanty of the services provided to tre
Company. W thtn s process, the Committee
takes 1o cons derat or the r own assessrrent, e
seif-evaluatior of the auditer ard the ALdt Quanty
Review Report prodaced by the FRC i order to
Tonitor the progress of the Aud tor's performance
corparab e with s peers and the targets set by
the FRC Trereview follow rg the comp.et on of
the 2023 avdit concl.ded that the Committee
was sat-shied w.ih the Aud tor's effectiveress and
performance Tae Comrruttee feit tnat KPMG rad
rue an effectve and efficiert audit process witn
appropriate chailerge. Areso dtior to re-appont
KPMG LILF as tre Compary's Auditor w.l' be put 1o
shiarenia ders at tie fortrco T ~g AGM

Tim Gillbanks

TR Property Irvestrart Trous,



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board has prepared this report ard the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, n accordance w'th the
requirerments cf Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium
Sized Corrpan’es and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2013, An ordinary resolut on for the
approval of this report will be put tc the members at the
fortrcoming Arnual Genera Meeting

The law requires the Company’s Aud'tor KPMG LLP
o audit certan of the disc'osures prov.ded Wnere
discloswres have been audited, they are indicated
as sucr The Audtor's opnior isincluded nthe
Independent Auditor's Report’

Annual statement from the chairman
of the committee

The MEC met in March 2023 and considered the resulls
ard feedback from t~e Board evaluation 1t was agreed
that t=e D rectors’ fees would be ‘ncreased, with effect
from T April 2023, to the following eveis: Cnairman
£73.000: Audit Committee Chairman £43,000; Senior
Independent Director £43,000, and other Directors
£37,000

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company’s pohcy is that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the ume spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the responsitilities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of high calibre 1G be recrunted The policy is
for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit
Commitiee and the Senior Independent Director to be
paid lugher fees than the other Directors in recognition
of thewr more anerous roles This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
intention is that this will continue for the year ending
31 March 2024 in accordance with the regulations,

an ardinary resolution 10 approve the Directors’
remuneration policy will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2023, as required every
three years.

The Directors are paidin the form of fees, pavable
monthly in arrears, to the Directar persanally or to a third
party specified by that Director. There are no long-term
incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangemenis and the fees are not specifically related
to the Directors’ performance either indiduallv or
coliectvely

Lnraal Renort & Azcourts 2023

The Board compnses enlirely of non-executive Direclors,

whose appointments are reviewed formally every vear
None of the Directors have a contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice in wriing 1o the Board at
any time, there are no notice perods and nc payiments
rmade for loss of office The terms of their appoimtment
are detarled m an appointment letter when they join the
Board. As the Directors do not have service Conliacts,
the Company does niot have a policy on termination
pavments. The Company's Articies of Association
currently it the total aggregate fees payable to the
Board to £ 300,000 per annum

Any sharehofders’ views i respect of Directors’
remuneratian are communicated at the Company’'s
AGM and are tgken into account in formulating the
Directors remunieration pohicy. At the 2022 AGM,

9¢ 8% of shareholders’ votes cast were in favour of the

resolution approving the Directors' Rermunération Report,

with 0 2% against, showing very significant shareholder
support

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are
set cut below, with a description and approach to
determimation

[yl
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Directors' Remuneration report

continued

Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees

The aggregate limit tor
tne fees for tne Board
as awhole s £350.000
perannumm which, in
accorcance w th the
Articies of Association,
‘= dividec between the
Oirectors as they ceem
appropriate

Fees are set toreflect
the role of each Beard
member and ine time
commitment requ:red
to carry out their duties
and are reviewed wth

re‘erence (o 1ne fees pad

1o Direciors of sime ar
neestment COIT‘\DEWE‘E

Additional Fees

Addtional fees may ke pa d
1o any Drrector who futfis the
‘oe of tne Cha -man, who
Cnars any cormmitiee of the
Soard or whos appointec
25 the Senior Indepencent
Director

These fees are set at a
compellt ve level 1 reflect
experience and time
comimtment

Annual remuneration report
For the year endec 31 March 2023, Directors fees were pad at the anviual -ates of Crammazn £72,000 12022 £7C,050;
and a.lae b -ectars £36,000 (2022 £26,200; An additione £6.000 was pa d per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Comrmuttee Chairman and Sen o incepencent Sirector T1e actual amounts pad o the Drectors dur-ig tne financ al vear
Unaer review 27e 2s sNown be.ow

Expenses

The Directers ae entitlen

to be paid gl’ reasanatie
CXPENses propeny Incu e

by tem altenc ng meet ngs
w th sharenoc.dess o- other

D -ectors or otherw se n
coinection with the discharge
of their gut es 25 [heciars

Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited)
“he fees payab.e nrespect of eaen of the Diveciors who served during the financial year were as folows

David watson
Simon Marrison
Tim Gilibanks
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jdane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan

sez are gt gz fxeC "aie 2ndinere € 0
wa v - TE 10 DEVIMENTE 10T

31 March 2023
£

Other

Soard membe-s are not
eligible for bonuses, penson
benefits, snare opticns,
long-term incent ve schemes
ot other non-casn benefiis or
taxable expenses.

31 March 2022

£
72,000 70,000
14,600 40000
42,000 40,000
40,069 35,000
36,000 35,000
24,000 -

LOMEOEY as nio emse

dependent T
=pEomled 121 Boasd an 1 S ugus

zppe nted te te Eoaroon 24 dznus. D00

G4 TF Property Irestrer Tross



Company performance

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended

37 March 2023, the percentage change over each period
nthe share price total return to shareha ders cormpared
to the share price total returr of henchmark whicn the
Board consders 1o be the rost appropr ate bercnmark
for mvestment performance measurement purposes Ar
explanation of the perforrance of the Corpany ‘s g'ver
M the Chainmar's Statement and Marager's Report.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4000 — - -
3560

a0ce

2000

1800

000 -

SR BT fda 1t Llae ln Bar Kas 35 Mo e Ma 20 a1 W 0 e s

. TR Progerty Share Price Total Return BB zenchmark Total Returm

Share Price Total Return assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March
2073 and reinvestment of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses)
{Source Thames River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment inte the index of
£1,000 on 31 March 201 3. (Source. Tharmes River Capital)

Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The mterests of the Directors 11 the shares of the
Company, attne beg' nning and at the end of the year. or
date of appo'ntment ' later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of
31 March 2022

appointment

David Watson 41,864 36,407
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks - -
Busola Sodeinde - n/a
Andrew _\@__ugh:@_n 1,071 n/a

Smce 31 March 2023 1o the date of this report, there nave
been no changes 1o the Trectors nterests in the shares of

the Company

Anrual Report & Accounts 2023

Relative Importance of spend on pay

2023 2022

£'000 £'000 Change
Dividends paid 47127 453817 38%
Directors’ fees 228 220 3.6%

Five year change comparison

Qver the ast five years, Directors’ pay nas increased as set
out i the table Gelow

Change

2023 2018 over Annualised

£'000 £000 5Syears Change
Chairman 72 70 29% 06%
Audit Committee
Chairman 42 38 10.5% 2 0%
Senior
Independent
Director 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Director 36 33 91% 18%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The table helow seis out the annual percentage change in
fees for each director who servec in the year under review.

E XL % change % change

Lslupii7y from 2021 from 2020

to 2023 10 2022 to 2021

ICGHCS Y (audited)  (audited)

Director % % %
David Watson +29 +15.81 +51.210
Simon Marrison -65.0 +41® +9 .72

Tim Gillcanks +5.0 00 00
Kate Bolsover +14 5 0.0 +100.0
Sarah-Jane Curtis +2.9 0.0 +449.3+

Andrew Vaughan n/a’ n/a n/a

Busola Sodeinde n/ak nfa n/a

SPRo pieo as Unasran v troffent o 28 ausy FUJGL ntease relent

the nta part v’ and subseguert U yes rine e

Apps nted a0t Inds pendent O resto et cfent fram 28ty S000

noreese efor i tre it 2 pott ves and anhseguenltu L pla nmene
s g ncn-eeenitoce booestor o 1 ostohe 2 S e eael

a5 anTh exelyle s

i Prst ity Les b
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For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

T-e Directors are responisib’e for prepar g the Annual
Report and the Group and Parent Cornpany financia'
staterrerts inaccordance with appicable law ard
reguatio™s

Company law requ res the Directors to prepare Growp
ard Parent Camrpany financial statements for eacn
finarcial year Directors are requ red to prepare the Group
firancial staterments ir accordance wth UK adopted
irternatora accouritirg stardards ard applicabe

law ard have elected to prepare the Parert Company
firanc al staterments o1 the same basis

Under company -aw the Directors must not approve

tne finarcial staterrents Jrless they are satisfied tnat
they give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of tne
Group and Parent Compary ard of the Group's prafit or
‘oss for that peniad in preparnng eack of tre Grodp ard
Parent Compary financial statemeants, tre Directors are
required to

- select sutable accourting pol'cies ard appy them
corsistent’y

make jLdgements and estimates tnat are reasorabe,
relevant and relab'e,

+ state whetner they have beer prepared inaccordance
with internationa accounting stardards in conformriy
w th the requirements of UK-adopted irtermaticna!
acco.untng standards

« assess tne Growp ard Parent Compary's ab ty to
co~trieasago ngconcern, disc os.rg as app cabe
~atters reiated to go g concerr and

« uwsetre Qo mgcorcer” basis of accountrg omless
trey e ther tend tc | quidate the Group or tre Parert
Co~pary or to cease operat Grs or have ~o rea ist'e
aternatve buttodo so

Tne Drectors are respans:bie for keep g adequste
acco.rt ~grecords trat are sofiicertto srow ard
expar the Parert Corparystrarsactors a~d dscose
Wi reasonab e accoracy ata~yt retre frarc a

pos .o~ of the Parent Corpany arderabet-er to
ers.rettat tsfirarciz staterertscorpywintre
Compares ACt 2006 Treyarerespors bieforsuer
~terna cottre as they deter™ re g recessarvicenab e
e preparat o~ of fina~g a statee~ts trat are free fro
~aier 3 o sstatemert wnetreraoetofracd o error
a~draseqererg respers bty foriak ~g socr steps as
arereascraby open to tre™ 1o safequard 1-e assets
oftre Grolpardtoprevertard detect fracd ang otner

Tregliart e

n

Under applicable law and reguations, the Directors
are a so responsible for prepar g a Strategic Report
Directors’ Report Directors’ Remuneration Report
ard Corporate Governa—ce Statement

The Drectars are regpons bie for the mainterance
and integnty of the corporate ard firanc al
~forration incivded on the Company's webs ie
Legisiaticr 'rthe UK govern.ig tne preparat:or ard
disservnation of finarc.al staterrerts may differ
fromm legislation in atker junsdictions

In accordance w.t1 Disc osure Gu darce and
Transparency Ruie 4 1 14R the firanc al statenenis
will form part of the arncal finarcial report prepared
using tne s ngle electror.c reportirg format under
tne TD ESEF Reguiator The Aud tor's repart or
these firans al staterents provides Nno ass.rance
over tne ESEF format.

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annual financial repont
Eact of the Directors confirms that to tne best of
ther know edge:

- the firanc’al stater~ents prepared ir accordance
w it the appicab e set of accoo~trg standards
give a liue and fair view of the assets hab ites
‘Inarcial pestion and prefit or loss of the Gioup
ard Parert Ccrpany and the undertak ngs
mc aded i ine corso idation taken as a whowe ard

- tne strateg creport roudes a fairreview of the
developrent ard performance of the bus ness
ardtre positt.or of tre ssaer and the undertak ~gs
ncluded ~the corsondation taker as a whole
togetrer w th a descrpticn of the primcipa 1 sks
a~d Lncertarties tnat they face

Tre D rectors comsder tat the A~ Lai Report
ard Accouris takerge a who e sifar bsarced
a~d urderstardab.e a~d prov des the ~forator
~ecessary for snarerc derg to assess tre Group s
pcs ter a-d perfor—ar-ce h.s-ess rode a~d
sirategy

By order of the Board
David Watsan

TR Propert I sestmert Tryst



Independent auditor’s reporl

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Plc

01 Our opinion is unmodified

¥e have audiled tne finarcial staterments of TR Property
rvestiment Trost P e (the 'Company ) for the year

ended 31 Marcn 2023 which corrprise the Group
Statemrent of Comprehersive Income, Group and
Company Statemerts of Changes i1 Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Compary Cash
Flow Statements and the related notes, inciuding the
accourting policies in rote 1

In our opinion:

« the financiai statements g ve a trug ard farr view of
the state of the Gioup's and of the parent Company's
affars as at 31 Marcn 2023 and of the Group's return
far the year then erded:

- the Group financial statements Have been preperly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted imternaticnal
accounting standards,

« the parent Company financia statements have been
properly prepared 1N accordance with UK-adopted
irternational accounting standards and as applied n
accordance witr the prov's.ons of the Compar.es Act
2006, ard

- thefinancial statements rave been prepared in
accordance with tme reguremerts of the Companies
Act 2006

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit naccordance with Irternaticna-
Standards on Auditing (UK) { 18As (UK)'1 and applicable
law. Our responsibihties are descrbed beiow. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtamed 1s a sufficient
and appropriate basis forour opnion Qur audit opirion
is consistert with our report to the audit committee,

wWe were first apponted as auditer by the Directors on

2 Novermnber 2016 The penod of tota! un nterrupted
engagemert s for tne seven financia years ended

31 March 2023. We nave fufilled our ethical
respensibilities under and we remair independent of
the GroLp In accordance with, UK ethical requirements
ireluding the FRC Ethical Standard as applied 1o listed
pubic mterest entities. No nor-audit services prenhibited
by that standard were provided

Overview

Mateniality: group £10.5m (2022. £16.8m)
financial statements 1% {2022 1%) of Total Assets

as awhole
Key audit matters vs 2022 ) vs 2022
Recurring risks Valuation of direct property <)
Investments )
Carrying amount of listed <
_Investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are tnpse matters that i our professioral judgerrent, were of most s'grnficance inthe augtof the
financal statements and include the most sign.ficant assessed risks of mater.al misstatement (whetner or not due
to fraud) identified by Ls, including those which had the greatest effect on the averal audit strateqy, the allocat on of
resources in tre avdit: and direct rg the efforts of the engagemert team We summarise below e key audit matters
(unchanged from 2022), 'n decreasing order of audit significance, 7 arr ving at our audit op.mon above, together

with cur key a.dit procedures to address those matters ard our ‘indrgs from those procedures in order that the
Comrpanys members, as a body, may understand better the process by which we arrived at our audd opin:on These
matters were addressed, ard our 1rdings are based on procedures undertaker ir the context of, and solely for the
puipese of our audit of the ‘Gnarcia stateTents as a whole and in forruing our opiracn thereon, and consequently are
ncidenta: to that opirion, and we do rot provide a separate op.rion or these malters

e

Arnuz Repor: & Accodmts 2023
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Independent auditor's report
continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement S

e s LJur response

Valuation of direct
property investments
{Group and Parent)
i£74 0 milhon.
2022:£96 3miuon)

Refer to pages 60 10

&2 {Audit Commiites
Report; pages 81 ang 82
LaCCouTingG pohov: note 10
anpages 8% 1¢ 2 Ymancat
dieclosures)

T
[gu]

Subjective valuation:

T3 (2022 5 7% of the Group's,

and 6 8% (2022 56+ of ime Parent
Compeny s, total assets by va ue) g7
he.d 'n nvestment properties

The “gir value of each property requires
s gn ficant estimation, in particu.ar wiih
regara to the estmated rente! value anc
yielg assurmptions. The assumpthions
wi | beimpactec by a number of factors
inctuding quaiity and conditign of the
Building and tenant financial st-ength

The effect of these matters 15 that,

as part of our risk zssessment, we
determined that tie valuaton of
investment properties has a h gh
degree of estimat on uncerta 1Ty, with 2
potentiai range of reasonable outcomes
g-eater than ou-matenality for the
fnanciz statements as z who'e The
financ al statements (note 101 d sclose
e sense vty estimated by the Group

We performec the detailed tests belaw ratner
than seekingtore'y on any of the Goup's
conirols, because the nature o tne baence
15 5UCcH That we wol d expect to obta n audrs
evidence p-marnly through 11e oetaled
procecures desar beg

Gur procedures included

+ Assessing valuer's credentials: using our own
progperty valuaticn specialist, we eva uated the
competence exper ence and ndepencence of
the externz! vz'uer,

« Tests of detail: Ve compa-ed the nfarmaron
provced by the Group toits external property
vawer for a sampie of propertes, such as
rentgd INToMe anc tenancy Gaia o suppot g
documents including lezse agreements,

* Methodology choice: ‘We neld discuss.ons
witn the Group's externa property va‘uer to
cetermime the vauation methodology Usec 1s
sprroprate Us ngour own property valualcn
speciahst, we crilica'y assessed 1ne results
of the valuer's report by check g that the

¥aluatons we e In zccordance with the R %

valuation Professional Standards the Rec

Book and 'FRS and that the methocoiogy

acopied was appropniate by ~eference 1o

scceptable valuation practice,

Benchmarking assumptions: ¥/ th the
235.stance of our own property va'uat on
specialist we heid discussions witn e
Group’s external property valuer 1o understand
Movermenis 1 progerty vaiues For a semp e of
rropetes, wwe gssessec the key assumptions
used by Tie va'uer upon wIch e vaiuations
ae based inciudng those “eiat ng 1o est matec
rentai vaiue and vield, by max<.ng & compa- son
tc our own uncerstancing of the make: anc to
Custry bencamarks:

» Agsessing transparency: /e & so cons aered
the scequacy of the Croup's cistiosures about
e cegree of estimal 51 21C SeTs T
FESUMELICIS Made when valung -
£IOpe Ty ML estmens

Gur findings

TP Proper, Irsestmer: Trst



e ris Our response

Carrying amount of
listed investments
(Group and Parent)
(£872.1 mil' on,

2022 £1,456 8 m:lon)

Low risk, high value:
The portfohio of listed level 1

Referiopages 6010 62
(Audit Committee Reporin.
page 82 {accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 89 to
a7 ifinanc &l cisclosures:

investmen's makes up 83 0% (2022
86 4% of the Group's, and 8C.2% (2022
84.6% of tne Parent Company's 1ota
assets (by value) and 15 one of the key
a-ivers of "esulrs We do not consider
these investments to be at 2 h gh ris«< of
materizl misstatement, or 1o he subject
1o a sign ficant level o’ Judgement
because they comprise hquic, guoted
nvestments. However, due 1o telr
rmateriality in the context of the
financial statements as a who e, they
are consiaered to be cne of the areas
which had the greatest effec: on our

We performed the detailed tests below rather
than seeking torelv on any of the group's
contro s, because the nature of the balance
is suchthat we would expect to obtam audit
evidence primarn y through the detalled
procedures cescnbed

Our procedures inc uded

» Test of detail: Agree™g the valuat-on of 1CU
of level 1 listec investments in the poifolic to
externa y quoted prices: and

* Enquiry of custodians: Agreaing 130% of
ievel 1 histed investment holdings in the
portfolio 1o incependentiy received thirc party
zonfrmations from mvestment custodians

overall audrt strategy anc allocation of
~esources In planning and completng

our aucit

Qur findings

we found no cifferences trom thi-d party
haldings conf-mations nor from the externally
auoted prices of a size 1o require reporting to the
Audit Committee (2022 no differences]

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Mater-al'ty for the Group financial statements as a whole
was setat £10.5m (2022 £16.8m), determired witn
reference to a berchmark of total assets of wrich it
represents 1.0% (2027 1.0%).

Mater'ahty for the parent Company financal statemerts
as awhole was set at £9.97m (2022 £16 Umy}, which

ts the compoenart materiality for the Parert Company
determined by the Group audit engagermnent team. This
15 lower than the materiality we wouid otherwise have
determined with reference to Parent Company totai
assets, of wh.chit represents 0.95% (2022 0 95%)
in me wth our gudt methodology, our procedures

on mdwvidual account balances and disclosures were
performed to a ower thresho d. performance matenial ty,
s0 as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that
individoa'ly immraterial misstatenrerts in indivdua
accourt ba'arces add Jp to a matena amount across
the financial state-nents as a whole Performance
rmaterarty was set at 75% (2022 7b%) of matenality

for the finarcial stalements as a whole, whch eguates
to £7 85m (2322 £12.6m) for the Group and £7 45m
(2027 £12mj) for the Parent Campary We app ‘ed

this percentage in out determ nation of performance
materiality beca.se we did not dertify ary factors
ndicatrg ar elevated level of nisk

Anruz Report & Accoants 2023

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected dentified migstatements
exceeding £0.53m (2022 £0 84m) for the Group and
exceedirg £0 5m (2022 £0 8mr) for the Parent Company,
in addition to other identified misstatements that
warrarted reporting on qualtative thresholds.

Tme aadit tearm performed the audit of the Group as a
single aggregated set of financial information rather

than scoping in nd vidual components. This appioach

15 unchanged from the prior year The audit of the

Group and Parent Company was perforimed using the
materialty evels set out above and was performed by a
singie audit team. Tne scape of the audit work performed
was fully substantive as we did rot rely upon the Group's
irternar controis over financ al reporting

Group Materiality
£105m{2022.£16 8m)

Total Assets
£1,051m (2022 £1.686m)

£10.5m
Whole financial statements
maternality (2022: £76.8m)

£7.85m

wWhole financial staterments
performance materiality
(2022. £12.6m)

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiality
(2022 £16.0m)

£0.5m

Misstatements reported
to the audit committee
{2022: £0.8rm)

] Total Assets

)l
e
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit
We have performed a risk assessment of how tre impact
of c'imate change mray affect tne ‘ingncia’ statements
and cur audit. Leve 1 histed investments make op

83 0% of the Group's total assets, for which fairvaiee

1s determined as the quoted market price Therefore,

we assessed that the firancial staterment estmate that

s primar ly exposed to ¢l mate risk s the irvestment
property portfolio, for which tne vaiuation assumptions
and estimates rray be impacted by physical and poucy
or legal climate risks, such as floocding or an increase

in cimate related comp'iance experditure We held
d.scussions witr our owr clhimate change profess.onas
1o crallenge our risk assessmrent. We assessed trat,
whilst cl'mate charge posed a risk to the determimaton
of rvestment property va'yations in the cutrert year,

this risk was not significant wrer cons:dening both the
nature ard domicr'e of the propert.es and tre tenore of
unexpired 'eases. Therefore, there was no sign:ficant
imrpact of this o1 our key acdt matters.

We nave read the disclosure of ¢l mate related narrative
rthe front half of the fina~cial statermerts and
considered cors stency with the financiai statements
and oJr audit knowiedge

05 Going concern

The Directors have prepared tne finarc al statements
ont~e going concern bas s as they do rot rterd to
wquidate the Group or the Copany of to cease the r
operations, and as they rave concluded that tre Sroup's
ard tre Co™pany's financ.a postion mearsthat th.s

1z reahshic They rave aiso corcluded that toére are no
~aterial ncertaint.es tral cou'd rave cast sign ficant
doubt over therr abiaty to cont rue as a go 7g concerr for
at least a year frorr tre date of approva of the finarcia,
staterre~1s (1~e gong concern per od’)

We used cur krow.edge of the Srelp, 1s industry
a~dire gerera ecoramc ety ronert to dent fy

tre ~rerestrsksto 1s busness ~ede and aralysed
~ovethose r sks 1 gt affectt-e Groap or Cempany's
firanc a'rescurces or ab Ity to Cort ~_e cperat'ons over
tre gung concer per ad Thensks trat we co-s dered
miost ke 1o advérse y affect the Group ot Corpary's
ava'able irancia' rescorces a~d te ab tv to operate
overt s perod were

+ Tre ~pactofasgrfca-tredoct o ~treva Lato”
of ~vestorects ardt-e mp'cat ois fortre Grolp or

Co~paryedebt crverants

« Tnelguidity of tre nvestment portfo'io and its abi' ity
to meet tne habiit.es of the Group as ard wner they
fail due; and

-+ Treoperatoral res! ence of key service arganisations

We considered whether tnese r'sks could p ausibiy affect
the I'quidity or coverant corplarce in tne going corcerr
period by assess ng the degree of downside assLmpt o
tnat. indwidualy ard conectively, couid rese tir a L guid'ty
ssue, takirg into account tne Group or Companry’s
currert and projected cash ard liguid investment
posit.on (ardthe resaits of tneir reverse stress test g,

We considered whether the going concern disclosure
i rote 1 gwves a fuil and accurate description of the
Diectors assessment of goirg concern ncludirg the
dentfied nisks and related sensitivities

Our conc.usicns based on this work

+ we corsiderthat the D rectors' use of the goirg
concern bas s of accounting in the preparation of the
firancial statements s appropriate

- we have notidentified, and concur with the Directors’
assessmert that trere s not, @ mater ar urcertanty
re'ated 1o events or conditions that indw deally or
col ective y. rray cast s’ gnificant dodbt or tne Group's
or Company s abil ty to contmiee as a going corcern
for tne go ng corcerr penod,

<« we nave roth ng matena 1o add or draw attertor to
reatior 1o tne Directors statemenrt or the Lse of tre
go ng corcerr bas:s of accourt ng wits ng matera
wocertant es that mav cast sigorficant doubt over
tre Groupand Compary's Lse of that basis for e
goirg concern per od and we found the goirg corcern
tsclosurer note 110 be acceptab e, ard

trere.ated state~e~t Lnder te Listirg Ruies set oot
onpage 6l s materaly corsistert wtntrefirarca
state™ents a~d our audit krow.edge

However as we cam~ct predict a  future events o
condit os ard as subsequert everts —ay resuit -~
oJdtcomestrat are ~cors stert witt judger-ents 1at
werereascnabig at the t ~e trey were wade e above
corc usors are not aguarartes (iat the Groop o tre
Corrparw

contrue T operat on

TR Hroperty Incestmert Trag)



06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

Todentify risks of matenal misstatement due to fraud
(fraud 11sks ) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate a= reentive of pressure to comm 1 fraud
ot provide an opporturity to comimit fracd Cur nsk
assessment procedures inc wded

© Drownrg of Dieclurs as Lo the Growp's Righ-‘evel
po cles and procedures to prevert and detect fraud,
as wep as whether they nave knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alieged fracd;

+ Assessing the segregation of duties ir place between
the Directors, the Administrator and the Group's
Nvestent Marager, and

Reading Board and A.d t Committee minutes

As required by auditing stardards, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override
of cortrols, 'r particalar 1o the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting
entries We commuricated identified fraud risk
throughout the audit team and remaired alert to ary
indications of fraud thioughout the audit. We evaluated
the desigr and imp'ementat on of the cortrols over
Jodrnal entries and other adjustmerts and made
inguinies of the Admunistrator about mappropriate or
unusual activity refat’rg to the processing of journal
entries and otner adjustments.

We s.bstantively tested gll material post- cics'rg
entries and, based on the resulls of our risk assessment
procedures and understanding of the process, including
the segregat.on of duties between the Directors and

the Adim.nistrator, no furtner high-nsk jourma’ entries or
other adjustiments were identifred,

Onth's audt we nave rebutted the frand risk related
1o revenLe recognition because tne revenue s

non- judgementa: and straightforward, with bnited
opporturity for manipu ation We did not dentify any

sigr ‘icant unusual trarsactiors or additional fraud risks.

Annuel Report & Azcounts 2022

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

we ‘dentified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to nave a mater al effect on
the francial statements from our gereral commerc al
ard sector expenence and through discussion with

tne Directors, the Investment Manager and the
Admistrator {as required by audting standards)

and discussed witn tne Directors the policies ard
procedures regardirg compiiance with laws and
regulations We communicated .dentified laws and
requlations throughout oor team andg rema ned alert to
any indications of non-corpuance thraaghout the audit
As the Parert Company 1s regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gaining an understanding of the contiol
envirormertircluding the ent'ty’s procedares for
compiving with reguiatory requiremenrts

Tne potential effect of these laws ard regu.ations on the
financia’ statements varies considerably

Firsty. the Groupis subject to laws and regulations

that directily affect the finarcial staterments ncluding
finang al reporting legistation (inciuding related
comrpanies egisiation), distnibutable profits legislation,
ardits gualification as an investment Trust under UK
taxation -egislation, any breach of whicn coud iead to
the Group los:ng various deductions and exempt.ons
from UK corporat'on tax, and we assessed the extent of
comphanrce with these laws and reg.u:ations as part of
oLr procedures or the related financial statement items.

We assessed the lega.ty of the d'stributions made by
the Company in tne period based on comparing the
d'viderds paid to tne distrbutable reserves prior to each
distribution.

Secondly, the Group s subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of ron-comphance
couJld have a matena! effect on amounts or disclosures
ir the financial statermerts, for nstance through the
impostion of fines or itigation We 1dentified the
follow ng areas as those most kely to have sucn an
effect money laundering, data protection, br.bery and
corruptior legislation and certain aspects of Company
legis ation recognising tne ‘inarcial nature of the
Groups actv ties and its legal form Auditing standards
it the required audit procedures to dert. fy wor-

comp iance with these laws and reguiations to enguiry
of the Directors and the Administratar and mspection of
regl-atory and lega. correspondence. fany Trerefore,

if a breach of operational requlatons 1s not disc-osed to
Ls or evident from relevart correspondence, an audit will
ol detect that breach
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independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -
abifity to detect . . -

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owmg to the inherent iriitations of ar audit, there s ar
Jnavaidable sk that we may not have detected some
material ~isstaterents in the financial staterrents, even
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
i~ accordance with aud tirg standards For exaripe, the
further removed non-comphance with 'aws and regu.ations
15 froms the events ard transact.ons refected inthe firancia
statements, tne less ke the inhierentiy irited procedures
required by auditng standards would identify i

In addition, ag with any audit, trere remained a nigherrisk
of non-detectior of fraud, as these may irvolve celus on,
forgery, intent.ona. om.ssions misrepresetations, or tre
override of nterna controls Cur aadit procedures are
des.gned to detect matenal m gstaterment We are not
responsiby'e for preventing nor-conplarce or fraad and
carnot be expected to detect nor-compliance with ail ‘aws
ardregulations

07 We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

Tre Directors are resporsible for the otner »formation
presented i the Annual Report togetrer with 17e finarc al
staterrents Qur opitior. on the financ-al statements
dces not cover the other infermation and, accord Ng'y,
we do not express an audit opinion or except as exp Citly
stated be'ow any forr of assurarce concius o theregn

Our respors bty s to read the otrer -rfermat or ard,

o~ dQing s, consider woether, based or our firarcia
stateents aud twork, the rforraticn there s
~ater-ally misstated or "consistert witn tne firarcial
state~e~ts or our gudit krowiedge Based soie'y on that
work we ~ave notdertfied matenai misstatements
tectrer “format o

Strategic report and Directors' Report
Based so ey or ourwork or the other ~format’on:

+we cave cot dent fied materal misstateents e tre
strateq ¢ report ana t~e D rectors report

+ v ooropit o the ~format or goeen  thosereporis
farthe 9arc a year scorsslertw irtrefi-aro al

statermerts and

e

Directors’ remuneration report

Ir our opition tne part of tne Dorectors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been propery prepared in
accordance with the Compan-es Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are requirad to perform procedures to idertify
whether tFere 1s @ materal ‘ncons stency between
the Directors’ disclosures in respect of emerging ard
prircipal risks and tne viabilty staterment, ard the
firanciar staterents a~d  our audit know:edge

Based on these procedures, we have noth ng Tatenal to
add or draw attenticr to nreaton 1o

- t1e Directors’ confirmation within the Long-term
WV abihity statement on page 41 that they bave carned
oot archust assess™iert of the emerging and pr.ac pa.
risks facing the Group, including those that would
tnreaten its busess mode!, futare performance,
savercy and igu dity,

+ the Prircipal ard emerging tisks and urcertart es
d'sclostres describ ng theserisks ard bow emerg g
risks are dentified, and explain'rg now they are benrg
aragedand m tigated, and

« the Drectors expa-ation i the Long- term Viabitty
staterent of how trey have assessed the prospects
of tne Group, over what per od they bave done so ard
wy they considered that penod o be approprate, and
thelr statemert as to whelner tney have a reasnnab e
expectaticn that tne Group will be ab'e to continue
In operatior ard meet ts iablities as tey fa . due
cver tre per od of ther agsessme~t "cudngary
re-ated disc osares drawing attenticn 1o any necessary
g..al ficat ors ar assumpt ors.

We are a serequired to rev-éw the Long-term Viabid ty
statermert set out or page 41 ard 42 Lndertre L sty
R es Based o tneabove procedures. we Mave
cenciudeo tnat the above d sc ¢sures are ratera' y
cors stent witr tne fimancal statererts a~d our avot
kroyw edge

Surwork s o ted to assessirg trese atlers N ine
context of o v ire krow edge acge red dormg oor
francaistatermerisaLat Aswecanrotpredcta
futireeentsorcoratcrs and as subseguertevents
~ayIieset N outcerestrat are “cors stent wir
judgerertetrat vere reascrab e at tne trre tney
nerevade tre sbserce of garyth rgloreport or these
state~e~tz.srotag.araties asto e Group s and

g5 1
Comparysiorger-ter™ vabl' ty

TF Proverty ncestnen Tryst



Corporate governance disclosures

We are required (o perform procedures to dentify
whether there 1s a matenal irconsistency between the
Directors’ corporate governance disclosures and the
financial staterments and our audit knowledge

Based on thase procedures, we ave concluded that
each of the followng s matenally cors stent win the
financial staterrents and cur audt knowledge.

- tre Drectors staternentl hal they consider that the
anrual report and finarcial statements taker as
a whole s fair balanced and understandabie and
provides tre mformation necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group’s posit'on and performance,
b.siness model ard strategy:

+ tre sectior of the annuai report describing the work of
the Audit Committec, includ.ng the significant ‘ssues
that the audit committee considered ir re ation to
the financia statements, and how these 1Issues were
addressed, and

- the section of tne annvai report that describes
the review of tne effect veness of the Group's risk
management ard internal control systems

We are req.ired ta review the part of the Corporate
Sovernance Staterrent relating to the Group's
compliance wth the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
review We have nothirg to report in this respect

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if, in our cpricon

adequate accounting records nave rot been kept by
the parent Company, or teturrs adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited

by s, or

+ the parert Comrpary financ'a statemrents and the part
of tme Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returrs. o

« certan disclosdres of Directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

- we nave not rece ved al the information and
exp anations we require for cur aLdit,

We nNave nothing to reportir these respects

Lrrug Report & Accounts 2023

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explamed more fully ntherr statement set out

on page 66, the Diectors are responsib e for: the
preparat:on of the financial statemenits including be™ g
satisfied that they give a true and fair vew, such interna!
contral as they determine is necessaty to enab e the
preparatior of financial statements that are free from
matenal misstaternent, wnether due to fraud or error;
assessing the Group and parert Compary's abi ity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as appl cable,
matters related to going corcern, ard asirg the going
concern basis of account rg unless they either intend to
iglidate the Group of the parent Company or 1o cease
operations, or have no reaiistic alterrative but to do so

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtair reasenable assurarce
about whether tne financial statements as a whole are
free from materia, misstateent, whether due to fraud
or error, and to 1ssue our opinian in an auditar's report.
Reasonabie assdurance is a h gh leve! of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordarce with 1ISAs (UK wiil always detect a materal
risstatement when it exists. Misstatements car arise
from fraud or error ard are considered material if,
indvidually or \n aggregate, they could reasorably be
expected to influence tne econeric decisions of users
taken on the hasis of the financia. statements

A fuller description of our responsibilities 1s
provided on the FRC s webs'te at www frc.org uk/
auditorsresporsibinties

The Company is required tcinclude these financial
statemerts in an arrdal financial report prepaied Jsing
the single electromc reporting format specified in the
TD ESEF Regulation Trig auditor's report provides no
assurance over whetner the arnua: financal report nas
becn prepared ir accordance witn that format
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Independent auditor's report
continued

10 The purpose of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to tne Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 ¢f the
Companes Act 2006 and tre termrs of our ergagement
by the Company. Our avdit work has been undertaken sc
that we might state 1o tre Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them m ar acdor's
report and the furtrer Tatters we are required to state
to trem in accordance wir the terms agreed with

tre Company ard for 7o otner purpose To tre ful est
extent permitted by law, we do rot accept or assume
respons:bility to anyore otner than tne Compary and the
Company's meirbers, as a body, for our aadit work, for
this report or for the opirions we have fermed

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

TR Propert, Inesurart Trust
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
Return Return Return Return Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000
Inccme
Investment income 2 52,077 - 52,077 447170 - 44770
Qther operating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental income 3 3,513 - 3,513 2,773 - 2773
Service charge income 3 946 - 946 1303 - 1103

(Losses)/gamns on investments
held at fair value 10 - (549,430) (549,430) - 249,038 249038

Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments
andloan notes - (2,780} (2,780) - 1136 1,136

Net movement on foreign
exchange; cash and cash

eguivalents - 2,016 2,016 - 637 637

Net returns on contracts for

difference 10 9,462 (45,556) (36,094) 5,701 16361 22062

Total Income ) ) 66,253 (595,738}  (529.485) 53,752 267172 3209724

Expenses

Managerment and performance

fees 5 (1.560) (4,680) (6,240) (1,663) (29,477) (31,140)

Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 (1,660) - (1,660) {1,438} - {(1,435)

Other administrative expenses 6 {1,163) (542) (1,705) (1,621 (608} (2,229)

Total operating expenses (4383)  (5222) _ (9,605) (4,719) (30,085) (34804}

Operating profit/(loss) 61,870 (600,960) (539,090) 49,033 237087 286,120

Finance costs ) 7 (1,146) (3,438) (4584) 629) | (1.886) {2,515)

Profit/(ioss) from operations

before tax 60,724 {604,398) (543,674) 48,404 235,201 283,605

Taxation 8 (6,087} 2495  (3592) @ (4967) 3,049 (1918}

Total ccmprehgnswe income B 54,637 (601,903)  (547,266) 43437 238,250 281687

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary

share 9 17.22p (189.67)p (172.45)p 13.69p 7507p 88.76p
g Total :c\um’l of =1 5 statement represeis the Sroup’s Staremen of Comiprenens ve IMCome preparea i ECC0ICanse v I
K-zdop mreationa’ aoocunt ng standarcs Tne Revenue Returnanc Capta BElUT 20 UMNS are SURD emenia’y 1671 S

anc are fera'e under gu cance pubisnec by the Assoc gt on of vesSTTIENT ComEan es & tems nthe 2bove Siatament

cence from continug ng operanans

Trie Croup coes tct nave BNy * Acome or expense g snotinclucec N1e sba.e statement s meefore ol

comprenens ve ncome’ s a'se e prof T ana ass for the vear

Aoaccme g gt buiab e o the snsrengiders of tne parent comipanv

meactes rompages 2L1a 104 form pan of tiese Fasnc g Slaiements
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. . o
Group and Company statement of changes in equity
:
Group
Share Capital
Premium Redemption Retained
Account Reserve Earnings »
For the year ended 37 March 2023 Notes £'000 £000 £'000 é;
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739 é
Total comprehensive ncome - - - (547,266) {547,268} =
Dividends paid 17 - - - (47,127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Company
g
Share Capital §
Share Premium Redemption Retained B
Capital Agccount Reserve Earnings 2
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) {547,266)
Dividends paid o 7 - - (47,127)  (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
-]
G g
roup al
Share Capital 5
Share Premium Redemption Retained %
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £°000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687 o
Dividends paid o v - o (45381) (45381 2
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43971 1,396,268 1,562,739 §
>
“
Company §
Share Capital g
Share Premium Redemption Retained 2
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total o
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 -
: o : g
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433 3
(=]
Total comprehensive income - - - 281687 281,687 g
Dividends paid 17 - - - (45387) (45,387) =
At 31 March 2022 79338 43162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
The notes from pages 80 10 104 farm part of tnese = nancia, Statements
o
g
@™
g
T
=
g
3
Y
2
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Group and company balance sheets

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
Notes £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 10 948,672 948,672 1,506,436 1,506,436
investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,292 - 36,297
Investments held for sale 10 - - i - 48,980 48,980
948,672 984,964 1,555,416 1,591,713
Deferred taxation asset 12 903 _ 903 903 03
949,575 985,867 1,556,319 1,682,616
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97673 G7,208
Cash and cash eguivalents 36,071 36,069 32109 - 321307
101,358 101,362 129,782 129,215
Current liabilities 13 (23,654) (59,950) (66,109) (101.939)
Net current agsets 77,704 41,412 63,673 27376
Total assets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 1619992 1,619,992
Non-current fiabilities 13 (58,933} _ (58,933) {57,253 (57.253)
Net assets - 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43971 43971 43971
Retained earnings % 8875 801875 1396268 1396268
Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492 43p 492 43p

Thege fagng g stetements were appro.ed by e o rectors of 7
zuthonses ‘o ssue o 1 June 2023

2 Wataen

D Watson

Director

Tre ~otes fror pages 27 1o

o0

-

Prope-ty Imvesiment Trust plo - Compeny o 84497 anc

for~ pait ¢f trese F ~a~c al State~e~1s
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Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
before tax to net cash outflow from
operating activities
{Loss)/profit from operations before tax (543,674) {543,674) 283,605 283605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 2,615 2515
Losses/{gamns) on investments and
derivatives held at fair value through profit
or loss 594,986 594,990 (265399) (258,387)
Net movement on foreign exchange: cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes (336) (336) 977 (977)
Scrip dividends included in investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (6,325} (6,325) {10,839 {10,839)
Sale of Invesiments 448,587 448,587 544370 544370
Purchase of investments (427,509) (427,509) {430,830) {430,831}
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments and
accrued income (978} (978) 8 8
Decrease/(increase) in sales settlement
debtor 30,299 30,399 (32.871) (32.871)
Increase In purchase settlement creditor 3,172 3,172 5170 5170
Decrease In other debtors 1,419 1,413 2,951 2,951
{Decrease)/increase in other creditors {22,265) ~(21,797) 13,80¢ 6,798
Net cashflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,526 111,612 111,512
Interest paid (4,584) (4,584) {2,515) (2,515)
Taxation paid o (3,403) _ (3,869) {1,258) {(1,258)
Net cashflow from operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,739
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (47,127) (47,127} (45,381) (45.381)
Repaymentofipans (25,000} {25,000} {60,000} (60,000)
Net cashflow from financing activities (72.327) (72,127} {105.387) (105.381)
Increase in cash 1,946 1,946 2,358 2,358
Cash and cash eguivalents at start of year 32,109 32,107 29114 28,112
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32109 32,107
The notes from pages 8010 104 form part of these Financial Statements.
Annual Renort & Accodns 2023 79
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Notes to the financial statements

01

m

[en]

Accounting policies

The f.nancial statemenis for The year enoed 31 March 2023 have heen prepareq on @ going conzern basig, 'n accordance wh
Ur-adopted international account.ng standards and in conformitv wiih the requirements of tne Compamec Act20C6 "he financial
staterments have a.50 been prepaed i accorcance with the Stalement of Recommenaed Pracuce, "Fnanoial Staiements of
investment “rust Companies anc Venture Cap ta Trusts, \'SORD tc the exteriz that '11g 2ons stent with UK adopred intenationa
accounting stancercs.

in assessing Going Cancern the Board nas made a cetailed sssessment of the ab ity of the Company and tne Group ic meet
w5 abiites as they fal que, ncluding stress ana l'guid ty tests which considered the effects of substanuaifal s ninvestmen:
vauations, revenues received and market hgu cily 2s the gioba economy continues to su‘fer disruption due to nflationary
pressures. tne war 10 Ukraine anc the afier-effects of the COVIN-19 pandem.c

noigiht of the testing carned out, e howe ty of the jevel 1 assets hec by e Compeny and the significant net asset value,
and the net current asset pos't on of the Group and Parent Company, the Directors are satised that the Company anc
Group have adequate f 1z1¢ al “escurces 1o continue in operation for at leas: the next 12 months foiowing the sign g &*
the financ al statements and therefore it 15 approprate to adopt the going concern bas's of account g

The Group anc Company finanoal statements a-e expressed ™ sterung, wh onos ten funclional and presentationa
currency Sterling 1s the “unctional currency because 't.s tne currency of the primany econom ¢ enviroiment 1 wn chtne
Group operates Va ues are rounced to the nearest thousand pounds (£ OG0 except where otherw . se ind cated,

Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financia staterments qecessamly rEGUITES e exern se of Juagement, bota 1 apprcatian of

accountng polcies, which are get out below, and in tne se ection of assumphions usec in the calculaton of estimates
These est mates and judgements are reviewed on an ongong basis and ave continua’ly evaluates based on nistonical

exper ence anc other lactors Fowever, actual results may differ from these estimates “he only key esumzte

1S congaered 1o be the va uation of Investmen: properties See section {¥) of this note Taere are not conzidered

to be any key Juagements.

a) Basis of consolidation

Thne Group franc al statements consolidate the inanoie Slateme'nq o the [‘ompa'w and s subsic ares o 31 Macn
2023 Al tne subsiciaties of tne Company have been consolidatea 1 tnese nanc g’ stat emem: I gcco dancze with
IFRSTC tne Company has been ces.gnatec as an nvestmert: emAy G the basis tnas

T ohbtams fundg from vestors and provides Those nvestons w 11 INvestmean” management services:

<1 commits to ts westors that it business purpose s1o wvest funcs go ey far returns from capra appreciat.on and
Nvesiment income; and

- It measures 21d eva uates per‘omance of substantia va of is nvestments onafarvalue bas's
o

Eacn of the subs cizries of tne Company was establisnec for tne sofe purpese of operatng o7 suppo™ ng e iMyesiment
operat ons of the Company inc ud g ra-gng acd tional “nancngl, and :g 1ot Tse 80 vestment entty -FRS 10 sets out
inet nthe case of controllec entis es that support te avestment act.y tyv of 1ne Investmen: ent 1y, 1hese entit es snoulc ke
consohaaiec rather than preseted as investmenis &t fawr value Locors gy 1ve Company nas conschasted 1ne resus
anc financ a. post ons of tnose subs a ar es

Subsigianes z-e consorgated from Tie date of therr acous © on being the date on wh cntie Company obla ns conto enc
cont nue o be consol aated unt : the dzte that such contro ceases he financ &l statements of subsid.anes used e
preparaucn of the conscl dated “ingncia statements are basec om 2ons stent account ag polties All vta-group balances anc
ansact §1s. Nc us 1g unrealisec profis ansing therefrom, ate el'minaiea

b) Income

o owicends ‘eceivalie onegu Ty shates are ire Ttheves e an ex-d . geng besis WVinere ng ex-dividenc
e-sacaighe divgencsrece vabeonort: re freaTer 3% reLeniue for tne yeas Proy S1gT S meace
ary ¢ . cencs et mp ted 1o be recervec s rithe form of
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Accounting policies
c) Expenses

Al expenses s1d fniance costs are accounted tor on an eccruais basis An ana'ysis of retamned earnings broken cown nto
revenue anc capita. rems s given 1 nole 16, In armving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue
items excepr as follows

« Expenses which are incidentzl to the acoustion or disposal of an invesument,

- Expenses are presentec as capra where a connection with the ma.ntenance or enhancement of the va.ue of the
investimenrs can be demonstrated, tvs includes imecoverab e VAT micurrea on costs me at'ng 1o the extension ¢f
residentia leases as premiums received for extending or terminating .eases are recogn sec in the capital aczount

+ One quarter of the hase management fee s charged 1o evenue, wla three guariers allocated 1o capital return 1o reflect
the Boare s expectatons of long term investment returns Al performance fees are charged to cap tal return,

 The func edministration, cepositary, custody and company secretaria services are charged direstly 1o the Company and
are included withrn Other adminisirative expenses i1 note 6 Trese expenses are chargen on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to .ncome and three quarters to capital

d) Finance costs

The finance cost in mespect of cap.tal mstruments other tnan equity shares 1s calculated so as to give a constant rate
of return on the outstanding baiance. One quarter of *he finance cost 1s charged (o revenue and three guarters to
cap ta return,

e) Taxation

Currenttax assets and liabiliz'es are measured at the amount expectec o be recovered from or pa.d ta the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or sutistantively enactec by e ba ence sheet date

mcome tax 1s chargec or credited directly to equity If it relates 1o ilems that are credited o' chargec 1o eguity
Otherwise income 1ax 1s recognigec 11 the Group Statement of Comp-ehensive Income

The tax ef‘ect of different items of expenditure 1s allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's effective rate
of tax far the year The charge *or taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into accoun: taxation deferred
because cfremporary differences tetween the treatment of certan items fo- taxat on and accounting purposes

In acco dance w1 the recommendations of the SORP, the allocation method usec o calcuiate tax relief on expenses
presented aga nst capital returns in the suppiementary information 'n the Staterment of Comprehensive income 1s the
‘margina' basis” Jnder this basis, 1f taxatle income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presentec inthe
revenue return column of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief ‘s rransferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be pavable o~ recoverable o1 differences between the catrying amounts of assets
and habiities 1n the Balance Sheer and the cor-esponding tax bases used .n the computatien of taxable profit, and ‘s
sccounted for using the balance sheet [ ability method Deferred tax iabilties are recognised for g taxable temporary
cifferences and deferred tax assets are “ecogn’sed 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wil: be avarlab e
againsl which geductible temporary differences can be utilised

The Company s anirvestment trust under s 1158 of the Corporation Tex Act 2010 and, as such. is not lakble for tax on
capital gams. Capnal gains anising in subsiciary companies are subject to capital gans tax

f) Investment property

Investment property ‘s measured inizally at cost ncluding transact en costs Transaction costs nolude trans’er taxes,
professional fees for egal services and initizl leasing commissions to bring the property o the condition necessary “or
it to he capable of operating. “he carrying amount also includes the cost of replac ng part of an existing investment
properly aithe tme that cost s ncurred if tne recognition criteria are met The purchase and sale of properties is
recognised o be effected on the date uncongitiona! contracts are exchanged

Subsequent toinimal recognition, investment property 1S statec at fair vaiue Gains or losses ansing from changes in the
fair va'ues are ncluded inthe Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they anse

westment property .5 derecogrisec when it nas been disposed of or permanently vithdrawn from use anc no future
economic benedt g expecied from its d'sposal Any gains or i0sses on the retirement of disposal of investment property
are recognised in the Group Siatement of Comprehensive ncome inthe vear of disposat

Gains or osses o the cisposal of mvestment property are cetermined as the difference betweeri nel cispose: proceeds
and the carying value of the asset at the cate of disposa..

Revaluation of investment properties

Tne Group car-ies its .nvestment propert es at farr va'ue in accorcance with IFRS 13, ~evaiued tw ce a vear, with changes
nfarr values heing recognised in the Croup Statement of Comprehensive Income The Group engagec <might Frank as
ncependent vaiuation specialsts to aetermine “air value as 8t 31 March 2023

s}
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

01

Accounting policies .

Valuations of investment properties

Getermn nation of tne fa’r value o° nvestment propert es nes been prepaed onthe bhas:s defined by 1ne RICS Vawzuon
Glcha! Standards (The Red SBook Gloha Stancarcs’ as folows

The estimatec amount far which a propety should exchange 01 the cate of va.uat onbetween o wil ing buyeranc a

WUING s erinan atm'’s fength fransact on & fler proper marketing wherein the part.es nad eacn acec mm-‘.ffedgedbwy‘
prudently and witnout compu sicn’

The valuation takes into account future casn flow from assets 1Sucn as 1emings, ienants proflies, future revenue streams,
capita, values of fxtures and ftiings, plant anc machinery, any environmenizl matters and tne overa’ repaim and condion
of the property) and ciscount rates app icab.eto those assels ~ Nese essumplions are basec 00 ocal marx<et congit ong
ex sting a1 the ba'ance sheet date.

narrving at ther estimates of fair vaues as at 31 March 2023, the vaive s nave used ther marke: know'edge and
professional udgemen: and have net only rel.ed solely 97 historical transactiona: comparables. Examples of inputs to the
valuation can be seen in the sens-tivity analys s disc osec innote 12 ej

Held for ssle iInvestmen® are presented separate'y o1 tne face of 1ne Balance Sheet,

Held for sale
Investiment property classified 2s neld for sale1s measured far va.ue

Tris condinon s regarded as met anly when e vestme propetly s avalable for mmed.ate sale in s present
condit onanc the gale s highly probab e

Management must be committed to a plan for sale withi an act ve programme 1o 1gentfy @ buye- at a reasonable price n
relation to ils fair vaiue winich shoulc be expected 10 qua fy ‘or recogniton as & comp eteg sale w tm one year rom the
cate of c'assif calon

Rental income

Retal ncome recevab & under operat NG 'eases 15 ecogn’sec on & siraignt- ne bas s over the term of the ease. excep:t
for contagent “enta income which s -ecognised when it amises

incentves for lessees to enter nto iease agreements or oihe” negst ated rent free periocs agreec are spread evenly aver
e ease term, even if the payments are not made gn such @ bes\% The .ease te'm s the non-cancellab’ e period of the
lezse together waith any furtner term for which tne tenan:t "labi e op* ontc zont.nue The ease, where at the T(“ﬂp‘b"”\ of
the leage tne drectors are reascengbly certa nthat e tenant will exertise gt optLon Premiums receved 1o term.nate or

extena leases are recogn sed in the cap],:. account of the G'our Sigtement of Comprehensive noome when they ar se

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

ncome &r sing from expenses recnarged 1o tenants s recagn sed nthepenod i chiine expanse can be LQT["’ usy
recovered. Service charges and other such rece prs are nciudec goss of the fel“*“ cogisinrevenue a8 the d recto
colsise” T1al the Group a2rs asp- 1opa 1t s "espelt

g) Investments

VWen a2 putchase or sa & s mace uncer contract, the term which requre ceivery v
mar Ret, e investiments concerned are “ecogn sed o def econwse"l 07 the rade cate
L11"e GCrodps neess ments gre cefnec unce” RS gs nvestmen
8:50 cescribeq in these ingnc &l st ements as Nvesimenis ne o
A eESTMEenTE 278 Ges gNated LLoN InA& FECogNIon 88 e CET B Ty ‘e messureC at subsecuent reporting cates e’
JEIUE e, for Cus ed MyestmETS s fje»cm ciobeciosncprcesto ouces oI SUTopean 8100 exCIENGES 800

[ 1

SETE siocks sourced from tne L.ondon Stock Excnange
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01

Accounting policies

Derivatives continued
(CFDs are synthetic equities and are valued by re‘erence o the investments underiying marke! va ues

Tne solurces of the returns under tne dervative contract fe ¢. notional d vidends, finanang costs, interest returis ana
capital changes) are allocated <0 the revenue and capital accounts inaignment with the nature of 1he unde- yng source
of Income a1d in accordance wth the guicance gver 1 the AIC SORP Notigna! cividend income or expenses ar sing on
long or short post ons are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notiona' interest expense on long pos~icns s
apporioned between revenue and capital 11 accordance with the Board's long term expected returns o the Company
fcurrentiy detesm nec to be 25% o the “evenus account and 75 to capital reservesi Changes invaue "elatngio
underlying price moverments of securnies in re ation 10 CFD exposures are alocated who iy to capital reserves

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

All .oans and cebentures are initially recognised at tne ¥air value of the consideration ~ece ved, less 1ssue costs where
applicable After mitiairecognition, al interest bearng loans and borrowings ere subsequently measured at amo-tised
cost Amortsed costis calculated by taking \nto account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging
any interest bearing loans are capitahsed and amortised over the life of the ‘oan on an effective interest rete basis

i) Foreign currency translation
ensact gns rvolvng fore.ga currencies ate converied at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Fore gn currency monetary assets and | abties are translates into sterling at the rate ~u' ng on the balance sheet date
Fore gn exchange cifferences are recogn sea in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive nzome

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash ana cash equivalents zre measured at amortised cost and compnse cash in hand and demand deposits
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

Intesim dividends are recognised in the per.ocin which they are paic and final divaends are recognised when appraved
by shareholders

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current pericd
The ascounting policies adepted are consistent with these of the previous conso1oated financial statements

There were no amendments *o internationa Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretations that had an effect duning the perioc.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued hefore tne reporting da‘e inai become effective after 31 March 2023 are not expecied to have

a matenal effect on equity or profit for the subseguent pericd ~ne Group has not eary agopied a7y new Internauona
Financaal Reporting Standard or nterpretation Standaros, amendments and interpretations 1ssued but 1ot yel effective up
tc the date of 1ssuanice of the Group's financiai statements are listed below

1AS 1 Amendments - C ass:fication of Liabi ties as Current or Non-Cur-ent (effective cate amendeo to 1 January 2023)
The amencments specify the requrements for classifying 1abites as current or non-current. The amencments are not
expectec to have a maierial iImpact onthe Group's financial statements

IAS T Amendments - Disclosu-e of Accounting Policies {effective 1 January 2023). The amenaments require an entity to
disclose 'ts matenal accounting policy nformation instead of its significant account ng po 1cies The amenaments contan
guidance and examples on identifying mate-al accounting pohcy information.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definit.on of Accounting Estimates {effective 1 January 2023) The amenaments aefine accounting
est mates as 'monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 1o measurement uncerta nty’ The amendments
also clanfy the interaction between an accounting policy and an accouniing estimate

IAS 12 Amencments - Deferred Tax releted 1o Assets and Liabilties arising from a Single "rensaction (effect ve T January
2023) The amendments recu.re entities with certan assets to recognise deferred tax on particular transactions that, on
Imiia’ recognit on, give rse to ecual amounts of taxable and ceductible temporary differences

A5 1 Amendments - Non-current Liahi ities with Covenants lelfective 1 January 2024 Tne amendments "equi e CIsc 0se
of ~formation when there g 2 nght to defer sett'ement of 2 hakihity for at least twe've months

Annual Renort & Accounts 2025 B2
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02 Investment income

Dividends from UK listed investments
Dividends from overseas listed investments
Scrip dividends from listed investments

Property income distnibutions

03 Net rental income

Gross rental income

Service charge income

Direct property expenses, rent payabie and servrce_c_harge costs

Operating leases

“ne Group haz entered inio commercia  cases 00 s property portfoio, Commercial property leases typica
terms between 5 anc 1hvears and nc'ude clauses T

2023
£000
3.084

30,891
6,325
LM77

2023
£000

3,513
946
(1,660)
2,799

52,077

revall ng marke? conditions. Some lezses contan opt ons o breax before e ena of *he lease Term
g !

Future minmurm renta s under non-cancellzble operat g ezses as at 31 Marcn are as follows

Within 1 year
After 1 year but not more than 5 years

More than 5 vears

04 Other operating income

Interest recevable
Interest onrefund of overseas withholding tex

Income received 10 capita

)
[

2023
£'000
2,900
9,900

14150
26,950

2023
£000

255

267

LT

2022
£°000
3,107
21,349
10,693

2,027
24,170

2022
£000
2773
1,103
{1,435}
2,444

iy have ease

o enab e penodic upwarc “ev sion of e renta charge according ic
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05 Management and performance fees

2023
Revenue

£000

1,560
Performaﬁce fee ) -
1,560

Management fee

2023
Capital
£'000

4,680

4,680

6,240

6,240

2022
Revenue
£°000

1,663

1663

2022
Capital
£000
4,588
24,489
29477

Asummary of the torms of the management agreermenl is given in the Report of the Lirectors on page 47

Under the terms of this agreement the manager is not entitled to a performance fee for the year 1o 31 March 2023,

2023
£000

06 Other administrative expenses

Directors' fees (Directars’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 1o 65)

Auditor's remuneration:

- for qudit of the consolidated and parent company financial
staterments

Legai fees

Taxation fees

Other administrative expenses
Other expenses
Irrecoverable VAT L

Expernses charged to Revenue
Expenses charged to Capital

Other administrative expenses include gepositary, custody and company secretaral sevvices. These expenses are

228

2022
Total
£000
6,651
24,489
31,140

2022
£'000

220

82
21
77
199
865

1,627
©08

153

2,229

charged on the same basis as The base management fee 25% te 1ncome and 75% to cap tal Tota' other agm n strative
expenses charged to both ‘ncome and capital are £727.000 (20227 £807,000)

Other expenses inciude broke- fees marketing and PR costs, Directers National insurance and recruitment, Registrars

anc listing fees, and annual report and other publicaton prntng and distnbution ¢

sclely 1o the revenue account

eTalale

Annual Repors & Accounts 2023

ost

Lol

s These expenses are crarged

o

MIIAIRAD

Hodal afizjens

I0UBLIBALY

SIUILBL]S [ejouew

2INSOISIP QWLIY pue AIESSO)9

WOV Jo 310N

UONIBWLID, LI JIPjOydIRYS



Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

2023
£000

Loan notes, bank loans and overdrafis repayable within 1 year
Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years
Loan notes repayable after 5 years

Amount aliocated to Capital

08 Taxation

o

[

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2023
Revenue

£060

UK corporation tax at 19%

(2022 19%) 4,221 (3,521)

Overseas taxation ) 2,148 1,026
6,369 (2,495)

Over provision ir respect of prior

years {282) -
6,087 (2,495)

Deferred taxation 7 - 7 R
Current tax charge for the year 6,087 (2,495)

700
3,174
3,874

(282)
3,592

3,592

3,189
837
558
4,584
(3,438)

2022
Revenue
£'G00

2,832

2135
4,967

4,967

4967

1,146

2022
Capital
£'600

(2.832)
(2.832)
(2.8372)

(2171
(2,049)

2022
£000
1162
814
539
2,515
(1.886)
629

2022
Total
£'000

2135
2,135

2,135
(217)
1918

TR Propert Ireesirert Trast



08 Taxation
b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax zasessed tor the year iz lower (2022 ower] than the stancare rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large
company of 195 (20227 194

Tne dfference 1s exp ained below:

2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
© £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

Net profit/{loss) on ordinary

activities before taxation 60,724 (604,398) (543,674) 48 404 235,201 483,605

Corporation tax charge at 19%

(2022:19%) 11,538  (114,836)  (103,298) 6157 44,688 53,885

Effects of:

Non taxable losses/(gains) on

investments - 104,392 104,392 - (47,317) (47,317)

Currency movements not taxable - 145 145 - (337} (337}

Tax relief on expenses charged to

capital - (1,878) (1,878) - 3243 3,243

Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656 - (3.109) {3.109)

Non-taxable UK dividends (586) - (586) (603) - (603)

Mon-taxable overseas dividends (6,791) - (6,791) {5810} - (5810}

Overseas withholding taxes 2,148 1,026 3,174 2135 - 2,135

Deferred tax movement - - - - 2173 (217}

Qver provision in respect of prior

years (282) - (282) -

Disallowabhle expenses 131 - 131 26 - 26

Deferred tax not provided (71) - )] 22 - 22
6,087  (2.495) 3,592 4967 (3,049) 1,918

¢) Provision for deferred taxation
The ameaunts for deferred taxation prov dea at 25% (2022: 25 ) compr se

Group
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Unutilised iosses carried forward ~ (903) {903) - {903) (903)
Shown ag
Deferred tax asset 7 - (903) (903) - (202) (203]
Company 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £:000 £000 £000
Unutilised |osses carried forward - (903) (903) - (903} (903)
Shown as’
Deferred tax asset - (903) (903) - (903} (903)

Arnua Report & Accourts 2023 a-
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08

09

[$23
m

Taxation

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued

The movement In provision in the year is as follows

Group YAIVE] 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000

Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903) - (686) (686)
Unutilised losses carried forwarg - - - - 217 (217
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (503} - (9C3}) {303}

Company
2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue i Revenue Capital Total
£'000 ! £'000 £'000 £000
Provigion at the start of the year - (903) (903) - {686) (686)
Unutilised losses carried forward - ) - - - (217) (2173
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903) - (903] (903)

The Group has not ecogisec deferred tax assets of £5601 01712022 £8,0C7 768) a7 aing as a result of losses caT ea
forward ‘tis consideed 0o uncertain *hat tne G Oup veni generate profits in thﬂ e e\e compames et tie osses would ke
availab e o offsel age net anc. on s bas s, the gefered tax agsel 1N respect ¢° ese expenses has ngt been "ecognisec

O mr

Cue to the Company's s1atus as an nvestment trust company and the intert on to continue meet ng the cond 1 ons
required to oktain appreve for the foreseeable future, the Company nas not prov ged cefer-ed tax 00 arv cap tal ¢ains
2718INg 01 ine revaluation or d.sposzal of nvestments

Earnings/({loss) per Ordinary share

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Net revenue profit 54,637 43,437
Net capital profit ) ) ) __ (601,903) 238,250
Net total profit L o o (547,266) 287 687
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the the year o . 317,350,980 __317.350980
Revenue earnings per share 17.22 1369
Capital earnings per share (189.67) 7507
Earnings per share ) i (172.45) BR76

The Group kas no securties e issue that cauls dilute the return per share "herefore the basic anc diluted returr per share
are the same

TR Sroners v oestrers Trass



10 Investments held at fair value

a) Analysis of investments

‘Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000

Listed In the United Kingdom 383,303 383,303 516,076 516,076

Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,573 2,573 2,341 2,341

Listed Overseas 488,839 488,839 940,744 940,744

Investment properties 73,957 73,957 47275 47275
Investments held for sale - ) - 48,980 i 48,980

Investments held at fair value 948,672 948,672 1555416 1,555416

Investments in subsidiaries

atfairvalue i - 36,292 7 - 36,297

948,672 984,964 1555416 1591713

Investments held for sale mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 31 March 2022 with a
sale expacted to complete by the end of June 2022 Ulumately, the residential element of the Colonnades was sold and a
decision was made 1o retain the commercial element for the foreseeable future. There are no investments held for sale as
at 31 March 2023,

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net N8  Valuation revenue revenue

31 March additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 (disposals) {depreciation) 2023 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Listed investments 1,456,820 (52,581 (532,087) 872,142 51,450 43775
Unlisted investments 2,341 - 232 2573 627 395
Contracts for difference 7,657 42,561 (45556) 4,662 9,462 5,701
Total investments segment 1,466,818 {10,030 (577411 879,377 61,539 49 871
Direct property segment 96,255 (4723)  (17.575) 73,957 4,459 3,876
1563073 (14,753) (594,986) 953,334 65,998 53,747

‘N seexing to gchieve its nwvestment ohject ve, 11e Company invests n the shares anc securites of property companies
and property related bus nesses Internationally and also ninvestment property located nthe UK The Company
tnerefore consigers that there are two distinct reporting segments, invesiments and direct property, which are used

for evaluating performance and allocation of resources ~he Board, which 1z tne principa’ dec sion maker, reccives
information on the two segments on a regular basis Whilst revenue streams and cirect property costs can be attributed
o the reporting segments, general administ-ative expenses cannot be spit to allow a profit for each segment to be
determned The assets and gross revenues for each segment are snown above

The preperty costs inciuded within note 3 are £1,660,000 (2022 £1,435000) ana deducting these costs from the direc:
property gross revenue above would resut ™ net income of £2.799.000 2027 £2,441.00C: for the direct property
repo-t.ng segment

Annua Report & Accodnts 20232 85
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10

investments held at fair value

c) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuaticn Net N=8  Valuation revenue revenue

31 March additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 (disposals) (depreciation} 2023 2023 2022

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

UK listed equities and convertibles 516,076 46,397 (179.164) 383,303 15,941 11731
UK unlisted equities 2341 - 232 2,573 395 3585
UK direct property’ 96,255 (4723) (17.575) 73,957 4,459 3876
Continental European listed equities 940,744 (68,982) (352923) 488,839 35,741 32,044
1,555,476 (57,314} (549,430} 948,672 56,536 48,046

UK contracts for difference? 1,627 31,268 (33831) (936) 3,425 16016
European contracts for difference? ) 6030 11,293 {11725} 5,558 6,037 4085
1.563,073 (14.753) (594986} 953,334 65,998 53,747

oy

1cluged i e above figures are purchase costs of £881,000 (2022, £48C.000) and sales costs of 238,006 (20272
£2539.000:
T hese comprise ma iy sTamp duly anc Commission
The Compam receves £512.1550C0,2022. £544,682.00C from nvesiments, nc uding d.ect property, so d 1e
vear ~ e book cost 0f these mvestiments wnen they were purchased was ££12,2790 90 12022 £356 4380001 " nese
nvesiments have been revaiued over tume aag until 1ney were sold any unresiised gains osses were noludeain tne “ar”
value oF the vestments

Net ade tionsqaoisposals; actudes £480000 (2022 £366.000) of cap 1af expenditure Net apprecia: on  aeprecialion,
nc udes amounts N respect of rent free periods

? C aF: ,5 revenue for contracts for oifference relates 1o orwtenos recerak e on a0 ex d vicend has s o0 18 uncerlyng
positons he a The zpprec.ation wdepreciationt in CFDs relates to the movement in far vz ue in tne year

“he geprec ation 1 the TRE reiates to the movement 1“3 ~value inthe year unt. malurty

d) Substantial share interests

“ne Group he conterests 3 - or mote of anv c.ass of capal 16 com p
None of taese 1mvesimenTs s consinered sichificant .o the context of 1
20 154 for further detal g of subsicary IMVESTITents

ampames; 1w ctl vesDs
tements seenoie 2] onpages 102

i!!
U)
S
[}
s
N
[53)

fb
4
o
3
(]
.
%)
pein
0y ¢y

Fingnoia asses ana inanc al hatiities are carmed 1 tne Balance Iheel efte” gt e~ fa 7 va Ue neesiments or e
3@ ance sheet amount s 3 ~easonskle zpproxmeation of fa rwalue [Cue from bro<ers, d'roencs ana interest recel.al'e
due 1o b'o‘vers‘ 80C7JE S anc cscgh at bank,

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

Calegor €8L.0M VIt TIE Letarony !
L3 ue meaSermem oftheee.e

Le.€ Z-Lauedby reference 1o, g Uat ontecnn cues s g obseriab e puis othertnan cugtec ot tes v thnLene
_2.© Z-.zuechbyreferente 1o L2 UsT 0N e TUSE US AL "EJIS TNAET 2'e 10l Bases on obserat emarwet 2Ets
The.vauzioniesnn cuss uses b e GrCUB RS £ap 2 N8 TTNEETOCUNT T ED Tes i asies 17 zne g

TR Broperty e esimert Trast
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10 Investments held at fair value

e) Fair value of financial assets and financiai liabilities continued
The takle below sevs out farr valus measurements usiag 1FRS 13 farr va ue hierarchy

@

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss 8

3

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2

At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 2
Equity investments 861,611 10,531 2,573 874,715
Investment properties - - 73,957 73,957
Lontracts tor ditterence - 4,662 - 4,662
Foreign exchange forward contracts - ~ {(386) o - (386)

o - _._selent 14807 76,530 . 952,948 g

2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 March 2022 £'000 £000 £'000 £'060
Equity investments 1,456,820 - 2,341 1,458,161
Investment properties - - 96,255 96,255
Contracts for difference - 7,657 - 7,657
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 2736 ) - B 2,736
_____'LJ456J820 o - 10,39_3__ . 98_5_96_ . 1 5_65809

The tzb e above represents the Group's fair value hierarchy The Company's fa' - valus hierarchy is 1dentical except for the
nzlusion of the fair value of the investment in subs diaries which at 31 March 2023 was £36,.292.000 (2022 £36,297,0C01
These Rave been categorised as ievel 310 both vears The movementin the year of £5000 12022 £7,015000) s

tne change n “air value In tne year Tne total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2023 was
£984,964 000 (2022 £1,581,713.000;

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

(7]
31 March Appreciation / 31 March ﬁ
2022  Purchases Sales (Depreciation) 2023 5
At 31 March 2023 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 3
A ; >
Unlisted equity investments 23 o - 232 2,573 z
Investment properties g
- Mixed use 48,187 387 (5,203} (6,746) 36,625 g
c
- Office & industrial 48,068 93 - (10.829) - 37,332 s
96,255 480 (5.203) (17,575) 73,957 =
98,596 480 (5,203} (17,343) 76,530 )
B ’ i o
All appreciat.ons(depreciation) as statec ahove relates to movements in fair value of unlisted eauity nvestments ano B
Myestment properties heid at 31 March 2023 £
Tre Group nelc one uncuoted investment at the vear enc fgee 11 6 overlezh
Transfers between hierarchy levels
[mere were 1o ransfers dunng the vear hetween any of 1ne lee's
(5]
8
1]
g
g
s
S
3
z
5
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Investments held at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

Tre sigrif.cant unobservable inputs used in the fa- value measurement categensed witnn Level 3 0% the *arr value
hierarchy of ‘nvestment properties are

+ Estimated rental value £7 5-£65pe- s tiZ022 £6.5- £65!

< Capitahsstion rates 30 - 6.0% (2022 2 0% -6 0%

Signiicant Increases (Cesreasesi n estimates rental value and "ent growth isolat on would resuit 7 a significantly

higner (iower) farr vaiue measurement A sign ficant increase [decreasel In long-term vacancy rate n solat onwoulc
result .na signif canty (cwer (highey *air va'ue measu-ement

There are Aterrelatonships between the vields anc rental values as they are partially cetermnec by market rate
condit.on The sens.tivity of the valuation 1o changes 1 the most significantinputs per class o nvestment property are
shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2023 arising from £'000 £'000

Increase inrental value 5.0% 289 1,712 - 2,001
Decrease In rental value 5 0% ) {289) (1,712) i - (2,001)
Increase in Yield 0 5% (3,538) (3,466) - (7,004)
Decrease in vieid 0.5% _ 4,343 B 4,261 - N 8,604
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total
2022 arising from £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Increase inrental vaiue by 5% 306 2266 145 2,717
Decrease inrental value by 5% (294 o (2.286) ) ) (2.567)
Increase n yield by 0.5% (3.865} (6.343) (832} (17 040)
Decrease inyield by 0 5% 48417 8711 10 4653

No impairment osses have been recogised as at 271 *March 2023

11 Financial instruments

Risk management policies and procedures
The Croup mvests It eauities and otne” nsvuments forthe 'ong tenm n e purset of the imvestmen: Objecive set ot
on page 33 The Group s expesedtoa va- ety of nsks gt coud resull nether 2 meducton or 1 g easge in e pro’ns
ava sbefor distr bution by vay of covidends

The g ac pa ns<s the Croup faces n s pemifol o menagement act: ves are.

fAa kel rs<iComE” Sing pr 8 T sk TuTtensy S<End ETesl ate g

« CreC’t nsx

e Manage”
Troughoutt

Lo T es a0 processes for ImENegIng TNese T1s<s 27 sSUMTIRT 882 0T pages 3 1o <l anc nz e been app eC

s = 5
e

Ly
(B

TR Pronerte Irsestert Tross
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Financial instruments

11.71 Market price risk
By the very mature oF 15 aclivilies, the Group's nvestments are exposec 1o market price fluctuations

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a divers fiec portfolia and reports to the Board on the portfolio act'vity ana performance at each 3oad
meet'ng. The Boarc montors the Investmient activity anc strategy lo ensure 1t1s compatible with the stated objectives

Trne Group's exposuse to cnanges "marxet pr ces onits cuoted equity avestments, CFDs and nvestment property

port‘ol o, was as fo'lows
2023 2022
£000 £'000

Investments held at fair value 948,672 1,555416
CFD long gross exposure ) 130,906 144,642

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out In the ‘nvestmen: Policies 01 page 34, there ate guicelines 1o the amount of exposure 10 a single company,
geograph cal region or direct property These guidelines ensure an approprate spread of exposure 10 indivigual or sector
price fisks As aninvestment company dedicated 1o investment in the property sector, tne Group 1s exposed to price
maovements across the property asset class as a wnole

Price risk sensitivity

Tre following table hustrates the sensitvity of tne profit after 1axation for the year and the value of shareholders fundsto
anincrease or cecrease of 15% 1 the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD znd cirect property investments.
Tne leve of change s consistent witi 11e illustration shown in the previous year. The sens.tvity 15 based on the Group's
equity, fixec terest, CFD and direct property exposure at each baance sheet date, witn al other vanab es hels constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£000 £000 £'000 £000

Staterment of Comprehensive
Income — profit after tax

Revenue return 71 71 (115} 115
Capital return 142,826 (142,826) 234176 (234,176)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds o 142,755 (142,755} 234,061 {234061)
Change 10 total earnings per Ordinary

Share 44.98p (44.98)p 73.75p (73750

11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group's portfoio s imvested i overseas secunties and their sterling value can be s'gnificant y a*fected
by movements in foreign exchange rates

Management of the risk

The Board receves a report at eacn Boare meeting on the proport'on of the avestment partfonio held in ster ing,
Euros or other currencies The Group may somenmes hedge fore gn currency movements outside e Eurozone by
fund ng vestments In overseas securties w in unsecured loans denaminated i1 the same currency or througn
forward curency contracis

Cash ceposits are helo in sterling andor Furo denomingtec accounts

0
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1
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Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the foliowing exposure:

(sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency

Sterling

Euro

Swedish Krona
Other

2023

34.0%
42.0%
14.0%
10.0%

2022

34.0%
42 0%
16.0%
_____8.0%

The foillow ng tabie sets out the Group's “otai exposure 10 fore gn cutrency 1 sk and the et exposure Lo foreign currenc es

of the net monetary assets ana naty tes

2023

Receivables (due from brokers,
dividends and other income receivable)
Cash at bank and on deposit

Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts

Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

FX torwards

Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary itermns

Investments held at fair value
Non-current assets
Non-current habilities

Total currency exposure

2022

Receivables (due from brokers,
dividends and other income receivable)
Cash at bank and on deposit

Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

FX forwards

Total foreign currency expcsure or net
monetary items

Investments held at fair value
Non-current assets
Non-current naktilities

Total currency exposure

Foreign currency sensitivity

Sterling

£000

10,534
8,226
(10,000)

(10,573)
(118,592)

(120,405)
459,832
903
(15,000)
325,330

Sterling
£'000

53,912

20,341
{35,000}

(25,642)
(88,2801

(74,669}
614,672

aC3
(15,000)
525,906

51,105
20,620

(1,221)
52,283

122,787
330,586
(43,933)
409,440

Euro
£000

fos!
]
=~
=l

(111)
{10,596)

15,398
68,755

{42.253)

658400

2,811
4,249

(1,474)
39,628

45,264
88,592

133,856

Swedish
Krona
£000

12659
2883

837
2,926

26,295

30,058
69,662

99,720

Other
£'000

608
5638

(3.722)
42135

44 659
78,534

4
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[
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11 Financial instruments
Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If sterting had strengtheneg against the currencies shown, this would nave had the follow ng effect
Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income — profit after tax

Revenue return (4,080) (354) (370) {3215) (399) (252)
Capital return ~ (53,496) (17.442) (12,993) (72.110) (33,256) (16,053}
Change to the profit after tax for
the year/shareholders’ funds (57,576) (17,796) (13,363) (75325 (33,655} (16,305)
2023 2022
Change to total earnings per share o ) (27.96)p _ (3¢ 48)p
f steri'ng hac weakenea against the currencies snown, this would have the foliowing effect:
Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022
Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Statement of Comprehensive
Income — profit after tax
Revenue return 5,392 445 475 4419 475 314
Capital return ) - 72392 23608 17,586 136656 45017 - 477
Change to the profit after tax for
the year/shareholders’ funds 77,784 24,054 18,061 141075 45,492 5,085
2023 2022
Change to total earnings per share B 37.78p ) } 60.3%p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest -ate movements may affect

« the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities,

- 11e farr value of the loan notes,

*the evel of income recewvable from cash at bank and on deposit,
- tne level of interest expernise on any varizhle rate bank logns, and
» tne pces of the underlying securities meld in the portfolios

Management of the risk

Tne possibie effects on “arr vaiue and cash flows that coulo anse as a result of changes minterest rates are taken 1Mo
account when mak ng investment decisions. Property compan es usua y nave horrowings themse ves and 11e leve o
gearing and structure of its debt portfol 018 & key factor when assess ng tne investiment in 3 property company

The Group has fixed anc has hac varsble rate horrowings during the year The interest rates on theloan notes «s fxed,
cetals are set outin note 13 1n addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan
facihitnes which carry vatiab'e rates of interest based on the cusrencies drawn, pius a margn. The unused lzoiiites 1otal
£120,000,000{2022 £95.000,000

el

w
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11

N4

T

Financial instruments

Management of the risk continued

The tdanager consicers bom tre level of debt 011 the batance sheet of the Group (1.e the loan "otes and any bank loans
drawn) and the see-throucgh gearmg, taking intc account the assets and lak n'es of tne under ying iNvestuments, wnen
cons denng the mvestment portfol.o These geanng evels are reported regularly to the Soard

The ma crity of the "‘-roup'f‘ vestment porifcio s non-nierest beanng As

Interest rate exposure
The expasure at 31 March of f nancial assets and fnanc’a lial s 10 Terest "ate nis<
<loating interest rates when tne interest rate s due o e re-se:
- fxecd interesi ~gtes when the financ al inst-ument 1s due 1o be repaid
The Group's exposure to floating interes: ~ates on assets . £81,1.,70,000 (2322 £77.2272,

The Group s exposure wo fixed interest rates on ah '3

Interest receivabie ana finance costs are a: the follow ¢ rates

- interest receved on cash balances, or paid on banx ove-drafis is at a margin over SONIA or

equivalent (2022 same;

+ Interesi paic 01 orow ngs under tne mu U-currency logn facilities. is ata margin over
A

ecuwvzient for e type of lean 12022 same;

The finance charges onthe £50m and £15mi0an notes a-e at interestrales of 1 827 g1 G

The vea~eng amounts are not -epresentative o’ the exposure 1o Ntetest rales ounng the

changes as vestmens a7e made in fixed Interest secuit es, borrowings a'e drawn dow

borrowings betveen “loating ana “ixed ntereat 1&Tes cnanges

Interest rate sensitivity
Achange of 2% on qterestrates at the ~eporting cate wou ¢ have nad the ‘o o

result ive Group s financ-a
directly subject 10 5 gnificant amounts of nsk cue to fluctuat.ons 1 ine prevaing -eve s of maket ﬁtﬂ’

1ass
st rat

efs are not
es,

s shown by reference to

s £ £58,932,00012022 £57,253,00C)

The Group's exposure to floatng mrerest ~ates on wab tes:s £10,050.00C (2022 £35,00C

SON Ao tsc

o8]

r s fore.gn cuency

59 respect vey

reicn currency

year gs ihe level of exposure
nanc rega ¢, a1d the m x of

ng irect imMpact

2023 2023 2022

2% 2% 7%

Increase Decrease increase

£'000 £'000

Change to sharehoiders’ funds (198) 198 (243)

Change to total earnings

per share ) (0.06)p ~ 0.06p (0.081p
T s level of change s not tepresentative of Ng year as 3 who-e Since TMe exposure changes 11raugisus

Tnis @ssessment does ot fa<e 1IC &7C0dn e Mpast of iterest TEle CNENGES 0 ine manket La Le

1e Group o s

11.4 Liquidity risk
whoucteg nestmenis N tnepotio o

encigee V) 6he oy

ML ESImenTE

~g< The Croup e ¢ ong urg

TF s

TmMETTs Mey be recucen L4137 MAzron 2025,

certylr

Dec

e yea

2022
7%
rease
£000

243

0 03p

e Teestmenls
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Financial instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within More than
1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5 years Total
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank loans* 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Loan notes - - 43,933 - - 15,000 58,933
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,585 6,668
Secunities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 - - - - - 2,953
Other creditors 141 - - - - 141
23,012 1,382 45174 539 539 16,585 87,231
Within Within Within Within Within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5year Total
At 31 Marech 2022 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 42 253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,247 536 27124 7,954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 5364 - - - - - 5,364
Accruals and deferred income 25523 - - - - - 25,523
Other creditors o222 - - : - - ) 222
67459 1,350 1,350 43494 539 17724 131376

Ve e

ary 2025 Dl 02 Charvaas dieeranthis fac Iy 2t hicba anee si8et cele

LOTETy Al

dim e ontts Tas e 3t e balanes @0et date

Soin

T anE searfar v s PONGS L Leembou g wes ene e r

COATADT Has qy st TRET aastoncwes] mNoebes 2007 Db 2022 £n taes cioenon s et et Lalence saeet deie

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidel.nes for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquated and cirect property investmen's These are set
out In11e nvestmen: Po'icies on page 34 Alunguoted investments with g value over £1m and direct property Investments with g
value over £5 millon must be approved by the Board for purchase

The Company maintaims "eguiar contact with the banks proviaing revolving facilities and renewar discussions commence

well ahead of facility renewal cates  n addition new opporunites for the provision of debt are exp ored on an ongoing
has's

11.5 Credit risk

Tne fallure of a counterparty to a transaction 1o discnarge 1ts obligations under that transaction could result 1 the Group suffering
aloss Atthe perioc end the argest counterparty sk, which tne Group was exposed 10 was wiihin Jebtors and Cash and cash
equivaients where the tota bank balances helg with one counterparty was £56,326,000 12022 £50,101.000)

Management of the risk

Irvestment transactions ate carmed out with a number of brekers, whose crec t standing ' -ev ewed perodicaiy by the
“Manage: and mis are el oh the amount that may be cue rom any one broker Tashat ban< s ony held with banks witn
high gualty external crec trat ngs

(o3
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Credit risk exposure

I sumimany, comparec to the amounts 11 1ne Baiance Sheel, the maximum exposure to credit r sk a1 37 March was as *olows

plipx
Balance

Sheet
£'000

Debtors 65,287
36,071

101,358

Cash and cash equivalents

2023
Maximum
exposure
£'000
65,287
36,07

101,358

2022
Balance
Sheet
£'000
897,673
32,109
129,782

2022
Maximum
expaosure
£'000
97673
32,109
129782

Whe-e the recevahles of the G-oup are exposed 16 credii risk, the recuierment for mparrmen 1s assessed al each ves”
end Forall recevables, inthe table ahove, no impairment nas beenrecognised - re ation 1o expeciec cred t osses asthe
‘mpact of these osses s snumater &l as &t 37 Marcn 2023217 Marcn 2022 noimpe “mentj.

Offsetting disclosures

norce ‘o defline Its coniractua. nignts better and to secure nights that will nelp tne Group mligate s caunierpariy rsk,
tne Croup may ente into an S04 Master Acreemen® or similar agreement veth ts 57 C derivative contract counterparies

AniSCA Master Agreement s an agreement hetween the Group ano the counterparty that governs O7C cervat

s and

foreign exchange contracts and tvpcally contains. among otner things co'lateral post ng terms anc nett ng prov s10MS
A Master Agreement, the Group has a contractua - gt

in the event of a default and o terminat on event Under an
to offset witn the counterparty cemta 1 denivalve financia

o
N

qstruments payables and-or rece vab es with collatera

mele and or posted anc create one single net payment in tne event of default inc'uding the ban<rupicy or insolvency

of the counterparty Fowever hankrupicy or nsolvency

weaofa partw:mar;urwsdicnorw may impose restclions o1 or
rrohib t ons aga 1zt the nght of offset in bank-upoy inscwvency or other events
I ) g SRS X

Trie aisciosures set out in the fai owing tabies ncluce finencial assets and insncial ehi es thatae subject te an

enfcrceatie master netting arrangarment or simaar agreemeant

4137 Naren 2023 gac 2022, the Group's cenvative asgels and

Year ended 2023

Net amounts
of financial
assets/

(liabilities)
presented in
the Balance

Sheet
£000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sacks 4,662
4,662

FX forward contracts

HSBC (386)
(386)

Y
%A

Cash collateral
pledged
£'000

65,117
65117

habl ves {bvtype and counterpaniyi wer

Year ended 2022

Net amounts
of financial
assets/
liabilities
presented in
the Balance
Sheet

£'000

7,657
7657

Cash collateral
pledged
£'000

451332
45133

n

TF Propertytr cesiert Trgst
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11 Financial instruments

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except ‘or the ican notes which are measured at amort sed cost ireter to Note 12 the fa- values of the financ’a: assets

znd fmanc ai liahrities are edner carrec 1 tne halance sheet at therr “air value (investiments) or the batance sheet &

amaount s a reasonzhle approximation of fair value [deblors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overcrafts, sccruals and =

prepayments), <

— ) ©

he fzr values of the istec .nvestments are cerived from the ciesing price ar last traced price at wn.cn the securt os are 8

quoted ¢ tne London Stock Exchanige and other "ecogn’sec exchanges g

The fa r value of contracts for difference are based an the underly ng listed investment vaiue as sel cut above and the

armount due frem or to the counterparty under the contract ‘s recordea as an asset or hiablty accordingly, wn.chis

disclozed i ote 13 for the current year

“he farr values of tne properties are derived frams an open market {Red Book: valuat on of the properties on tne Balance

Sheet date by an mdepencent f rm of valuers {<n:ght Frank] o
o

There was one unquoted invesiment at the Szrance Sheet date, Atrato. with a total ve:ue of £2,572,000 (2027 Atrato, §

£2.341,000] s
[+]

nthe Parent Company azcounis tnere are mvestments of £36 336,000 {2022 £3€,297.000) in unlisted subs'dianes which ®

are c'assihiec ag level 3

“he amounts of change in fair value for investments incluging net returns 071 CFDs recognisad in ine consolidatec profit

or loss for the year was 2 loss 0f £594,986 000 (2022 £265,399,000 gan)

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group s capital management ob ectives are.

- toensure that 1T will be able 1o continue as a going concern, and

+ to maxm se the total retusn 1o 11s equity shareholders *hrough an appropniate balance of equity capriai and debt.

The equ-ty cagital of the Group at 31 March 2023 consisted of callec up share capital, share premium. capital redemption

and -evenue reserves totalling £968,346,000 (2022 £1,562,739,00C) ~he Group does not regars the loan notes anc loans

as permanent capital.

“he loan notes agreement requires complance with a set of financial covenants, incuding.

- Total Borowings shal! 1ot exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value,

- tne Adjustec Total Assets shall at al tmes be ecuivalent to a mivimur of 300= of Tota! Borrowings, anc

+ tne Agjustec NAV shall not be less than £260.000,000

12 Debtors

Annual Resort & Accourts 2023

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £000 £'000

14
=1
o
@
&
<
@
=]
a
=
]
=z
L=
o
@
Q.
o
@
5
5
]

Amounts falling due within one year:

=
Securities and properties sold for %
future settlement 2,739 2,73% 337138 33138 g
Foreign exchange forward contracts B
for settiement - - 2736 2,736 =
Tax recoverable 3,857 3,857 32,344 2,879
Prepayrments and accrued income? 6,146 6,146 5,168 5168
Amounts receivable in respect of
Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7,657 7.657
CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45133 45133 @
=0
Other debtors 1,848 1,854 497 497 %
=
, 65,287 65,293 97,673 97,208 g
Non-current assets é,,
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 203 903 3
g,
=4

' Ine udes amaunts in cespect of rent free perods



Notes to the financial statements
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13

Current and non-current liabilities

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year

Bank lcans and overdrafts 10,000 10,000 35000 35,000

Securities and properties purchased

for future settlement 8,536 8,536 5364 5364

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 36,336 - 35869

Amiounts payable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 936 936 - -

Tax payable 702 700 - -

Accruals and deferred income 2,953 2,925 25,523 25523

foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlement 386 386 - -

Other creditors 14 an 222 183
23,654 N 59,950 66109 101,939

Non-current llabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 43,933 43,933 42253 42253
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15000 15,600 15000 15,000

L o 58,933 B 58,933 57253 57253
Loan Notes

O the 10th February 2016, 11 Company 1ssuec 1 92+, Unsecured =uro 50000 000 _oan Notes and 3 595 Lnsecured
GB8P 15C00,000 Loan Notes which are cue to be regsemec at pa” 01 e 100 Februany 202¢ anc 10tn Februany 2021
respectively

3975000 (2027, £42.

[es)

G- GB3- Loan Notes wesg

93]
[y

e far value of the 1 92% BEdro Loan hotes was £4 23,020 anc the
£14,338 50002022, £14 872,000  at 21 Ma o 2023
Jsngthe FRSZ farvalue nierarony the Losn hotes are deemec e be calegor sec witnei Leve 2

The 'oan Ngtes agreemant Tecuires Comp -ance w th a set of Prianc a' covenants, miclucing

- Tota' Borrowigs shall 1ot exceed 327 of Ad usiec et Assel Vaiue,

+the Adjustec Tatz Assets snall gl allt mes be equivaient tca m mum cf 300 of Tetal Borowngs ana
»the Adiusied NAY sha:! 1071 be fess tnan £262,00C2.500

—~

The Compey anc Group compned vt the terms o e logn notes agreemen: hrougnout tne year

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
THe Croup & 3¢ a0 UNsSecl”

L1300 0o et 31 Maren 2023 A2t

“F Prozerry[ressimert Trust
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13 Current and non-current liabilities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £000 £000
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253
Cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans - (25,000} (25,000)
Non cash-flows:
Movement on foreign exchange _ 1,680 , - 1,680
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 58,933 10,000 ~ 68,933

14 Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital
Tme balance c'assif ed as ordinary share capital Inc udes the nominal value prozeeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity
share capita compnsing ord’na~y shares of 25p

Issued, allotted

Number and fully paid £'000
Ordinary shares of 25p
At Apr_i\ 2022 ) o o 317,350980 ) 79,338
At 31 March 2023 317,350980 79338

Tre vor ng rights are disclosed inthe Report of the Directors on page 4G
Cur'ng the vear, tne Company made no marxet purchases for cancel ation of Ordnary shares of 25p each 12022 none)

Snee 31 March 2023 no Orainary shares nave been purchased end cancelle

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account
Tne balance classifiea as snare premium includes the prem-um above nomina' value from the proceeds o1 1ssue of the
equy share capital compris ng Ordinary shares of 25p

Capital redemption reserve

Tne capta. redemption reserve 15 used to “ecord the amount equ valent to the nomina velue of purchases of the
Company's own shares in order to maintain the Company's capizal.

16 Retained earnings

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000

Investment holding (losses) / gains (99,771) (81,449) 412,934 431,260
Realised capital reserves 828,859 802,597 918,057 891,806
Total capital reserves 729,088 721,148 1,330,991 1,323 066
Revenue reserve 72,787 80,727 65277 73202
Total retained earnings 801,875 801,875 1,396,268 1,396,268

Tne realised capital reserves are distrbutable by way of 2 dividend 1o sharencleers o utilised for the repurchase of share
capiial net of a7y unrez 1sec losses on investments he a. The revenue “eserve represents accumulated revenue profits
from which anmual dividenos are pand

<
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

17 Dividends

18

19

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Armaunts recognised as distributions to equity halders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 9.20p

(2021 9.00p) per share 29,196 28,562

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5 65p

(2022 5.30p) per share i 17,931 16,879
47127 45381

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders
inthe year:

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 9.85p
(2022.9.20pj) per share 31,259 29,195

Tne finzg, dividend nas 1ot been includec as & ab ity in these financial statemenis in accordance with 1AS 10 Events
aftertne reporing perod .

Set out below s tne total ¢ v.dend 1o be paid inrespect of The vear Tnis s he basis on which the recurements of 51158
of the Corperat on Tax Act 2010 are considered

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p

(2022 5.30p) per share 17,931 16,879

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023

of & 85p (2022 9 20p) per share o o . ) _ 3,25 29196
- . . . . - 49,190 L R A

Company statement of comprehensive income

As permtied by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company nas not Pfce.':ﬁ ec s own Statement of
Comprehens ve income The net 1osg after taxation of the Company deg t o “he zcoounts o the Group wes
£547 2660

21 z022 £287 €87 000 prafit

Net asset value per ordinary share
Net zssel va ue per Ordingry share s based cn e ngt asce S Rt Gy s57a” 346 000 2072,

7350 GBL 2020 21T 35068

28 Commitments and contingent liabifities

T M Aaree 00T

L0 3V "Aarcm 2025 the Croup has cap e commitmens of £20 000 2027 AT but g et ngent ab Tes 20ED

TR Groperyiroestimert Tros
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21 Subsidiaries

Tne Group has ihe folowing priacipal subsidiaries, al of which are reg stered and operatng in Scotlznd, England and

Wales

Name

New England Praperties Limited

The Colonnades Limited

Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited
The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited

The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited

(

(

(

{

(

(

{

(

Trust Urion Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Twao) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Finance (1997) Plc

FGH Developments Limited

FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited

FGH (Newcastle) Limited

NEP (1994} Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England Investments Limited

New £England Retall Properties Limited

New England (Scuthern) Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties {South Bank) Limited

(]
(5]
(9%

Reg. Number

7EBE95
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2476015
2415843
2476017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
24716021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416037
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SC68799
1466619
977481
1385909
2613905
1447223
1787371
803940
2134624
1233998
2415941
2420097

Principal Activities

Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nonr-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Investment holding and finance company
Investment holding and finance company

Non-trading company

MBIABAD
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

21

Subsidiaries

The Company has prov.dea a guarantee “or ezcn of these subs cigties 1 orcer for inem to take the exemption from t1e
equiremen: of anaudt, in hine with tme recuirements of $ 4794 o7 the Compan es Act 2006

All the subsiciaries are fuily ownea and 2 11e No aiNgs are orc.nary shares,

A companies have the reqistered office of Exchangs House, Prmrose Sireet, _ondon, ECZA ZNY w'th the exception of
SGH Deveiopments (Abergeen Cmited whicn s registerec to 5C Lothian Road, Fest val Square, Tdinbu-gh £-3 9BV

22 Related party transactions disclosures

Ba'ances and transaciong between the Company and 1ts subsidianes, which are refated parties, have been elim.nated on
conso.cst on Tnebalances are interest free, unsecureg and “epayable on demand

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

The Colonnades Limited 23,101 22619

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

TR Property Finarce Limited 13,255 13270
New England Properties Limited . N o (20) i (20
136,336 - 25869

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remunerazon of t1e Directors, who are the key management pe-sonne of the Company for each of the re evant
categories spec fed in 1AL 24 Related Party U sclosures spiow ded inthe audited past of ine Drectors HemuneraT on
Report on pages 63 anc 63

Directors’ transactions

Directiors transactions In tne Company's shares are consaered 10 be & related party ransaction gue to the nature of ther
rcle as Directors

G

o)

Moverments 1 Directors' shareholamgs ae d s oseq v thnthe T reciors Remuneration Repart o1 page

23 Subsequent events

There a2 o events that ha.e ccourred suhseguent 1 tne ingncal vearend 1o report

TF Property e esimer Trus
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures
Alternative Performarce Measuies are nLmerical
measuies of tre Comipany's current or h stor‘cal
perfoimance, financia position or casr flows, other
than the financial measares defined or specified in the
Finarcial Statemernts

The measures defined below are corsidered ta be
Alternative Performance Meascres Trney are vewed as
particu'any relevant ard are freguently guoled for ciosed
ernded investmert comparies

Total Return

The NAV Tota! Returr s ca'culated by reinvest.rg the
cividends in the assets of the Company from tne relevant
ex-chvidend date Div.dends are deemed to be remvested
on the ex-dividend date as this s the protocos used

by the Company's berchmark and otherindces Tre
Snare Price Totai Return 1s calouated by reinvesting tne
dviderds M the shares of the Company flom the relevart
ex-dividend date

Year to
31 March

2023

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence) 497 A3 456 5
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2023 (pence} 30513 279.0
Change in year (38.0%)  (389%;)
Impact of dividends reinvested o 25%  26%
Total Return for the year (355%) (363%)

Year to
31 March

2022

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 (pence) 41797 392.50
NAV/share price per share at

371 March 2022 (pence) 492.43 45650
Change n year 17.8% 16 3%
Impact of dvidends reinvested 36% 36%
Totai Return for the year 27 4% 19 G

hal

Ongoing Charges

The Ongomg Charges ratic has been calcuated '
accordarce witl the guidance issued by the AlC as the
tota of investment maragemert fees and admiristrat ve
expenses expressed as a percertage of the average

Net Asset Va Les througnout the year Tne definion of
admmstrative expenses does include property re‘ated
expenses, tne Ongoirg Charges calculat.onis shown
nclusive and exclusive of these expensesto al ow
comparson of the direct admnistrative ard management
charges with tte majonty of nrvestment Trusts wiich do
not kold ary direct property .nvestments.

Excluding
including  Excluding  Performance
Year to Performance Performance  Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2023 £000 £000 €000
Management
Fee (note 5) 6,240 6240 6,240
Other
Adrministrative
expenses
{(note 6) 1.705 1,705 1,708
Property
Costs 714 714
Less: Non
recurring
expenses ) o )
o ~ 8659 8656 7945
Average Net
Assets 1,184,462 1,784462 1184462
Ungoing
Charge 2023 0.73% 0.73% 0.67%

Excluding
Including Inciuding Performance
Performance Performance Fees & Direct
Fees Fees Property Costs
£000 £000 £000
Managemernit
Fee (note 5} 31,7140 6,651 6651
Other
Administrative
expenses
(note 6j 2,220 2,220 2220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less Non
recurring
expenses . .
_ 336092 9,203 8,871
Average Net
Assets 1536825 " 536825 1536825
Ongoing
Charge 2022 2.19% JeD% 058%
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Net Debt

Net debt 15 the total value of loar notes loars (mcluding
motona exposure to CFDs and TRSs) less casn asa
proportion of net asset value,

The net gearing has been calculated as foliows'

Group Group

2023 2022

£000 £'000
Loan notes 58,933 57,253
Loang 10,000 35,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 130,806 144642
Less: Cash (36,071)  {32109)
Less: Cash collateral {included within
‘Other debtors’in Note 12) (45099)  (45133)

118669 159,653

968,346 1,562,739
12.3% 10.2%

Equity shareholders’ funds

Net gearing

The 3ngoing Charges ratic provided ir the Company's
Key information Docdrrent ‘s caculated in 1e with
tne PRIIPs regulations wnich s different to the AIC
methodology above.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performarce of the Manager
in meeting the Company’s objective against a number
of Key Performance Indicators, which are considered to
be Alternat've Performance Measures Details of these
calculat-ons are set out above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

Tris s calculated by taking the “inal d'vidend i the time
ser:es, divided by the inital dividend - 1n the peniod, raised
to the power of 1 divided by the number of years: inthe
series

5 year period.

a » 15500 ° _ 499
b 12.20p

Premium/(Discount)

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
Imvestmert trust company 15 higher or -ower tnan the Net
Asset Value per share expressed as a percertage of the
NAV per share If the share price is lower than the NAV per
share, the shiares are trading at a disccurt and if the gnare
price is nigher than the NAV per share the shares are
trading at a premium.

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Value per share (a) 305.13 492 43

Share price per share (b) 279.00 456.50
{

Premium or (Discount) (¢= (b-a)/a

©)  (BE&%)  (73%)

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

An average prent o or discount s calculzted by taking
the sum of each daily premiurm and discount for the
period arnder review, dvided by the number of days intae
gwven period

2.0 Glossary of terms and

definitions AIFMD

The Alternative Fund Managers Diective s European

legislation wh ¢ created a European wide framework
for regulat ng the managers of “alternative investmert
funds” (AIF3). Its designed to regulate ary fund wrich
s not a UCITS (Undertakirgs for Collective Investiment
in Transferab'e Securtieg) fund and wh.ch 13 managed
or marketed in tne EU

AIC

The Associat’or of Investment Companies, the
represertative body for closed-ended mvestment
companies,

Alternative Performance Measure

A firancial meascre of fingncia performrance or financia!
position other than a financiai measure defined or
specified \n the accounting statements

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulatiors a short, consumer friendly
Key Information Docament ‘s reguired setting out the
key features risks, rewards ard costs of the PRIIP and
15 1intended to assist investors to better understand the
Trust and make compariscns between Trusts.

The document reludes estimates of imvestment
performance under a number of scenarios These
caculations are prescr.bed by the regulatior and are
based purely on recent historical data. It is importart
for investors to note that there 1s no judgement apphed
and these do not n any wayreflect the Board or
Manager's views.

Key Performance Indicator (‘KPI')

A KPlis a quantifiabie measure that evaluates how
successfu: the trust is 1M meeting 1ts objectives The
Company’s KPIs are d scussed on pages 35 and 36.

MIFID

The Markets in Firancial Instroments Directive s the EU
leg:s.atior that reguiates firms wha provide services to
cuents lirked to "firancia) irstramenrts” (shares, bonds,
urits ir co lective investment schemes ard denvatives)
and the venues where those instruments are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of tota assets lesz abities (mciuding
borrowings) d vided by the nu~iber of shares ir 'ssue

MIIAIBAN

uodas nbarens

S8IUBUIDAOSY

SilaUIRIRLS [RIDURLIH

z
o
2
[+
(1]
o
1
»
]
2

UDILBWIOIUI JaDIOURIBUS



Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative invesiment fund managers
directive (AtFMD")

In accordance with the AIFMD, nformat.crnin relation
1o {re Company's leverage and remuneration of tne
Corrpany's AIFM, Co'umbia Threadreedie Investrent
Busiress Lirrited, 1s requited to be made ava:labe to
rvestors Detaded regu'atary disciosures including
those on the AIFM's remuneration poacy are avallable on
the Columb.a Threadneedie website or from Co'umrbia
Threadrneedle or reglest The numencal remanerat:on
d.sciosures imrefatior to the AIFN S first relevant
accourtng penod wil be made avallabe M dde course

Leverage

Urder the AIFM Directive, 1t 1s necessary for AlFs
to disclose ther leverage i accardance with
prescribed ca'culations

Aithougr leverage s often used as arotret ter~ for
gearng under tre AIFMD ieverage § specifically defired
Two types of everage calculations are defined, the gross
and commitment metrods These methods summanty
express everage asaratio of tre exposure of tre AlF
agamnstits ret asset value 'Exposure typica’y includes
debr the value of ary phys:cal properties subject to
mortgage, ron-sterhng currency, eduily or currency
hedg.ng at absolute notional va'ves {even those held
purely for risk reducton pdrposes, sucr as forward
fareign exchange contracts held far currency nedging!
and derivative exposure [corverted o the equova.ent
undernying positiors). The commiment Mmethod nets
off der vative nstruments, whle the gross method
aggregates trem.

The table be'ow sets oLt tre current maxiru~ per.tied
irtand the acical .eve' of leverage far the Compary as
at 31 March 2023,

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Max mum permitted bt 200% 200%
Actual 138% 130%

Tre everage ~isareset by tre AlFNM ard approved
by t~e Beard ardare » rewilnime: ~ g 8etolt e
Copary's Artc'es of Association

Trsscoedolbezorfosed witire gear mgset oot
“tmeFratca Higognts W on s caceated wrder
tretradtora ~etod sel oot by tre Assoc ator of

I~cestre~t Corpa-es Tre AMPLA sasareqlred o
COTTR Y T e gear ng paraeters set by tre Beard

reat ootz borro s rge

“ce
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

1f you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom or, if not, from ancther appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser,

If you have sold cor otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents, to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
persen who now holds the shares.

Not:ce is neteby gven that the Annual Genera: Meetirg
of TR Property Irvestment Trust pic (the ‘Conrpany’) wit,
be reld at the Royal Automobile C.uh, 86,91 Pall Mal!,
Lordon SW1Y SHS or Trarsday 20 Ju'y 2023 at 2 30 pn
for the purpose of transacting the foilowirg busiress

To consider and, iIf thought fit, pass tre foifowng
Reso'utons, of which Resostions 110 12 will he
proposed as Crdinary Resolutons and Resolutors 13
a~d 14 srail be proposed as Spec.a Resolutors

1 Torecewetne Report of tne Directors ard the
Audited Accounts for tne yvear ended 37 Margh 2023

2 Toappiovetre Diecters Remunerat.on Foiucy

[#%]

Toc approve the Directors Remruneration Report
fexcluding the Directers’ Remuneration Po cy) for
the yvear ended 3% Marcr 2023

4 Todecareafraldvderd of 9 85p per Srdnary
share

n

Tore-eiect Kate Boisoveras a Drector

&  Toreelect Saravoare Curtis as 3 Director

-l

~

Toreeect T G lba~ks asa [ rector

Tore-e'ectBLscls Sode rde as a D rector

jey)

e

Tore-cect Ardrew Yasghar as a D rector

O Tore-appe ~t KEMG LLF t-e Aodtorras Aod tor
cf t~e Caorpany te ~odoffice srtitrecene o
tme ~ext Anrua. Serera Meet ~gof tre Carpany

117 Toactnorsethe Drectorg o deterning tre
re~anerat or of tre Lod tor

Special business
Ordinary resclution

12 THAT, i~ substitet on for all suck existirg authorties,
the Directors be genera.ly ard uncorditionaly
actronsed purstant to and M accordarce with
Sectior 581 of tne Comparies Act 2006 (the ‘Act)
to exercise a | the powers of the Company 1o ahot
shares inthe Compary and 10 grant righis to
subscribe for, o1 to corvert ary secunity irto, snares
" the Corpary up to a nomiral vatue of £26 181,455
{being approximately 33% of the tota 1ssued share
capital of the Company as at tne 'stest practicabe
date prior to pablication of th's Notice) provided tat
this authonty sha.. expire at the conclusion of tne
Anraar General Meetrg of the Company n 2024
{orf earlier, at the close of bus:iness ar 19 Cctober
2024) save thati~e Company shall be enttled to
make offers or agreements before the expry of th s
authorty wrich wouad or might reguire srares to
be aliotted or rigrts to be granited after such expiry
and the Directors shali be ent'ted 1o al'ot shares
ardgrart nghts pursgant to ary such offers or
agreements as If th s autnarty nad rot expired

Special resolutions
13 THAT, nsubstituton for gl such existing authont es

ard subject to the pass ng of Resoidtion 12 set

aut above tre Directors be empowered purstart

to Secticr 570 a~d Sectign 573 of the Act to alot
efLity secuit es (as defined in Sect.on 560 of the
Act) forcash purstart o the aLthonty conferred by
Resclot 0 12 above and/or to sel' shares reld by the
Company as treasury shares for casn as f Sect.on
5671 oftre Act did 1ot appiy to ary suee alotment or
sa.e provided trat this power sna’ be . mted

fal totre a lotment of eguity secart es and saie
of treasury shares for cas» i~ corrector witn
anoffer of orirv tator to app'y for equty
Securt es

fi te snareboders o proport of {as ~early
as may ue praltt cab el to their ex stirg
acldirgs, a1d

1 tonciders of ctnerequity securtes as
requ red by tre ng-ts of t-ose secur ties. or
as t~e Board otterwise corsiders recessary

ardscirat t~eBeard Tay mposeaty IS o
restricl oos and make aryanraTgeeniswr oo
G Sers recessary 0r appropnate 1o deal w it
treas.ry srares fract ora entte~erts recurd
dates «€Qa reg. atary or practicarpraber s © or
ndertae anscf arytemrtory orary ot~er atier,
and
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() nthe case of the autnority granted Lnder
Resoldtion 12 and/or in the case of any sale
of treasury shares for cash, to the al.otment
(otherwise than urder paragrapr (i) above)
of eqLity securities ar sale of treasury shares
up toanomnas amount of £3966,887 (being
apptoximate y 5% of the tota 1ssued share
capital of the Company as at the iatest
practcabre date pr.or to pubhcaton of the notice
of meeting),

the power giver by tnis reso ot-or shall expire Lporn
the expiry of tne autnority conferred by Resolution 12
above, save that the Company shall be entitied to
make offers or agreements before exp’ry of sucr
power whick would or nught reqguire eguity securities
to be ai otted after suck expiry and the Directors
shall be entitied to allot equity secunties pursuant

to any such offer or agreement as if the power
corferred hereby had not expired

THAT the Company be ard is hereby generally and
Lncenditionaly authonsed ir accordance with
Section 701 of the Act to make ore or more market
purchases {withun the mearing of Sect'on 693(4) of
the Act) of Ordinary stares of 25p eacn intne capital
of the Company on such terms and in such marner
as the Directors may from time to time determire
provided that:

(a) the maximum number of Ordinary shares Fereby
avthorised to be purchased stall be 14 99% of
the Company's Crdirary shares iniss.e at the
date of the Annual General Meeting {equivalent
10 47,570,911 Ordinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2023, the ‘atest pract.cable date prior 1o
pub: cation of this Notice),

{b) the maximum price {exc usive of experses)
which may be paid for any such share snal "ot
be rmore than the higher of.,

(") 105% of the average of the middie market
quotations for ar Ordinary shate as taken
from the Londor Stock Excharge Daly
Cfhiciar List for the five business days
immediateiy preceding t1e date or wnich
the Compary agrees to buy the shares
concerned and

(i} the nigker of tne price of the last
ndependent trade and the Fighest current
Independent bid for an Ordinary share i the
Company on the trading venue where the
purcnaseis carned out at the rewevant t me,
and

Annual Report & Az counts 2023

{c) the mnimum price (exclus ve of experses) wh'ch
may be paid for an Ordinary share sha l be 25p,

beng the rorrina value per Ordnary snare,

the authonty hereby conferred sha'l expire at

the conclusion of the Annual Genieral Meeting of
the Company in 2024 (o1, f earlier, at the clese

of busiress on 19 October 2024), save tnat the
Company snall be entitled to enter into a corlract

to purchase Ordirary shares which will, or may, be

coTpieted or executed whaoly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purciase

Ordinary shares pursuart to such cortract as fthe

power corferred hereby Fad not expired.

Q) Latter

@/y Order of the Board
Forardcnberafof
Colurrpa Tareadreede
rvestrient Busimess | fed
Compary Scoretary

T2 Lte 023

Registered Office

Company registered in Eng and and Wales
Company number. 84492

13 Woodstock Street

Londorn W1C 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to
register their intention as scon as practicable by email
to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@columbiathreadneedie.com.

Sharenowders who are rot able or do rot wisr to attend
the meeting in person will be ahle to watch a rve webcast
of the meeting Thus wi'l include tre forma, business of
the meetig, the Manager's presentatior. and guest-ons
and answers Tie webcast wi! not enabie snareholders to
participate ntne meeting o1 1o vote, However, shareholders
will be mvited te subrit questions through our website

by 12 00 noor on Tuesday 18 July 2023 Questiors

rray be sent tc the falowirg enta’ address: trptagmge
columbiathreadneedle.com. Questions of a very similar
Nnature may be growped togetrer ta ensure the orderly
runnirg of the AGM

T Amember ent tied 1o attend and vote at the meeting
convened by tive above Notce is ertitied to appoirt ane
or rrore proxies to exercise all or any of the nghts of the
~memnber to attend, speak and vote in ks or her place

Shareholders are strongly erccuraged 1o stbmit trer
proxy vote r advance of tne reeting and to appoit
the Crairman of the meeting as tneir proxy, rather tnan
any atver ramed person who may not be penritted to
attend the AGM in the evert of restrictiors o irits or
attendance A proxy reed not be a srarenclder of the
Compary To appoint more thar oie proxy the proxy
form sroiw’d be phatocopied ard tne name of the proxy
to be apponted rdcated on eacr proxy form together
win the nunber of shares trat such proxy s appe rted
nrespectof Corrpietior and submi ssion of a proxy
rstructior w it nat prec ude a member fiom attend rg
and voting .~ person at the AGM (sulect to ary
restrctio™s 0n paysica’ attendarce)

Tche va dary proxy for~ or otrer nstru~ent
appotng a proxy must be returred by post, by coor er
or by hand o the Comrpary's Reg strars Coplterstare
Irvestor Services PLC Tre Pavi cns Br dgwater Road,
Bristo BSAG 62y or a'ter-ativery. by going 10w
eproxyappo rivent co™ and fo lowing tre mstr..ct ons
prov ded A prox es mustbe appo nted by relater tran
48 neurs before the pe of the AGM 1 (necase ¢f

jo ~tno ders where more tra- orecf theo -t ~oiders
porportstoc appota proxy oy the appo trent
subtted by the ~ost sen or ro'der w | be accepted
Semoriy sdeter~imed by tre order oo o the naTes
of theyo ~t ro ders gppear N tre Corpany s Reg ster of
Members ~respect oftre o~ ~cdngitre frst na—ed
berg dee~ed the ™Most ser or)

[

[mordertaheabetoatterdand vote attre AGM o)
a7y adjourned meeting {a~d a'sc for t-e purpose of
caco almg ~ovw many votes a perso” rray casti a

N

person ~rust nave h.s or el name entered on the
Companys Reg.ster of Merbers by 2 3Cpmon 18
July 2023 (or 6 00 pmon the date two days before
ary adjcdmed Mmeetirg) Changes to entres on

tme Register of Members after trus tme snall be
disregarded r determiring the r gnts of ary persor to
attend orvote at the meeting

Vatirg wil be canducted or a pail at the meetirg On
a poil vote every srarehoider w i througn thesr proxy

nave ore vote for every Grdinary share of which we o
steigthe rolder

Shareha'ders shou'd note that itis possibile that,
pursuarttorequests made by shareholders of the
Compary nder Section 527 of tne Act, the Compary
miay be regaired to pubish or a website a staterrert
setting ocut any matter relatng to () tre audit of the
Company's accounts (including the Audtors Report
and the conduct of tne audit) that are tc be laid before
the AGM or (v] any crrcumstance cornected wth

ar audtor of the Company céasing to hold office
SInce tre previous meeting at wnicn antua accourts
andreparts were aid 11 accordance wit> Secton

437 ofthe Act The Company may notrequire the
shiarelclders requésting any such website publcatier
to pay s experses in corplyirg w ik Sectons 527 or
528 of the of the Act Where the Cor-pany s required
to pace a staterment or g website Lnder Sectior

027 of tre Act, it must forward the statemert to

tre Corpary's aud'tor rot ater tnar the trme wher

1 magkesthe statemert avalable on e website.

Tre busitess wihich may be deat with at the AGM
ncludes any statemmert trattbe Company nas beer
reqdred J-der Secren 827 of the Act to patbhsh o a
webs re

Any corporat.on wiich s a member of the Company
car appoint one or More corporate represe~atves
o Mgy exercise or 1eberafa. of tspowersasa
rerrper prov-ded toat tney dorot do So mrelator e
e saregiares

Trergrttoappe .t a proxy does ot appy 1o persors
wrese shates are bed on ther benalf by anctrer
person and wha ngwee bee~ romnated torece ve
coruncat o fremitre Compary naccordarce

w i Secnor 146 of tre Act i No~mated Persons
N~ nated Persors ~ay bavear gt urder an
agree~ert w1 the registered shareno oer wne r oids
s-ares or *rerberaiftc he apponted (or 1o nave
so™Mecte e seanps Mediag a proxy A termatiey f
~om nated persors do ~ot ave suctarr grt orda
2ol wieT o exerc se ttrey may Favear gt Linder
S.omanagres™entic g ve mstruct ¢ s to the perses
10 d g e shares asto tre exercse Cf vol ngngrts

TR Property Ireestrent Tryst
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CREST members who wisn to appa nt 8 proxy

or proxies through the CREST electron-c proxy
appointment service imay do sc for the AGM to

be held on 20 July 2023 and any adjournment(s)
thereof by using the procedures descrbed in the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who have appointed a voting serv ce
provider should refer to their CREST sponsors or
voting service provider(s), who wil be able to take

the appropr ate acticn on thoir henalf I order for a
proxy apnontirent orinstiucticn made by mears of
CREST to he vad the appropriate CREST message
(@ CREST Proxy irstruction’) must be properly
autmenticated in accordarce with Luroclear UK &
Ireland L'mited's specificat.ons and must contan

the information requ red for such ‘nstructions, as
described in the CREST Manual. The message must
be transmitted so as to be received by the Company's
agert, Computershate Investor Services PLC (CREST
Participart ID 3RAL0), no ater thar 48 hours before
tre tirme appointed for the meeting For this purpose,
the re of receipt will be taken to be the time (as
determined by the time starmp applied to the message
by the CREST Application Host) from which the
Company's agent 1s able to retrieve the message by
enquiry 1o CREST in the manner prescrnbed by CREST

CREST members and, wnere applicab e, therr
CREST sponsor or voling service prov der should
note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not
make avarab.e special procedures in CREST forany
particLlar messages

Normar system tirings and hmitations wiil therefore
apply 'nre.ation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions It1s the respensibility of the CREST
member concerned to take {or, f the CREST member
is @ CREST persoral mernber or sponsored member
ar has appointed a voting service provider, to procure
that his ar her CREST sponsor or voting service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary

o ensure that @ message 1s transmitted by means
of the CREST systerr by any partcuiar tme. Inthis
connrection, CREST membeis and, where applicabe,
their CREST sponsar or veting service provider
arereferred in particular to those sections of tre
CREST Marual concerning practical imiations of
the CREST syster and timings  The Company may
treat as ~wald a CREST Proxy Instruct.or ntne
circamstances set out 1in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securties Reguiations 2001

Ary merber attending the meeting (subject to any
restnictions in place at the trme of the eeting) has
theright to ask questions Tre Company must cause
to be arswered any such questior relating to the

Anrda Report & Accounts 2023
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business being dealt wth at tne meeting it 10 such
answer need be g.venf {a)1o do so wou'd nterfere
undd vy with the preparation for the meeting o1 involve
the disclosure of confidential information, (b} the

answer has already been g ven on a wehsite in the form

of an answer to a questior, or {c) it 1s urdesirable n
tne interests of the Company or the good order of the
meetirg that tme questior be answered. Questons of a
very simiar nature '1ay be grouped together to ensure
the order y running of the AGM

Uracceptab e behaviour or. the part of any snareha der
attending the AGM wi I ot be tolerated ard the
Chairmar fas the nghtto deal with such behaviour as
appropriate

Lnder sect:an 338 and section 3384 of the Act,

mermbers meet ng the threshold requirerents T those

sections have the ngnt to require the Compary (i) to
aive to members of the Company entitled to recerve
notice of the meet'ng, notice of a resoluticr whick
ray properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting and/or (1) to \nclude in the business to
be dealt witn at the meeting any matter (other thana

proposed resolution) winch may be property ncluded in

the business. Aresolut'on may propery be moved ora

matter may properly be included in the busINess unless

{a) (in the case of a reso ution only) it woud, 'f passed
be ineffective (whether by reason of incongistency
with any enactment of the company’'s constitution or
otherwise), (b) it 1s defarratory of any persan, or (¢) t
is frivolous or vexatious. Such a reguest may bein
hard copy form or in electronic form, must identify the
resalution of whicn notice 12 to be given or the matter
to be ‘ncluded in the bus ness, must be adthorised by
the person or persons making It, must be received by
tre company Not later than six ciear weeks before the
meeting, and (i1 the case of a matter 1o be included

in the business only) must be accompanied by a
statemenrt setting out the grounds for the request

As at 30 May 2023 (being the iatest practicable day pnar

to pLbhcation of this Notice), the issued share captai
of the Company was 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of
25p each and no ordinary shares were hed .ntreasury
Therefore, the total rumber of voting ngits inthe
Corpany at 3C May 2023 was 317 350,880

The terms of reference of the Audil Committeg, the

Managemert Engagemert Committee, the Nom nat.on

Commitiee and the Directors’ Letters of Appointment
will be ava'lable for inspectior for at least 15 mirutes
prior 1o and durnng the Company's AGM

You may rot use any eiectron ¢ address prov-ded
either r this Notice or any related docurments to
commurnicate for ary purposes other thar those
express'y stated

(e8]
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 The Company may process persoral data of attendees
attre Anrual General Meetirg This may nc ude
webcasts, pnotos recording and audio and v 0eo lnks,
as wel, as ather forms of personal data The Compary
sra'l process sack persona’ data r accordarce witn its
privacy policy, which can found at wwwy trproperty com
legal

IR "R Dropert. Insectrent Trost



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4; Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

These are the resowtions wh'cn deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneraticn Policy, the approval
of the Directors’ Remunerat.on Report and the

dec arat.on of the final dividend

Tre vote 1o approve the Remmuneratior Policy must
be put to shareholders pevery three vears Tho vele
to approve the Remuneration, Report (s advisory
cry and wi i not require the Company to alter any
arrangements detailed nthereport shou'd the
reso:ut.on not be passed

Tre Board 1s propesing & fina: divderd for the year
erded 31 March 2023 of 9. 85p per Ordinary snare

It approved at the AGM . the Companry wi' pay the
dividend on 1 August 2023 to those shareho ders on
the Company's Register of Merrbers at tne ciose

of business on 30 Cune 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9: Re-election of
Directors

These resolutons deal with the re-election of Kate
Bo.sover, Saran-Jane Curtis, Tim Giilbanks, Busoia
Sodeinde and Andrew Vaughan In accordance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, 2" Directors
retire o an annual basis and have conirmed tnat
they will offer themselves for re-election, with the
excepton of David Walson who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM

Aperfarmance evaluatior has been completed and
the Board has determined that each of the Directors
continues to be effective and demonstiates the'r
commitment to ther role

Ther biographical detars, which are set out or pages
44 and 45, demonstrate that the Board has the
appropr ate balance of skil s experience,
mdependence and knowiedge 10 -ead the Company

ccordingly, the Board unanimou sty recommends
their re-election

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

These deal wth the reappointrmenrt of the Auditor,
KPM3G LLP and the authonsaton for the Drrectors to
determine tner remureration

Anrual Report & Accourts 2023

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

The Board cons ders it apprapnate that an authority
be granted to allot snares in the cap:ita! of the
Company Lp to @ maximum nominal amaodnt of
£26,181, 445 15 stated in t1e resolution (represerting
approximately one rird of the Company's 1ssued
share capitar as at 30 May 2023, being the latest
practical date prorto pabhcation of th s Not.ce of
tne meeting) As at 30 May 2023 the Company does
not held any shares in treasury

The Directors nave no present intertion of exercisirg
tnis authonty and would only expect to Lse the
adtnority if shares could be 'ssued at, crata
premium to, the Net Asset Value per share.

This avthority will expire at the earlier of the
conclusion of the Anncal General Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2624 and close of business
or 19 October 2024,

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

Ihis Resgiutior would give the Directors the
authority to allot shares {or seil any shares which

the Company elects to hold in treasury) for cash
without first offering ther to existng snareholders i
proportior 1o then ex sting snareholdings

Trus authonty would be mted to allotments

or sales in connection with pre-emptive offers

and offers to holders of other equity secarities if
requitred by the nights of those shares oras the
board otherw.se considers necessary, or otherw se
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £3 966,887,
Tris aggregate nominal amounrt represents 5% of
the totat issued share capita: of the Company as

at 30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior

to publ.cation of tris Notice If the powers sought
by Resolut'or 13 are Lsed inrelat.onto a non-pre-
empt.ve offer, the D.rectors confirm their intenticn
to follow the shareno'der protections i paragraph 1
of Part 7B of the Pre-emption Group's Statement of
Principes pablished ir Novernber 2022

Tris autnority wil expore at the ear 1er of the
cenciJs.or of the Anrua: Gerera Meet'ng of the
Company to be heldin 2024 and close of busmess
or 19 October 2024
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

At the AGM neld in 2022 a specal resolution was
passed which gave the Directors autrorty, cntilthe
cong’ug on of tre AGM ir 2023 tomake market
purcrases of tne Company's own issued shares up 1o
a maximaem of 14.99% of the 1ssced share capital.

Tre Board s proposing that tney should be giver
renewed author'ty to purchase the Comrpary's
Ordirary shares in the market It believes that to make
such purchases i ire market at approprate times and
piices is a sutable method of ennaincirg sharehioider
va'ue. The Company would witmin guidelires get

from time to e by tre Board, make erther a singie
purchase or a senes of purchases, when market
conditions are sutable, with tre aim of maximr-sing the
berefits to sharero!ders

Where purchases are made at prees be'ow the
prevaling Net Asset Value per share this wel, ennarce
the Net Asset Vaue for the remaring sharerolders
Therefore purcnases would ory be made at prces
below Net Asset Va'te The Board corsiders that it
will be most advantageows to shareholders for tne
Corpany to be ab'e to make such purchases as and
wien it considers the tirirg to be favcurabie and
therefare does rot propose to set a tmetable for

mak g any sLCh purcrases

Tre Companies (Acgd stion of Owr Srares) (Treasury
Srares) Regulations 2003 erabie companies ~tre

Ur ted K.ogdom to hoid i treasary any of treir own
ghares they ~ave purcrased with a view to poss bie
resae at a future date, rather trar cance’ ng themn
Ht-e Compary does re-purcrase a~y of ts snares

tre Dwectors do ot currertly intend to ho d &~y of

tre shares re-purcrased treasury The shares so
re-purchaset ' cortiroe i be canceled

The Ll sting Roescfire Franca Condact Authonty
et ihe max rromprce lexc usave of expersesywo oo
~ay bepadforary secr grare It gna . ~ot be more
tnar tne rogrer of

i1 105% of toe average of the m dd e market
guotat ons for a= Crd ~arv srare as take- from
tre Lordor Stock Excra~ge Dawy Cffica Lst i
tre fve bhlg ress davs 'mediatey preceding tre
date o wm o ime Compary agiess 1o Doy shares
concerted and

v the migreroftre proe of e ast ndeperdent
trade and tre migrest corrert ~dependert b d for
an Ord mary share  trg Corpary on the trad g
JeTLewreretrepurcrase scarmed oot

The minimumipree to be pa'd wel be 25p per
Crd.nary snare (be g the nommal va'ue) The Listirg
Rules also i vt a listed compary 1o purchases of
shareg representing up to 15% of 'ts .ssued share
capital in the market parsuant to a generar acthority
suchasths For thiseason, the Company is | miting
15 autnonty to make such purcrases to 14 99% of
the Corpany's Crd.nary shares irssue atine date
of the AGM, tr's 's equ.valert 1o 47 570,917 Crdinary
shares of Z5p eact (nomanaiva'ue £11,892727)

at 30 May 2023 the atest practicable date prior to
publicaton this Notice The gutnor ty w il ast until
the conaivsion of the Arnual General Mieeting of the
Companytahereld m 2024 or, f earler at the c.ose
of business or 19 October 2024

Recommendation

Tne Board bereves that ire resciutons contaired
I tris Notee of Arnaa Gereral Meet,ng are 11 the
best irterests of tne Corpany and snareholders as
awhole and recormends that vou vate 1 favour
of them as your Directors interd toc do ' respect of
ther own benelicia’ shareraldirgs

TP Property (mrestmert Trast
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Directors and other information

Directors

D watson {Charmant
K Bolsover

S0 Curtis

T Grlpanks

E Sacderde

A% eughan

Registered office
13 Woodstock Sireet
LongonwiC 2406

Registered number
Recistered as an investmert company n
Ergland anc vwales No 84437

AIFM and Company Secretary
Coumima Threacreedie Irvestment
Rusiress Limited
Excharge House
Primrose Street
fondon EC74 ZNY
Pease cortact Jarathar Laret ‘ot
Company Secretar.a’ ard adninsiratve
Tatters

Portfolic Manager

Thames River Capita' LLP austar sed
andregulated by the Finarc s Condac:
Adthor ty

T3 Woodstock Street

Lonaon Wi o 245G

Telenhore. J205 35356378

Fund Manager
a4 A Phayre-ladge WRICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations
JLE it LA

Deputy Fund Manager
= Lhonneur

Direct Property Manager
G2 GayMRICS

a. c
The Association of
Investment Companies

{0

Registrar

Compuiershare Investor Services PLT
The Paviiong, Bndgwater Roac
Briswol B399 677

Telephane. 0370707 7250

Shareho ders who hola ther shares v
certificates forr car check ther haidings
with the Registrar Compatershare irvestor
Services PLC via vaww nvestorcentre.co uk
Plegse note that to gar access o your cetals
on the Corrpuiershare site you wi' needthe
ho'derreference number statec on thetop left
hard corner of your share certificate.

Auditor

KPMG LLP

75 Canada Scuare
Lorder £14 SGL

Stockbrokers

Panmure Goraor (UK Lemited,
One New Crarge

Londor ECLN G4AF

Svcel N colaus Euwrope Limited
150 Chezgpside
Loncon EC2Y 6ET

Solicitors
Slaughter ard May
Ore Bunhil Row
Lordor ECTY 8YY

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

BMNP Parnas Securities Servces
" ZHarewood Aeerue

Lonzon NV BAL

Website

veia TIOTSRENTy 20T

Tax advisers

Prizeseerhocuseloorers| L7

TR 2rozeriy Irsestment Trust



General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The hatfyear res..ts are annourced in late November

The full vear results are announced in early June.

Annual general meeting
Tne AGM s hedin London in July

Dividend payment dates

Dnidends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares
as folows

Internm Jaruary
Fina August

Dividend payments

Dividends can be paid to snareholders by means of
BACS (Bankers' Autormated Clearing Services): mandate
forms for this purpose are gvalable from tne Registrar
Afternatively, shareholders can write to the Registrar
(the address is given or page 114 of tn s report} to give
ther nstruct.onsg: these must rclude the bark account
number, the bank account title and the sort code of the
bank to wiich paymerts are to be made

Dividend re-investment plan ('ORIP’)

TR Property Investment Trust ple offers shareho ders the
opportun ty to purchase further shares in the Compary
through the DRIP Please note that following Brexit
sharenolders in the European Econoric Area (EEA')

are no onger ab-e to participate in the DRIP DRIFP forms
may be obtamed frone Computershare Investor Services
PLC tmrough their secure website www. nvestorcentre.
co.uk, oron 0370 707 1694 Crarges apply, dea:ng
commissor of 0.75% (subjectto a mimimurr of £2 50)
Government stamp duty of 0 5% alsc applies

Share price listings

The estimated Net Assel Value and market price of the
Compary's Crdinary shares, as well as the discount”
premium, are published daily '+ Tne Financal Times.
Trey car alse be found g the Company’s wehsite at
www trproperty com

Share price information
ISIN GECOO90640C7

SEDOL 0906409

Blocmberg

TRY LM Reuters

TRY L

Datasticam TRY

Annual Resort & Accounts 7022

Benchmark

Detars of the berchmark are g'ven . the Strategic
Report cn page 22 of this Annual Report ard Accounts.
The berchmark index s pubiusned daly ard can

be found on Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Deve oped Europe Capped Net Tota
Ret.rn Index m sterling
Bloorberg TRORAS Index

Disabilily Act

Cop es of this Report ard Accounts and otner
documents issued by tne Company are avalabe from
the Compary Secretary. If needed, copies can be made
ava labe ' avanety of formats ncluding Braille, acdio
tape or larger type as appropriate.

You can contact the Regstrar, CorpLtershare Investor
Services PLC, which has nstalied textipnones to allow
speech and heanng impaired people wha nave their owr
textphone to contact them directly, without the need
for an intermediate operator, by dialling 0870 702 000D5.
Specially traned operators are avallable dunrg norma
bus'ress Nours to answer gueres via this serv ce.
Alternatively, If you prefer ta go througn a ‘typetatk’
operator (provided by the Royal Nat onal Irstitute for
Deaf People) you should d al 18C01 fol'owed by the
rurrber you w.sn to dial
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General Shareholder information
continued

Ncminee share code

Wrere not'ficaton has heen provided in advance,
the Company wil' arrange for copies of shareholder
commaricaliors to be prov ded to the operatars of
nomminee accounts. Nominee nvestors may attend
genera’ meetings and speak at meetings wren
invited 1o do so by the Chairman

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upor a disposal of all or part of a sharenoder’s
howdirg of Crd'nary shares, the impact on the
srarerolder's capital gains tax base cost of the
conversion to Sig-mna shares in 2007 and tre
redesignat on to Ordinary snares in 2312 s~ol'd
be considered

Inrespect of the conversior to Sigma n 2007,
agreement was reached win HM Revente &
Customs {HMRC'} to base the apportionment of
the capitai gains tax base cost on tre proportior
of Crdinary shares that were converted by a
srarebionder into S gma shareson 25 Luly 2007

Therefore 1f an Ordirary shareno der converted 20%
of therexist rg Jidnary shares rta S grra snares
on 25 Juwy 2007, the capitai ga ~s tax tase cost of
the new S gma shares acquired wolid be equa’ 1o
0% of tne origial capita ga ns tax base cost of
tre Ordinary srares t~at they netd pre-convers on
The base cost of trerrer-airirg hold 1g of Ordinary
shares wou d tner be 80% of tre ongmma capital

ga rs tax base cost of their Ordnary srares Fe'd
pre-corversion

As part of tme re-designatior of the Signra snares
into Orde-ary srares 1 Deceber 2012 a furtrer
srarehoider's agreere~t was reac~ed with HMRC
tratasrarercders capta ga ~stax base costin
trer~ew Ord ~ary shares e~cu.d be eqo vaie~t
totrercaptal gains base ccst rine pre-ex’stry
Sigmashares ! ¢ 1rercapaa ga s hase cost Lrder
t~e ex st ~gagreevert .f appicabe

i

If ~doubtastotrecersegaerces of 1 s agreeet
w i HMRC srare~c ders sncl!d corsot et ther
owr professcral ad. sors

TR Properivir.estment Try



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

The Company's shares are I'sted ard traded on the
londen Stock Exchange Investors may purchase
shares through treir stockbroker, hank or otner financial
“termrediary.

Holding shares in certificated form

[nvestors may hold the'r nvestirent i certificated form,
QOur reg strars. Computersnare operate a deaing servce
whicn enatves investors to buy and scl: shares quickey
and easily online without a broker or the need to open a
trading account Alternatively tne Investor Centie allows
vestors to manage portfolios guickly and securety,
update detaiis and view balances wtnout annual
charges Fuitnerdetai.s are avaiab e by cortacting
Cor-putersnare on 0370 707 1355 or visit

www investorcentre.co uk

The Company offers sharenoiders the oppartunity

to purchase further shares in the compary throagh
the Dividend Re-investrment Plan (DRIFY through the
registrar, Corpuatersnare Sharehoiders can obtair
furtrer informat.on on the DRIP thraugh thelr secure
website www irvestorcentre.co.uk, o by phoning 0370
757 1694 Charges do apply Please note that to gair
access to your details orregister for the DRIP ani the
Compctershaie site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left hand corner of vour share
certificate

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

Anumber of banks and wealth management
organisations provide Savirgs Schemes and |SAs
through which UK clients can irvest in the Compary

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge dealing
ard otrer fees for operating tne accounts, and investors
should read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit their
planned investment profile Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between prov.der and product
Where dealing charges apply, In some cases these are
applied ag a percentage of funds invested and others as
aflatcrarge Treoptimum way to hold the shares will be
differert for each ivestor deperding upon the frequency
ard s ze of nvestmerts to be made

Deta' s are given be'ow of two provders offerirg
shares inthe Cempany, bt there are many other options

Yat st

Annual Resort & Accourts 2025

Interactive investor ('ii")

Interactive investor provide and administer a range of
self select investment plans, includirg tax advantaged
ISAs and SIPPs (Self-Invested Perscral Pension), and
Trading Accounts. For more nformatior, nteractive
mvestar car be contacted on 0345 607 6001, or by
VST g wWwwIl o Lk

Interactive mvestor offer nvestors in the Corrpary a~d
other mvestment trusts a free orline sharekoider votng
and informat or service that enables investors to receive
shareho der communicatiors and, If they wish, to vote on
the sharebo'dings he:d in their account

Tne Company s also on tne interactive super 60 rated st

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited (‘CT’)
Columbia Threadneedle offer a number of savings

plans for aduits and chiidren, from general nvestment
gecounts to a range of investment 1SAs and a Child
Trust Fund. Each product g ves you the ability to

mvest in a range of investment trust companes, For
more mforration see nside the back cover. Coiumbia
Threadneedie car, be contacted on 0800 136 420, or wisit
ctinvest co uk.

Please remember that the va ue of vour investments and
ary ncorme from therm may go down as well as up Past
performance is not a guide to future performance You
may n¢t get back the amount that you nvest If you are ™
ary doubt as to the suitabilty of a plan or any irvestment
availab e within a pian, please take professiorai advice

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings ('ATS') BNP Paribas

Foilowng the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by
irteractive investor, ATS self-directed accounts were
fransferred 1o the interactive investor platfornm on
14th Dctober 2019

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of their
business that operated Savirgs Schemes and 1SAs
Irvestors were giver the choice of transferring thern
schemes to Ail'ance Trust Savings (ATS) orto a
provider of their own choice ot to c'ose therr accounts
and sell the hold rgs.

If nvestors did rot respond to the letters from BNP
Paribas, the'r accounts were transferred 1o ATS

rolowirg the acqusition of A-ance Trust Savings by
nteractve nvestor ATS self-directed accounts were
trarsferred to the irteractive investor platform on

14 October 2019
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams
Sharehaolders in a number of Investroent Trusts nave
beer approached as part of a share fraLd wrere they
are nformed of an opportunity o seli ther shares as the
company s subject to a takeaver id Th.s is 1ot true and
's an attemnpt to defraud shareholders, The share fraud
alse seeks payment of a cormission by sharehoders
to the parties carryng out the frawd.

Srareho'ders should remam a'ert to tis type of scam
and treat with suspic or any contact by telephone
cffer.rng an attractive nvesiment opporturity, such

as a premium pree for your shares, or an attempt to
corvince you that payment srequired n arder to release
a settierment for your shares. Tnese frauds may a'so
offer to se'i yodr shales in compan.es whieh rave little o
no vawe or may offer yoo bonus shares. These so cal'ed
‘botier rogm’ scams can a.$0 1Involve ar attermptto ohta
yeur personal ard/or parking information w th wh chio
commit dertiy fravd

Tne caller may be friendly ard reassulirg of they mMay
take a more urgent tone, encourag.ng yoo to act quick’y
otherw'se you cou'd ose money or ™ ss act on a deal

If you rave heer contacted by a~ uracthonsed firm
regarding yo.ir snarestre FCA woud ke to hear
from yoL Yeou canreport ar chactronsed firm using
the FCA heiplne o1 CBO0 1171 6768 or by v's.tng therr
webs.ite wn enalso nas otrer usefu' mformator

at www fca org ek

If vou recene any wnsncied nvestr-ent adv.ce
"rake s re you get tre correct name of tre persor
and orgamisation If the ca's pers st hang op If you
dea.wtn g uractiarsed fir you we rat he et g e
torece ve payrrerturder tne F mancial Serv ces
Compersator Scheme

e Board artre Marager weu'd

o
ever ~ake Lmso o ledite cprToTela 8 cfsocmarnators

22
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How to Invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc is through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
amonth. You can also transfer any existing 1ISAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

Atax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child Comtributions slarl from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to Columbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime 1SA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

tf your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £9,000
per birthday year, from £3100 lump sum or £25 a month.
CTFs with other praviders can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedle.

CT General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum centributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or

£25a month.

CT Junior Investment Account (JIA}

This 1s a flexible way to save for a child in ourrange of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
the plan can easily be set up under bare trust (where the child is
noted as the beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish
to retain control over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additicnal lump sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account.

Charges
Annual managemen: charges anc other charges apoly according w the
typeof san
Annual account charge
TG VAL
[RASEAA
EREAA
You can pay the anrual charge front your account or oy direct debit
anaddit.orto any annda: subscnoion imits)
Dealing charges
£12 per fund {recuced to £ for deals placed thraugh the online
Columtra Threadneedle Investor Portal} for 1S4 GIALISAYJIA
ard siSA. There are no dea'ing chargesona CTF

Dealing charges apgly when shares are bought or sold but not
on the reinvestment of cividercs or the investment of maonthly
direct debiis. Governmeri stamp duty of G.5% also applies on
*he purchase of shares (where anglicab.e).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you
may not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Please ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant Key Features documents
before investing. For regulatary surposes, please ensdre you have
read the Pre-sales Cost & Charges disclosure related 10 the procuct
vou are zoplying for and the relevant Key Information Docurrents
(KIDs) for the investment trusts you want to mvest into.

How to invest

Toopen anew Cotumyia Threadneedle Investments o an apply
onhine at ctinvest.co.uk

Online agplications are not avalable If you are transferring

ar existing plan with another provicer to Columbia Threadneecle
Investmenrts, or 1f you are applying for a new pian in more thar one
name but paper applications are avallatie at ctinvest.co uk’
documents or by contacting Columbia Threadneed e Irvestments
New customers

Call 08BOC136420* - - - 7 ek
Email  invest@columbiathreadneedle.com

Existing plan holders

Call. 0345600 3030% =~ v - Tr caee s
Emain.  nvestorenguriess coiumbiathreadneedle.com

Bypost  Columbia Threadneedle Management L'm ted, -

nvestor enguireésizcolumo-athreadneed|e.com

Youcarasonves: Tthe Company hrougr onlne cea agp atformstonpr sate nwvesiors tharoffer share dea nygand iSAs Comipan es no ude Barclays
Stockbrokers, EQ, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lioyds Bank, The Share Centre

* The CTF and JISA accoun's are opened in the chid's name and they have access 10 the money atage 18

** Calls may be recorded or imon tored for raining and quahity purposes

‘ot oo riole, v s etinvest.co.uk

03456003030 4 Ulinr - 50N weesdays cas riay e ecorded one oncored o e nnag and goa Ty puposes
0ok a Threadneed e nvesunicirs Doty a Threaaneed ¢rnesirien s o the g aba brand na e
ot he Coumsaane Threadnced o gionp of coripenes b oanoca promniens ae sseed on eiarke: ng a0l
Flon Al an i poses by Co ame @ Threasdneedle Manage s ent o ~ced oo sed ancrecuated noe JK By COLUMBIA
The I e & Sordue Aoty 19060006 J2 LK =" THREADNEEDLE
Arnual Report & Accounts 2023 s
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Des'gn by Aspectus

Trigrepcrt nas beer prooted on Rey ve

J3EK

Made fra~ FSC Recyc ed cert fied post-coms.rmer
waste pL.p Ma~ofactored T accordarce wib

IS0 cert fied Carbon Ba.grced sta~dards for
ersormenta gua ty and erergy —artageent

RECYCLED SRy WORLD
Fapar maca from . = L AND

racycied materisl

FSC* 021017 G- TRUST™

www carbonbalancedpaper com

Cienas

perivan.com
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